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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-hE ZEZ-\F ZE+F CZT—5E —hF
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FET FAT FAT FET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E351) (&31) (E31) (&31)
Results (for the year ended 30 June) ¥&(BZAA=THILEE)
—Revenue W 385,664 142,754 194,644 4,979,715 5,610,013
—Adjusted (loss)/profit* Eﬂa / 3 7 (4 (70,775) (244,348) (60,580) 1,600,951 269,095
— Attributable (loss)/profit / (72,177 (3,811,905) (4,188,139) (30,434) 14117
—Dividends —Hx 2 - - - - -
—(Loss)/earnings per share -Gk (58) /BF (0.11) (9.29) (13.23)% (0.096)* 0.045%
{in HK dollars) (B TTa)
Financial Position (as at 30 June) BERR(RABZTE)
—Cash and cash equivalents* -RekReEE 123,632 112,534 121,971 131,426 235,451
—Total assets -EEBEA 644,070 552,770 4,516,973 9,304,180 9,466,273
—Equity* —fEm’ 123,444 48,234 3,665,065 7,753,217 7,777,687
Financial Ratios (as at 30 June) BREE(RAAZTA)
—Current assets/Current liabilities -RBEE/RBEE 1.86 237 15.07 31.58 13.62
—Assets/Equity* —EE/En 5.22 1146 127 1.20 122
—Sales/Assets —BEW LR 0.599 0.258 0.04 0.54 0.59
—Gearing ratio —EREEL X 2.67 7.0 0.06 0.03 0.03
* Excluding impairment KRet ARE
* Excluding overdrafts TBREEL
# Attributable to owners of the Company N/NSIL E YN 3
8 Adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation in October 2017 BTt F+AROEH
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EREHE

CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Champion
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company’ together with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) and the management of
the Group, | would like to present the 2019 annual report of the
Group.

The year 2019 has been an extremely challenging year. Dark
clouds of the US-China trade war loomed over the global
economy; the Brexit crisis in the UK and the social turmoil in
Hong Kong sent repercussions around the globe. The three
major economic systems of the United States, China and
Europe are the three locomotives that drive the development
of today’s world. With these three major economies careening
towards an inexorable collision, it is inevitable that sparks will fly.
Multinational corporations are suffering as a result, and regional
enterprises cannot escape unscathed either. Disassembly and
reorganization has become a worldwide trend in trade. Although
SMEs will undoubtedly face challenges, they can also take
advantage of new opportunities and rise above the competition.

In the midst of these dramatic changes, Champion Technology
Group has steadfastly faced off the difficulties. During the
2018/2019 annual period, the company team strove hard,
resulting in considerable growth in the Group’s business,
while taking a firm step forward in its four business segments
and delivered solid performance. The company has achieved
revenue creation, expanded operations, consolidated the results
and established future goals. In terms of the company's asset
structure, the company actively reorganized its assets, refreshed
its portfolio and provided a foundation for profit creation in the
future.

| am pleased to report to the shareholders that under the
joint efforts of the Board of Directors and the staff, Champion
Technology Group has delivered noticeably improved results
during the period of 2018/2019, laying a good foundation for
turning the company into profit.
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EREHE

CHAIRPERSON'’'S STATEMENT

Qualified Audit Opinions

By definition, a complete set of financial statements should
include comparative information in respect of the preceding
period which, in this case, means the figures of 30 June 2018.
Due to the limitation of scopes in the audit of the financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2017, it carried an
inherited impact on the figures of 30 June 2018. It is merely
for this technical reason that the independent auditor of the
Company has issued a qualified of opinion on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2019.

Actually, all issues which had led to the qualified audit opinion
in 2017 were cleared and resolved as stated in the Company'’s
announcement dated 30 April 2018.

As stated in the independent auditor’s report on page 81 of
this annual report, the matters of the abovementioned scope
limitations no longer have any effect on the current figures in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2019.

Optimisation of the Asset Portfolio with the Purchase
of an Oil Tanker and the Sale of Properties

On June 21 2019, Champion Technology Group successfully
purchased an oil tanker with a storage capacity of 40,000 tons.
The tanker, named “Distinction 017 was purchased at the price
of US$4,200,000. The tanker carries the gas oil and supplies it
directly to refined oil distribution ships in international waters.
This will greatly improve the company's oil gas trading business
operation. The tanker will also be leased to large oil companies
because the vessel is in good condition and charging only
reasonable rent. The “Distinction 01" tanker is quite popular
in the leasing market and is currently being rented out, and
the Group reserves the priority right to use the tanker for
transportation and storage purpose.

The tanker was purchased at an opportune time as its hull was
refurbished in early 2019. During the negotiation period, oil prices
fell which prompted the seller to settle for a lower price than first
commanded. The tanker is currently functioning well and has
generated revenue to the Group. Although current international
trade disputes subsists and the global economy is still on a
downward trajectory, from a long-term perspective the economy
will get back on the right track after the dust settles. Looking to
the future, oil prices are expected to eventually bottom out. If the
global economy recovers and the demand for crude oil increases,
the refined oil price is expected to gradually increase. The past
year's economic downturn has provided a buyer’s market, and we
have leveraged our bargaining power to make a timely purchase
for the tanker.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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EREHE

CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT

On July 8, 2019, the Company successfully completed the sale
of five and a half floors in Kantone Centre and cashed in HK$125
million. Hong Kong's social turmoil and business downturn have
meant that future rental income cannot be guaranteed. The sale
of the property in such a market is timely and demonstrates
astute management decision-making.

The sale of the property has improved the company'’s financial
situation, while purchase of the oil tanker will help increase the
company'’s revenue. The timing could not have been better.

After the sale of low revenue generating property and purchase
of tanker, the company’s assets have been restructured and
optimised. Champion Technology Group is expected to gradually
turn the corner, resolve the problems left over previously, set its
sights on a new pathway and head towards a bright future.

Trading Business

As mentioned in the chairperson statement last year, the
Group will embark on and expand our trading business in
2019, especially in the gas oil arena. Thanks to the effort and
contribution of our trading team, | am pleased to report that we
have achieved a good start and our total revenue for trading
of gasoil reached approximately HK$240 million for the fiscal
year 2019. Encouraged by such a fruitful result, we have also
strengthened our gas oil floating storage platform by acquiring an
oil tanker which has enhanced our bargaining power and market
status.

The gas oil sector has been encountering a number of supply-
related challenges. The first challenge is the ongoing decline
in the discovery of new resources. The volume of oil and gas
discoveries was at its lowest since the early 1950s. The main
reasons for this phenomenon were due to the lack of large
discoveries and that most prospective areas had already been
explored and exploited. The second challenge is the reluctance
of market players to increase its exploration spending ever since
the collapse of oil price between 2014 and 2016. The third big
challenge to the industry has been caused by its instability of
supply. Production from oil fields has been declining at a rate of
approximately 4 percent per annum. Current pace of exploration
spending is insufficient to ensure discovery of enough new oil
fields to compensate for such decline. Despite the impact of
these challenges, we expect that demand would continue to
exceed annual forecasts, inventories would be reduced, and
reserves would not be fully replenished. This trend would assure
the vibrance of our gas oil trading business and the Group will
continue to find means to broaden our profit margin and the scale
of this trading business.
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CHAIRPERSON'’'S STATEMENT

Technology Business — Renewable Energy

The supply of clean energy is an unstoppable global trend. The
Feed-in-Tariff scheme (“FiT Scheme") for solar power generation
has received strong support from the Government of the HKSAR
as well as active promotion by Hong Kong Electric Investments
Limited and CLP Power Hong Kong Limited (“CLP"), attracting
attention from various parties in Hong Kong. This has stimulated
energy users that have the potential for solar power generation,
many of whom have expressed interest in participating in the FiT
Scheme. A trend with a huge potential for solar power generation
has already been sprung up.

Through the integration of the Group's existing technologies into
solar energy projects, a comprehensive multi-location equipment
monitoring system with intelligent maintenance function has
been built to enable real-time monitoring of the performance of
each of the solar power facilities, ensuring optimal production
capacity at all times. With the assistance of the wind tunnel
simulation software and 3D structural design coupled with the
collaborative platform, deliverables such as structural safety and
quality have been dramatically enhanced, therefore effectively
shortens the time-to-market. Utilising professional photovoltaic
software also maximizes the performance of every solar power
system design, providing customers with the highest return.

After much hard work, the Group's solar energy professional
team has accumulated rich experience and achieved remarkable
results. At present, some solar energy projects in village houses,
villas and warehouses have been completed. Besides, several FiT
Scheme'’s applications have been submitted and the installation
of the system will be started accordingly, and will generate
revenue for the Group.

The outstanding professional team of the Group will continue to
leverage the technological advantages of Champion Technology
Group and contribute to the solar power generation business. It
will not only serve both small and medium-sized users, but also
the wider public. We will also seek collaboration with well-known
conglomerates to build some landmark solar power projects,
creating new milestones!
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CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT

A Bright Future for the Internet of Things and Smart
Communication Business

With the mobile communication network poised to enter the 5G
era, smart communication will also put on a brand-new look. New
smart products are game changers; with intelligent robots stand
ready to wait on you; as the Internet of Things (“loT") brings
smart cities to reality. Champion Technology Group aspires to be
the best navigator for bringing users into the new era and enjoy a
smart life!

Through its subsidiary company Kantone, Champion Technology
Group owns Multitone Electronics PLC (“Multitone”), an
UK incorporated company with nearly 90 years of operating
experience. Before the advent of the Internet, Multitone already
provided British and German hospitals and public services with
radio remote communications and security communication and
monitoring systems. The company’s products and systems are
well known for their network stability, security, reliability and
application flexibility, securing vital customer confidence. Most
public hospitals and fire brigades in the UK use Multitone's
network emergency communication system as their liaison and
command system, which illustrates the reputation and market
coverage of Multitone.

As we enter the era of smart communication, Multitone will
continue to advance with the times and take things to the next
level. It developed the Mall Call Smart Estate Alert System,
which has been preferred by top international property groups. It
has been deployed in the Canary Wharf Estate in London, where
the new financial city of London is located. The world's top
financial institutions such as HSBC, Barclays Bank, Citigroup, and
others including the news agency Thomson Reuters all have their
headquarter or offices at Canary Wharf.

The Mall Call Smart Estate Alert system has gained another
major project in London. This bespoke system includes three
major components: (1) Centralised Alarm System, (2) Mall Call
Estate Alert, (3) Wide-area mass messaging function.

The fact that Multitone was able to secure service contracts with
such outstanding customers is ample evidence of the company's
level of technology and quality of service.
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CHAIRPERSON'’'S STATEMENT

With the technical advantages of Multitone, Champion
Technology Group will spare no efforts in expanding its smart
communication business in mainland China, Hong Kong and
Southeast Asia, and will introduce the high-quality intelligent
communication solution of Multitone to contribute to smart
living in various regions while we strive to gain a competitive
market share on top of Multitone's large market share in western
countries.

Cultural Industry

As China’s economy converges with the world economy, the
wealth of the Mainland attracted international attention. The
purchasing power in particular of Chinese consumers became
a sensation in European and American luxury brand stores,
and the number of Chinese super-riches (meaning those with
individual net worth of more than US$50 million) has proliferated
from around 4,000 to nearly 9,000 in the past five years.
Wealth accumulation of the rich and the middle class has also
experienced unabated gains.

The cultural industry has always been much valued by the
Champion Technology Group, and it is an important cornerstone
of the company’s business. Following repeated and careful
revaluations, we have finally clarified and confirmed the value of
the company’s existing cultural products. We have currently put
the cultural products in safe custody to await the right moment
and opportunity for their sale.

According to the statistics of developed countries in Europe
and America, the return on investment of financial securities
is 15% per annum, of real estate is 21%, and the return of
collectible works can be as high as 26%. As a result, cultural
and art investment has an average allocation as high as 20% in
the investment portfolios of the wealthy in Europe and America.
What seemed like a dream with the slogan of “Surpassing the
United Kingdom and Catching up with the United States” from
when China reorganized its economy in the 1950s is now very
much a reality! There has been a similar leap in the Chinese
cultural art market, with Chinese buyers have already shown their
astonishingly deep pockets by making amazing purchases. In the
auction market, prices for famous works and antique collections
have hit new highs, forcing European and American collectors
to re-assess Chinese buyers. Chinese art will be in the limelight,
and Champion Group is actively exploring new varieties and
markets, in order to rejuvenate this business segment and create
revenue for the Group!
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Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere
gratitude to our customers, suppliers, business partners and the
shareholders for their continuous support. At the same time, |
would give special thanks to all the employees of the Group for
their devotion and achievements under the current challenging
business environment. As always, we are committed to exploring
new business opportunities, diversifying our business and
creating higher benefits and profits for our shareholders.

Ms. WONG Man Winny
Chairperson
Hong Kong

27 September 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Revenue

Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) reported a total
revenue for the year under review of approximately HK$386
million compared with approximately HK$143 million in 2018,
representing an increase of approximately 170 percent. This
was mainly due to revenue generated in the trading activities, in
particular, in gasoil during the year.

Loss attributable to Owners of the Company

The loss for the year under review is approximately HK$71
million (2018: approximately HK$4,476 million). Loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company is approximately HK$72
million (2018: approximately HK$3,812 million). The significant
reduction of the loss for the year was mainly due to the absence
of the impairment losses recognised in the inventory of cultural
products and the fair values loss recognised on the investment
properties acquired in last year. Loss per share for the year under
review is HK$0.11 (2018: HK$9.29).

Distribution Costs

The Group's distribution costs for the year were mainly attributed
to our principal subsidiary in United Kingdom — Multitone
Electronics PLC which recorded distribution costs for the year
under review of approximately HK$29 million as compared with
approximately HK$28 million in 2018.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year under review
decreased by approximately 22 percent to approximately
HK$92 million (2018: approximately HK$117 million). The
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in legal and
professional fees and staff costs. In previous year, we incurred
(i) approximately HK$94 million staff costs (for the year under
review, staff costs reduced to approximately HK$89 million); (ii)
HK$5 million fees for arranging the loan of HK$305 million; (iii)
about HK$1.6 million in conducting some legal due diligence
work on certain potential projects; and (iv) about HK$1 million
legal cost related to the professional advice on matter related to
the cultural products and available for sale investments. This was
because the management of the Company has kept streamlining
our workforce and our strategy of pursuing a more effective
overhead structure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS (continueq)
Fair Value Gain/(Loss)

During the year under review, the Group recognised fair value
gain on the investment properties of approximately HK$35 million
(2018: net fair value loss of approximately HK$151 million). The
fair value gain mainly comes from increase in the fair value of
the investment properties in Kantone Centre. As for the fair
value loss of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
current year, the detailed information is set out in the “Review of
Operations” section below.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the year decreased to approximately HK$40
million from approximately HK$51 million as compared with the
fiscal year 2018, which was due to the reduction of borrowings
during the year.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

By definition, a complete set of financial statements should
include comparative information in respect of the preceding
period which, in this case, means the figures of 30 June 2018.
Due to the limitation of scopes in the audit of the financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2017, it carried an
inherited impact on the figures of 30 June 2018. It is merely
this technical reason the independent auditor of the Company
has issued a qualified of opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Actually, all issues which had led to the qualified audit opinion
in 2017 were cleared and resolved as stated in the Company'’s
announcement dated 30 April 2018.

As stated in the independent auditor’s report on page 81 of
this annual report, the matters of the abovementioned scope
limitations no longer have any effect on the current figures in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Trading Business

As stated in the annual report 2018, the Company mentioned
that gasoil trading was embarked, and, for this year, we are
pleased to announce that our total revenue from trading of gasoil
reached approximately HK$240 million. In addition, on 21 June
2019, the Company, through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
entered into a legally binding memorandum of agreement
(“MOA") to purchase an oil tanker at the consideration of
US$4,200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$32,760,000). The
oil tanker was a Panamanian flag Oil Tanker named “Distinction
01" (IMO Number: 9040455) which was built and first delivered
in November 1992 with the length of 173.5 metres, breadth of
30 metres and moulded depth amidships to upper deck of 18.4
metres. The gross tonnage of the oil tanker is 25,800 metric tons
and the carriage capacity of approximately 40,000 metric tons.
After the acquisition of this oil tanker, the Company would be
able to increase our revenue and earnings since the oil tanker will
enable the Company to have its own vessel for transportation
and storage of gasoil and will therefore enhance the Company’s
capability in seizing those opportunities of taking up lower than
market price gasoil offered by those traders who may at times be
under the stress of slow-moving inventory or financial pressure.
In addition, the vessel is in good condition and charging only
reasonable rent, the "“Distinction 01" tanker is quite popular in
the leasing market and is currently being rented out, and the
Group reserves the priority right to use the tanker for transporting
and storage purpose.

The profit margin is comparatively low as compared with other
types of trading but it is within the market norm. Judging from
the scale of the trading revenue of gasoil, the demand for
gasoil is huge, and the source of customers should not be a
problem though competition in this market is rather keen. This
phenomenon explains why the profit margin is relatively thin. To
tackle this situation, management has been actively networking
with those buyers who demand higher quality gasoil and paving
way for new source of low cost fundings.

Technology Business — Renewable Energy

After much hard work, the Group's solar energy professional
team has accumulated rich experience and achieved remarkable
results. At present, some solar energy projects in village houses,
villas and warehouses have been completed. Besides, several FiT
Scheme'’s applications have been submitted and the installation
of the system will be started accordingly, and will generate
revenue for the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Technology Business — Renewable Energy (continuead)

During the initial business development period, the Company
recorded a revenue of about HK$245,000 from this sector, of
which approximately HK$200,000 was attributed to the design
and construction fees on solar energy system; approximately
HK$33,000 was attributed to the sale of system equipment;
and approximately HK$12,000 was attributed to the sharing of
revenue with customers on income generated under the FiT
Scheme introduced by CLP Power Hong Kong Limited (“CLP").
For more details of the business models under this sector, please
refer to the Outlook section below. Our comprehensive services
enable us to satisfy most of the needs of the market.

Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”)

Revenue generated by Kantone and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Kantone Group”) was approximately HK$144 million, as
compared with approximately HK$137 million of the previous
year. Profit for the year was approximately HK$2.4 million,
as compared with the loss for the previous fiscal year of
approximately HK$1,644 million.

The Kantone Group recorded a slight increase in revenue of
HK$7 million. During the year under review, the Kantone Group’s
growth in the European market within the healthcare, emergency
services and smart city communication sectors remained steady.

In order to maintain the products’ competitiveness, the Kantone
Group has continued to focus on optimizing its development
resources to provide customers with specific critical messaging
solutions in the niche markets.

In addition, the Group's management has been working with the
technical team in UK to develop a new business model for our
potential customers in mainland China and Hong Kong market
by providing them with tailor-made solutions. For details, please
refer to the "OUTLOOK" section.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continuea)
System Products

As stated in the interim report 2018, the Group will continue
exploring opportunities for the systems sales, lease and licensing
segment and to broaden the geographic base of customers,
especially to Hong Kong, mainland China and Southeast Asia
market. During the year under review, through our business
networks, we provide our customers with different kinds of total
solution for their business, such as emergency communication
system, loT integration and smart property management. Our
technical team from Multitone and Multitone (Asia) Smart
Communication Technology Company Limited are now working
with the world's leading intelligent monitoring system equipment
supplier to enhance our existing system products with the
multiple of intelligent analysis functions such as face search,
blacklist arming and stranger recognition etc., that greatly
improve the video surveillance in its preventive function and
responsible efficiency.

After the in-depth business study and introduction of the products
of Multitone to mainland China and Hong Kong, we started to
develop a new system solution product for our target customers,
such as loT service etc. More details of that development are
provided in the “Outlook” section. As we enter the era of smart
communication, Multitone will continue to advance with the
times and take things to the next level. It developed the Mall
Call Smart Estate Alert System, which has been preferred by
top international property groups. It has been deployed in the
Canary Wharf Estate in London, where the new financial city of
London is located. The world's top financial institutions such as
HSBC, Barclays Bank, Citigroup, and others including the news
agency Thomson Reuters all have their headquarter or offices
at Canary Wharf. So far, during the year under review, business
and contribution from system products have maintained a steady
growth. The revenue for this sector was approximately HK$144
million (2018: approximately HK$137 million).

Cultural Products

Cultural products, including precious stones and artifacts, valued
at HK$12,428,000 (as at 30 June 2018: HK$12,763,000) which
have been held for trading in the ordinary course of business are
included in the inventories of the Group as at 30 June 2019.

Since November 2017, all such cultural products, totalling 368
pieces, have been kept in a secured warehouse run by a world-
renowned security solution company, which is an independent
third party to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Dongguan Hotel Project

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 19
July 2017, regarding the disclosable transaction in relation
to the acquisition of the 51% equity interest of a Hong Kong
company that indirectly owns a hotel in Dongguan through a
PRC subsidiary (the “Acquisition”), the Directors considered the
Acquisition was in line with the Group’s business diversification
strategy. In addition, as disclosed in the Audited Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities which was
announced on 30 April 2018, we noted that the market condition
in Dongguan had changed, with the demand for hotel rooms
in those areas, as expected, continued to remain gloomy, and
this aspect was considered when this project was scrutinised.
However, by virtue of the sub-contracting agreements, the
Company can on one hand benefit from the steady, guaranteed
income, while it may, on the other hand, take the initiative to
terminate the agreements with the hotel operator as and when
we consider appropriate.

If the sub-contracting agreements are terminated, we may
redevelop the subject properties (together with the vacant and
unused portions of land adjacent thereto) afresh into, proposedly,
a brand new residential commercial complex project, whereby
unlocking the true and inherent value of the land.

Therefore, we considered that there was a hidden value in this
project which the Company would be able to benefit from it in
the foreseeable future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Securities Investments

The Group has invested in some Hong Kong listed securities, the
details of which are given below:

The Group conducted certain short-term securities trading
through the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Champnet Limited.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group recorded fair
value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“Financial Assets at FVTPL") of approximately HK$33 million
(2018: fair value gain of approximately HK$15 million) which was
attributable to the negative impact of global economic turmaoil
and the US-China trade war. As a result of the intensifying
trade tension between the Mainland and the United States,
global economic growth has slowed noticeably since late 2018.
The economic outlook of the Mainland and the region has also
been adversely affected. In the first half of 2019, the Hong
Kong economy grew modestly by 0.5% year on year, the worst
performance since the 2009 recession. Social unrest in recent
months has aggravated the situation, posing an unprecedented
challenge to our economy.

As at 30 June 2019, the fair value of the investments classified
as “Financial Assets at FVTPL"” amounted to approximately
HK$52 million (2018: approximately HK$111 million), of which
investment portfolios comprised 11 (2018: 12) equity securities
listed in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) of which 6 (2018: 4) equity securities are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the remaining 5 (2018:
8) equity securities are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Securities Investments (continued)

The composition of the Group's financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is given below:

RO EE )
BHERE (&)

AEBERAABEFABRZEREEEKNT :

Number of Percentage
shares  Percentage Percentage of total
held by of Accumulated of total assets of

the Group ~ shareholdings  Investment unrealised Fair value held-for- the Group

at 30 June at 30 June costat 30 Fair value at 30 June trading at 30 June
219 2019 June 2019 gain/(loss) 2019 investments 219
ASER i ARER
ZZ-RF ZE-AE R BiRER i E-hE
ABZTR ARZTR ZE-AE MEE  ZE-AE BEEE  AR=tH
v RE  ~A=1H K&/ ~AZtA REME  CBESE
Company Name/Stock Code PCES YA ki L E] BAlt REHA (BB)  20AEE BAlt BAl
Notes S S HKS
it AT A A1
Financial assets at fair value ROREEITABEL
through profit or loss SHEE
Chinese Strategic Holdings 2 \RBERERAA
Limited (Stock code: 8089) (Rt 8089) 1 9,864,000 4.2% 10,235,062 (7,788,780 2,446,272 4.9% 04%
Vineo Financial Group Limited HRtBERARAA
(Stock code: 8340) (RE&5 - 8340) Y, 15,610,000 24% 12724659 (11725619 999,040 20% 0%
Sun Hing Printing Holdings HEDRERERAR*
Limited* (Stock code: 1975 (RBHARS < 1976) 3 11,920,000 25% 12,816,880 6,737,680) 6,079,200 122% 0.9%
Valug Convergence Holdings Limited  ERFERERAR
(Stock code: 821) (RERE :821) 4 2,360,000 02% 4,306,400 (3,008.400) 1,298,000 26% 0.2%
China Fortune Financial hEEREBEEARLE
Group Ltd. (Stock code: 290) (R - 290) 5 39,000,000 04% 6,396,000 (3,822,001 2,574,000 52% 04%
Wordgate Global Logistics Ltd. ERMERAR
(Stock code: 8292) (RIARS - 8292) 6 5,500,000 07% 7465600 (6,805,600 660,000 13% 0%
(Gain Plus Holdings Ltd. ERERERAT
(Stock code: 8522) (ks 8522) 7 2,500,000 0.7% 2,283,000 1,117,000 3,400,000 6.8% 0.5%
China Eco-Farming Ltd. HEREERERDT
(Stock code: 8166) (RHRE - 8166) 8 3,400,000 04% 2,754,000 (2,444,600) 309,400 0.6% 0.0%
Summit Ascent Holdings Limited ~~ SIAHERER AR
(Stock code: 102) (RHRE 102) g 2,500,000 0.2% 2434500 1,615,500 4,050,000 82% 0.6%
Suncity Group Holdings Ltd. AEHEERRERLR
(Stock code: 1383) (RHRE : 1383) 10 13,000,000 02% 12,037,300 1279700 24,830,000 50.2% 3.9%
Future Development Holdings Limited & REBEERAR A7
(Stock code: 1259) (RHRE < 1259) 11 20,000,000 1.3% 2520000 480,000 3,000,000 6% 0.5%
913391 (6327479 49,646,912 100.0% 7.7%

* Dividend of HK$476,800 was received during the year.

* FRNBUELZ B 476,800 7T ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

1.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

8089 Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited

Chinese Strategic Holdings Limited (“Chinese Strategic”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Chinese
Strategic Group") are principally engaged in properties
investments, securities trading, loan financing and trading
business.

According to Chinese Strategic’s interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2019, the Chinese Strategic Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$1.5 million and total
comprehensive expenses of approximately HK$40 million.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group held
9,864,000 shares in Chinese Strategic and the Group
recorded an unrealised loss of HK$14,618,448 in respect of
such investment.

There was no disposal of the shares in Chinese Strategic
during the year ended 30 June 2019.

8340 Vinco Financial Group Limited

Vinco Financial Group Limited (“Vinco Financial”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Vinco Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of corporate finance
advisory services in Hong Kong.

According to Vinco Financial's interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2019, the Vinco Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$5.5 million and total
comprehensive expenses of approximately HK3.7 million.

During the year under review, the Group disposed 440,000
shares of Vinco Financial with a realised loss of HK$27,220.
As at 30 June 2019, the Group held 15,610,000 shares in
Vinco Financial and the Group recorded an unrealised loss
of HK$2,669,310 in respect of such investment during the
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

3.

1975 Sun Hing Printing Holdings Limited

Sun Hing Printing Holdings Limited (“Sun Hing") and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Sun Hing
Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sale of printing products.

According to Sun Hing's interim report for the six months
ended 31 December 2018, the Sun Hing Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$153 million and total
comprehensive income of approximately HK$14.5 million.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group held
11,920,000 shares in Sun Hing and the Group recorded
an unrealised loss of HK$5,244,800 in respect of such
investment.

There was no disposal of shares in Sun Hing during the
year ended 30 June 2019.

821 Value Convergence Holdings Limited

Value Convergence Holdings Limited (“Value
Convergence”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Value Convergence Group") are principally
engaged in the (i) provision of financial services comprising
securities, futures and options brokering and dealing,
financing services, corporate finance and other advisory
services, asset management and insurance brokerage; and
(i) proprietary trading.

According to Value Convergence'’s interim report for the
six months ended 30 June 2019, the Value Convergence
Group recorded revenue of approximately HK$21 million
and total comprehensive expenses of approximately HK$68
million.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group held
2,360,000 shares in Value Convergence and the Group
recorded an unrealised loss of HK$1,864,400 in respect of
such investment.

There was no disposal of shares in Value Convergence
during the year ended 30 June 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

5.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

290 China Fortune Financial Group Ltd.

China Fortune Financial Group Limited (“China Fortune”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “China
Fortune Group") are principally engaging in the provision
of brokerage and margin financing, proprietary securities
trading, corporate finance, asset management, money
lending, factoring, consultancy and insurance brokerage
services.

According to China Fortune's annual report for the year
ended 31 March 2019, the China Fortune Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$108 million and total
comprehensive expense of approximately HK$113 million.

During the year under review, the Group disposed
1,000,000 Shares of China Fortune with a realised loss
of HK$85,000. As at 30 June 2019, the Group held
39,000,000 shares in China Fortune and the Group
recorded an unrealised loss of HK$2,147,000 in respect of
such investment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

6.

8292 Worldgate Global Logistics Ltd.

Worldgate Global Logistics Ltd (“Worldgate”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Worldgate
Group") are principally engaged in the provision of
comprehensive international freight services, transportation
services as well as warehousing services to customers
worldwide and trading of used mobile.

According to Worldgate's interim report for the six months
ended 30 June 2019, the Worldgate Group recorded
revenue of approximately Malaysian Ringgit (“RM") 32
million and total comprehensive expense of approximately
RM3.6 million.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group held
5,500,000 shares in Worldgate and the Group recorded
an unrealised loss of HK$4,840,000 in respect of such
investment.

There was no disposal of the shares in Worldgate during
the year ended 30 June 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

7.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

8522 Gain Plus Holdings Ltd.

Gain Plus Holdings Limited (“Gain Plus”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Gain Plus
Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of building
construction services and repair, maintenance, addition and
alteration services.

According to Gain Plus's first quarterly report for the three
months ended 30 June 2019, the Gain Plus Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$213 million and total
comprehensive income of approximately HK$7.4 million.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group held
2,500,000 shares in Gain Plus and the Group recorded
an unrealised gain of HK$1,117,000 in respect of such
investment.

There was no disposal of the shares in Gain Plus during the
year ended 30 June 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

8.

8166 China Eco-Farming Ltd.

China Eco-Farming Limited (“China Eco-Farming”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “China Eco-
Farming Group”) are principally engaged in the business
of one-stop value chain services, property investment,
trading of grocery food products, trading of consumables
and agricultural products, provision of money lending
services and provision of financial services.

According to China Eco-Farming’s interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2019, the China Eco-Farming Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$12 million and total
comprehensive expense of approximately HK$26 million.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group held
3,400,000 shares in China Eco-Farming and the Group
recorded an unrealised loss of HK$2,648,600 in respect of
such investment.

There was no disposal of shares in China Eco-Farming
during the year ended 30 June 2019.

RO EE )

HERE M)

8166 HEEFELREFRL A

TEEELRERAR ((FEBRER])
NEWBAR (G hERXERER])
TENE-HABEERYE WERE -
BEARMES HREMLKEERES IR
WIRERISIA R IR & BARTS 2 %75 -

BEPRRELEHE_T—HLFRA
“t+BEARNEAZFERE  FREREL
BB 5= [E 4715 Uk 25 49 12,000,000 7 7T & 2 H
St 4858 49 26,000,000 78 7T °

RBZEZZEZ—NAFA=Z+BHLFE"
ZK%@%vﬁEPIE%EaEZMOOOOOHQ
frtn  MAKBRZIRESRSRKERNEE
2,648,600/8 7T ©

RBE-_Z-NAFRA=THILFELE
HERBEREERZ BN -

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR

77N\
[ \
[ 256 )
\ )

\

/



/

\

/ \\
(26 )

/

BB R DT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

9.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

102 Summit Ascent Holdings Limited

Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (“Summit Ascent”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Summit
Ascent Group”) conducted through its 60% equity interest
in Oriental Regent Limited (“Oriental Regent”) in the
operation of gaming and hotel. The Summit Ascent Group
also received a management fee income calculated at 3%
of the total gaming revenue, net of rebates, generated
by G1 Entertainment Limited Liability Company (“G1
Entertainment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Oriental
Regent.

According to Summit Ascent'’s interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2019, the Summit Ascent Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$257 million and
total comprehensive income of approximately HK$43
million.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group acquired
2,500,000 shares in Summit Asecent and the Group
recorded an unrealised gain of HK$1,615,500 in respect of
such investment.

There was no disposal of shares in Summit Asecent Group
during the year ended 30 June 2019.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

¥ EIEE )

HERE#)

9.

102 G| H 2R B IR &

gAZERAERAT (A REME R
Al (HEAAEE]) T ZFBRRESR
AR ([REL) Z260% i A # 2 m 48 &
TER ROBEZER - S A S B IR EUR R &
2 =& M B AR G1 Entertainment Limited
Liability Company ([ G1 Entertainment |)
TRz BERRE (IREE) 23% 8
MERBRA -

REINABE_FT-NAFA=1THL
NEAZFE®RE - G EE G RS
#1267,000,0007% 7T & % [ I 25 42 58 49
43,000,000 7T ©

REBEE-_Z—NFNA=ZTHLFE "
KEBEEAYAEE 22,500,000 %
M MASERZIRESRSRERF =
1,615,500 7T °

RBEZE-AFAASTALFELE
8 B2 BB ©



EE Jﬁl nHE & *ﬁ

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

10.

*

1383 Suncity Group Holdings Limited

Suncity Group Holdings Limited (“Suncity”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Suncity
Group") derived its major source revenue from (i) property
development, (ii) property leasing, (iii) provision of hotel
and integrated resort general consultancy services, and (iv)
provision of travel related products and services.

According to Suncity’s interim report for the six months
ended 30 June 2019, the Suncity Group recorded revenue
of approximately RMB307 million and total comprehensive
expense of approximately RMB1,236 million, respectively.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group acquired
13,000,000 shares in Suncity Group and the Group
recorded an unrealised gain of HK$12,792,700 in respect
of such investment.

There was no disposal of shares in Suncity Group during
the year ended 30 June 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Securities Investments (continued)

11.

1259 Future Development Holdings Limited

Future Development Holdings Limited (“Future
Development”) and its subsidiaries (collectively known
as the "Future Development Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of personal care
products, money lending, operation of online platform,
trading of commodities, securities investment, properties
holding, investment holding and the provision of food and
beverage services.

According to Future Development's interim report for the
six months ended 30 June 2019, the Future Development
Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB284
million and total comprehensive expense of approximately
RMB125 million.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group acquired
20,000,000 shares in Future Development and the Group
recorded an unrealised gain of HK$480,000 in respect of
such investment.

There was no disposal of shares in Future Development
during the year ended 30 June 2019.

OUTLOOK

As stated in the interim report 2018, the Group planned to

develop and achieve sustainable growth of its core businesses

— trading of gasoil and cultural products, to expand the markets

and customer base for our UK subsidiary Multitone into mainland
China, Hong Kong and Southeast Asia, and to expand the
technology sector into the renewable energy field in Hong Kong.

With the achievements made during the year under review, the

management considered that the strategies adopted have been

fruitful in achieving this aim.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK (continued)
Trading Business

The oil and gas sector has been encountering a number of
supply-related challenges. The first challenge is the ongoing
decline in the discovery of new resources. The volume of oil
and gas discoveries was at its lowest since the early 1950s. The
main reasons for this phenomenon were due to the lack of large
discoveries and that most prospective areas had already been
explored and exploited. The second challenge is the reluctance
of market players to increase its exploration spending ever since
the collapse of oil price between 2014 and 2016. The third big
challenge to the industry has been caused by its instability of
supply. Production from oil fields has been declining at a rate of
approximately 4 percent per annum. Current pace of exploration
spending is insufficient to ensure discovery of enough new oil
fields to compensate for such decline. Despite the impact of
these challenges, we expect that demand would continue to
exceed annual forecasts, inventories would be reduced, and
reserves would not be fully replenished. This trend would assure
the vibrance of our gasoil trading business and the Group will
continue to find means to broaden our profit margin and the scale
of this trading business.

The Group managed to acquire an oil tanker at an opportune
time as its hull had been refurbished in early 2019. During the
negotiation period, oil prices fell which prompted the seller
to settle for a lower price than first commanded. The tanker
is currently functioning well and has generated profits to the
company. Although current international trade disputes subsist
and the global economy is still on a downward trajectory, from
a long-term perspective the economy will get back on the right
track after the dust settles. Looking to the future, oil prices
are expected to eventually bottom out. If the global economy
recovers and the demand for crude oil increases, the refined oil
price is expected to gradually increase. The past year's economic
downturn has provided a buyer's market, and we have leveraged
our bargaining power to make a timely purchase for the tanker.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK (continued)
Technology Business — Renewable Energy

Through the integration of the Group's existing technologies into
solar energy projects, a comprehensive multi-location equipment
monitoring system with intelligent maintenance function has
been built to enable real-time monitoring of the performance of
each of the solar power facilities, ensuring optimal production
capacity at all times. With the assistance of the wind tunnel
simulation software and 3D structural design coupled with the
collaborative platform, deliverables such as structural safety and
quality have been dramatically enhanced, therefore effectively
shortens the time-to-market. Utilising professional photovoltaic
software also maximizes the performance of every solar power
system design, providing customers with the highest return.

We have demonstrated a high degree of flexibility in our modes
of operation. Projects can be funded by users themselves and
delivered by us. They can also adopt a three-way cooperation
whereby the project is funded by a third party, while employing
the user’s rooftop, and delivered by us. Another alternative could
be funded by us, employing the user's rooftop and, following the
start of operation in the power generation unit, the two parties
share the revenue from the FiT scheme in pre-agreed proportion.

The outstanding professional team of the Group will continue to
leverage the technological advantages of Champion Technology
Group and contribute to the solar power generation business. It
will not only serve both small and medium-sized users, but also
the wider public. We will also seek collaboration with well-known
conglomerates to build some landmark solar power projects,
creating new milestones!

System Products

We provide comprehensive solutions to customers through
the integration of artificial intelligence, intelligent surveillance
system, loT and indoor positioning system in concomitant with
the development of smart cities in the future. By way of loT,
various types of sensors can be connected to the Company's
system products enabling them to generate alert messages
and automatically dispatch operation instruction to the task
force. Equipping with indoor positioning system and intelligent
monitoring system, it achieves a total solution of monitoring,
alert, assessment, response, reinforcement and communication.
This enables the users to take timely actions efficiently and
economically. As always, this is also the focus of our system
products development in the foreseeable future.

With the technical advantages of Multitone, Champion
Technology Group will spare no efforts in expanding its smart
communication business in mainland China, Hong Kong, and
Southeast Asia and will introduce the high-quality intelligent
communication solution of Multitone to contribute to smart living
in Hong Kong while we strive to gain a competitive market share
on top of Multitone's large market share in western countries.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK (continued)
Cultural Industry

The cultural industry has always been much valued by the
Champion Technology Group, and it is an important cornerstone
of the company’s business. Following repeated and careful
revaluations, we have finally clarified and confirmed the value of
the company’s existing cultural products. We have currently put
the cultural products in safe custody to await the right moment
and opportunity for their sale.

According to the statistics of developed countries in Europe
and America, the return on investment of financial securities
is 15% per annum, of real estate is 21%, and the return of
collectible works can be as high as 26%. As a result, cultural
and art investment has an average allocation as high as 20% in
the investment portfolios of the wealthy in Europe and America.
What seemed like a dream with the slogan of “Surpassing the
United Kingdom and Catching up with the United States” from
when China reorganized its economy in the 1950s is now very
much a reality! There has been a similar leap in the Chinese
cultural art market, with Chinese buyers have already shown their
astonishingly deep pockets by making amazing purchases. In the
auction market, prices for famous works and antique collections
have hit new highs, forcing European and American collectors
to re-assess Chinese buyers. Chinese art will be in the limelight,
and Champion Group is actively exploring new varieties and
markets, in order to rejuvenate this business segment and create
revenue for the Group!

Property Sector

Following the completion of the acquisition of 51% equity
interests of Golden Field Property Limited (“Golden Field")
on 19 July 2017, the Group has maintained its view that the
diversification of its business portfolio into the PRC property
sector should be profitable and would generate considerable
return to the Shareholders. The management of Golden Field
has started negotiating with local government bodies for the
steps to be taken to have the site redeveloped into a commercial
and residential complex in line with the latest progress of the
Development Plan for the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area promoted by the Chinese government. However, the
management does not preclude the possibility of selling the
project if the price is right.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ISSUE OF PROMISSORY NOTE

On 21 June 2019, the Company issued promissory note
with principal amount of approximately HK$33 million and
payable in full on 19 July 2019. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 23 June 2019.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Financial Position and Gearing

The Group's financial position remained positive.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had approximately HK$124
million (2018: approximately HK$113 million) liquid assets made
up of deposits, bank balances and cash. Current assets were
approximately HK$474 million (2018: approximately HK$304
million) and current liabilities amounted to approximately HK$255
million (2018: approximately HK$129 million). With net current
assets of approximately HK$218 million (2018: approximately
HK$176 million), the Group maintained a healthy level of financial
liquidity. The gearing ratio of the Group, was 4.6 (2018: 7.1) the
calculation of which was based on the Group's total borrowings
of approximately HK$329 million (2018: approximately HK$340
million) and equity attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$72 million (2018: approximately HK$48
million).

As at 30 June 2019, the Group's total borrowings comprised
other borrowing of approximately HK$230 million (2018:
approximately HK$280 million), no margin loans (2018:
approximately HK$2.7 million) and promissory note payable
of approximately HK$99 million (2018: approximately HK$57
million), approximately HK$99 million would be repayable within
one year and approximately HK$230 million would be repayable
in the second year (2018: approximately HK$54 million was
repayable within one year and approximately HK$286 million
was repayable in the following year). Finance costs for the year
were approximately HK$40 million (2018: approximately HK$51
million).

BITERGRERE
R-ZE—NEFENAZ+—HB AREETTH
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R RO EE -
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THHRRE 2N E B /4124,000,000
BIT (ZZF— /\F : #7113,000,0008 7T) ° 7
& E A #474,000,0008 7T (ZF— )\ F:
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255,000,000 7t (= Z — J\ 4 : 49129,000,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(continued)
Fund Raising Activities

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group completed a
fund raising exercise to strengthen its financial position and
raised total gross proceeds of approximately HK$86.7 million,
with the net proceeds therefrom having been applied as follows:

/)u,@J |¢& 1'77]&5/ L ()

EEEH
BE-T-NAFARA=THLEER K~&H
nﬁk—ﬁ%ﬁi;ﬁ%ﬁ{ﬁ CAEEEMBMRNR B
FT 15 5% 78 42 %8 4 86,700,000 8 7T * H BT 13 K18
SFRH BT

Date of Fund raising Intended use of
announcement activity gl% g(geeds raised  Proceeds Actual use of proceeds
MiBE L30T FERERE fesaRERE feREERAS
30 May 2018 (Note/ Rights issue on the Approximately For partial repayment  HK$50.0 million was utilized for partial repayment of the loan owing to Guangdong Finance
“E-NFRAZTH  basisof one rights HK$86.7million of loan due to Limited and approximately HK$20.0 million was utlized for administrative expenses and
W) shareforeverytwo  £786,700,000 7 Guangdong Finance operation expenses and payment of interest on borrowings and approximately HK$1.7
existing shares held Limited under a million was utilized for trading business; and the remaining amount of approximately
on the record date at facility agreement HK$15.0 millon will be utiized as working capital on internet communication projects of
HK$0.40 per rights entered into between  the Group.
share the Company 50,000,000 B AR BELEREREEARAFZHHEFURL20000,000 L2 H
RERERBRR 0407 and Guangdong RIBEX REER AR AR EFIBNRA1 100000 TEBRE 55K %
TREHARERE Finance Limited 115000000 THAREEASE ERERREER -
AARRERNE and for investment
B-()RERRS in internet Set out below is a further breakdown of the use of approximately HK820.0 million as
LEEETHRR communication administrative and operation expenses and payment of interest on borrowings:
projects of the Group T &514120,000000 B LT B R 2 BH X MR BZFE 2 HE 2 A1 -
and for administrative
expenses and Use of proceeds Amount
operation expenses  FrERERR k]
Eggﬁégﬁ%ﬁ?%i (HK$000)
CEERAAY ZHT
RERBERERR S
BERAAZHAE .
2 BEREEE Loan interest 7,400
Eﬁ%ﬁlﬁ % %gg Ca?hﬁ{ow for the trading business 8,300
i ‘2R !
B B52HRLRE
General operating expenses 300
—REERR
Legal and professional fee 400
FEREEER
Rent, management fee & government rates 1,000
Be ERERREN
Staff salaries 2,600
gI%¢
Total: 20,000
it

Note: On 10 July 2018, 54 valid acceptances in respect of a total of
133,666,176 rights shares provisionally allotted and 60 valid
applications for a total of 18,140,286 excess rights shares under
the rights issue were received. In aggregate, acceptance of and
applications for a total of 151,806,462 rights shares were received.
Based on the acceptance and application results, the rights issue
was undersubscribed. Pursuant to the terms of the underwriting
agreement, the underwriters (Get Nice Securities Limited and Head
& Shoulders Securities Limited) eventually took up the 76,137,154
undersubscribed shares.

B -RZT—NFLA+H ZEANSRHEKRIE
T@Fmﬁaé’éaﬁm/\m 666,176 I iR A% (5 KB
xﬁz%HLA&Goﬁ/&&ﬁi\ﬁﬁlﬁTm/\18140286
FEEBIMERR R (D B ER B ° 47 B
A $£151,806,462 % #t Hﬁﬁ&fﬁaﬁ%%ﬁqwﬁ%ﬁo
BEFMEMARBEER EREERETR
BN - BIRBHMEOKR Bl (B
BHBRABIREAZSHFBRAD)) HEEE
76,137,154 IR RKET B KRR (D ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(continued)
Treasury Policy

The Group is committed to manage its financial resources
prudently and to maintain a positive liquid financial position
with reasonable gearing. The Group finances its operation and
business development by a combination of internally generated
resources, capital market instruments and banking facilities.

All the borrowings were used by subsidiaries of the Company
in the form of fixed loans, margin loans and promissory notes.
As all the Group's borrowings were denominated in their local
currencies, the currency risk exposure associated with them was
insignificant.

The Group does not engage in any speculative derivatives or
structured product transactions, interest rate or foreign exchange
speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to manage foreign
exchange risk through matching foreign exchange income with
expense and, where significant exposure to foreign exchange is
anticipated, appropriate hedging instruments will be used.

Capital Commitments

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s capital commitments
which were authorised but not contracted for amounted to
approximately HK$1.03 million (2018: Nil). These commitments
were related to the renovation of the Company’s investment
properties in Hong Kong.

Charges

As at 30 June 2019, the other interest bearing borrowing of the
Group of HK$230 million was secured by personal guarantee
provided by Ms. Wong Man Winny (an executive Director and
chairperson of the Board) and the 128,137,958 shares of Kantone
owned by the Company which represents 64.94% of the issued
share capital of Kantone. Mr. Cheng Yang (a previous Director
who resigned on 15 August 2017 and had been a guarantor of
this borrowing in previous years) ceased to be the guarantor with
effect from 5 July 2018. Besides, certain property, plant and
equipment of the Group with the aggregate carrying amounts of
approximately HK$11 million have been pledged as collaterals
for the defined benefit retirement scheme of certain subsidiaries
operated in UK.

Contingent liabilities

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2018: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(continued)

Significant investments held, material acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, and future plans for material investments
or capital assets

a.

On 21 June 2019, Champion Energy Logistics Co Ltd (the
“"Purchaser”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and Prospera Angel International Company
Limited (the “Vendor”) entered into the MOA pursuant
to which the Purchaser agreed to purchase and the
Vendor agreed to sell the Qil Tanker named "“Distinction
01" at the Consideration of US$4,200,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$32,760,000), which would be
settled by way of a promissory note to be issued by the
Purchaser to the Vendor. Further details of are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 23 June 2019.
Delivery of the oil tanker took place during the office
hours of Panama on 21 June 2019.

On 22 March 2019, Champion (Cook Islands) Limited
and KTT (Cook Islands) Limited (the “Vendors A"), both
direct wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, Gold
Trinity International Limited (the “Purchaser A”) and the
Company entered into the Provisional S&P Agreement
A, pursuant to which the Vendors A conditionally agreed
to sell the sale shares and the Purchaser A conditionally
agreed to sell the sale shares in the Target Companies
A, at the total consideration of HK$125,000,000, which
would be settled by way of cash by the Purchaser. Chief
Champion Limited, Happy Union Development Limited,
Lucky Success Development Limited, Lucky Tone
Investments Limited and Very Happy International Limited
(the “Target Companies A") are principally engaged in
property holdings in Hong Kong. Upon Completion A, the
Target Companies A would cease to be subsidiaries of
the Company. Formal agreement was signed on 5 July
2019 and completion of the transaction took place on 8
July 2019. Further details of this transaction are set out in
the announcement and circular of the Company dated 22
March 2019 and 24 April 2019, respectively.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no significant
investments held, no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended
30 June 2019.

There is no plan for other material investments or additions of
capital assets as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

RZZT—NFNA=++H AS AT 27 SEPTEMBER 2019

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. WONG Man Winny, aged 45, has been an executive
Director and the Chairperson of the Board since October 2017.
She is currently an executive director and the Chairperson of the
board of directors of Kantone, which is listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange and a director of Multitone. Ms. Wong
served as the licensed representative of Business Securities
Limited from 2003 to 2004. She has over 10 years of experience
in corporate management and investment. Ms. Wong is the
sole director of Worldwide Peace Limited, which is a substantial
shareholder of the Company which falls to be disclosed under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. LIU Ka Lim, aged 63, has been an executive Director and an
authorised representative of the Company since October 2016.
He has over 30 years of professional experience in the field
of finance and accounting. He is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a
member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute.
Mr. Liu is currently an executive director of Kantone, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and a director of
Multitone. During March 2004 to August 2006, Mr. Liu was the
chairperson of Galileo Capital Group Limited (now known as Sun
International Group Limited), a company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange. During October 2003 to March 2006, Mr. Liu
was the chairperson of Wonderful World Holdings Limited (now
known as Good Resources Holdings Limited), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. During January 2011
to June 2013, Mr. Liu was a non-executive director of United
Pacific Industries Limited (now known as Superactive Group
Company Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. GAO Hong, aged 42, has been an executive Director of the
Company since May 2019. Mr. Gao was graduated from HEC
University of Lausanne, Switzerland in 2000 with a bachelor’s
degree in Finance and obtained the Finance Master Degree
in 2002. Mr. Gao was from 7 April 2017 to 25 July 2018 an
executive director of On Real International Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 08245) and from 18 June 2016 to 31 May 2017 an
executive director of Seamless Green China (Holdings) Limited
(Stock code: 08150), whose shares are listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange, and from 6 June 2016 to 7 July 2017 an
independent non-executive director of Nine Express Limited
(Stock code: 00009), whose shares are listed on the Main board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Gao has been appointed as the
executive chairman of Hu An Cable Holdings Limited since 22
June 2017, whose share is listed on the Singapore Exchange
Limited.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica, aged 39, has been a non-executive
Director since July 2017. Ms. To is currently a Barrister-at-Law.
Ms. To holds a postgraduate certificate in laws from University of
Hong Kong and a graduate diploma in English and Hong Kong law
from Manchester Metropolitan University. Ms. To was admitted
as a barrister of the High Court of HKSAR in 2009. Ms. To has
about 10 years of experience in the legal field. Ms. To is currently
a non-executive director of Kantone, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and a director of Multitone.

Mr. CHAN Sung Wai, aged 71,
Director since November 2017. Mr. Chan has extensive
experience in the trading, real estate and shipping industries. He

has been a non-executive

also has extensive experience in financial and media business.
He has been working for a number of years in major media
companies in Hong Kong, and responsible for covering, editing
and writing commentaries. Mr. Chan has also been a chief editor
of the petroleum magazine and has profound knowledge in the oil
and media industry in Asia. Mr. Chan is currently an independent
non-executive director of Sunway International Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 58) which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chan was an executive director of Grand Field
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 115) during the period from
November 2007 to June 2008, Energy International Investments
Holdings Limited (stock code: 353) during the period from
November 2008 to April 2011, Asia Resources Holdings Limited
(stock code: 899) for the period from October 2008 to September
2012 and Karce International Holdings Company Limited (now
known as Starlight Culture Entertainment Group Limited) (stock
code: 1159) during the period from April 2009 to June 2014, all
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He was the deputy Chairman of Asia Resources Holdings
Limited (stock code: 899) for the period from January 2009 to
September 2012 which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He was also an independent non-executive director
of Pearl Oriental Oil Limited (stock code: 632) for the period from
December 2017 to June 2018 which is listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

R-—ZT—h& A =++H AS AT 27 SEPTEMBER 2019

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai, aged 55, has been an independent non-
executive Director since June 2017. Mr. Leung has extensive
experience in accounting and finance. Mr. Leung received a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the City University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Leung is
currently an independent non-executive director of Kantone (stock
code: 1059), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung served as a financial controller
and company secretary of a private company during 2003 to
2006. From 1996 to 2003, he served various roles including
financial controller, company secretary and finance manager
in several listed companies within the ITC Corporation Limited
(now known as PT International Development Corporation
Limited) (stock code: 372), the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also worked as a senior
accountant during 1992 to 1996 in Hopewell Holdings Limited
(stock code: 54), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung had also been an independent
non-executive director of China Aluminum Cans Holdings Limited
(stock code: 6898), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, during the period from June 2013
to June 2016. Currently, Mr. Leung is the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Da Ming International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1090), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Mr. CHAN Yik Hei, aged 29, has been an independent non-
executive Director since June 2017. Mr. Chan graduated from
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2011 with
a bachelor's degree in Electronic & Computer Engineering. Mr.
Chan is a young inventor and entrepreneur in Hong Kong. In
2004, he won the Second Award in Engineering Category in the
b5th Intel International Science and Engineering Fair in the United
States of America for his invention of a smart security robot. An
asteroid no. 20780 was named after him. In 2006, Mr. Chan's
autobiography Chan Yik Hei, The Young Man Who Grabbed The
Star* (5 2 L F & 5 %) was published, and became one of
the bestsellers on the Hong Kong Book Fair. He was also the
torchbearer of the 54th Olympic torch relay in Hong Kong and
a member of the management committee of The Church of
Christ in China Tam Lee Lai Fun Memorial Secondary School. In
2016, he was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR
Government. Mr. Chan is one of the founding shareholders of
Bull.B Technology Limited, which provides (i) online platform and
development services; and (i) mobile application development
services, including FinTech platform development and
educational apps.

Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand, aged 63, has been an
independent non-executive Director since March 2018. During
January 2004 to August 2006, Mr. Wong was an independent
non-executive director of Galileo Capital Group Limited (now
known as Sun International Group Limited) (stock code: 8029),
the shares of which are traded on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the
University of British Columbia. Formerly a foreign correspondent,
he has held various key communications roles in government
agencies, the Hong Kong Jockey Club, a major international
charity, and tertiary academic institutions. He is currently
responsible for public relations and communications at an
educational institution.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

RZZT—NFNA=++H AS AT 27 SEPTEMBER 2019

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Wai, aged 50, has been the company secretary of the
Company since October 2016, and he is also the chief financial
officer and an authorised representative of the Company. Mr.
Chan has 27 years of experience in accounting and financial
management. Mr. Chan holds a master degree in Professional
Accounting awarded by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, an associate of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Mr. Chan is currently the chief financial
officer, company secretary and an authorised representative of
Kantone and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen Alan GENTRY, aged 63, is the chief executive
of Multitone, with responsibilities for formulating the overall
policy and development strategy for the Group's international
operations. He is also a director of several of the Group's
subsidiaries. He joined the Group in 1988 as financial accountant
of the UK operations, and has considerable experience working
for the Group’s various European and American operations. He
has been the Chief Executive of Multitone since 2003 and is a
member of the Institute of Directors.

Mr. Frank ROTTHOFF, aged 56, is the managing director
of German operations and a director or Multitone. He joined
the Group in 2008 and has extensive experience in sales and
marketing management in the electronics industry. His earlier
career covered international sales of industrial machinery and
process technology before entering the semiconductor sector
in 1989. He was responsible for the sales and marketing of a
leading European distributor of electronic components before
joining the Group.

Mr. Terry John MILLER, aged 80, has been a consultant of the
Group since March 2017 and a director or Multitone. Previously,
he held the position of deputy chief executive at Hong Kong
Telecommunications Limited, and was the regional director, Asia/
Pacific, of Cable & Wireless PLC. He is a fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and is the
former president of the Hong Kong Institute of the International
Association of Financial Executives. He was an independent non-
executive Director of the Company from May 1992 to March
2017.
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The Directors would like to present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the trading for gasoil and cultural
products, system sales including renewable energy systems,
software licensing and customisation, and leasing of system
products, strategic investments.

ADOPTION OF CHINESE NAME AS SECONDARY
NAME

At the 2018 Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 19
December 2018 the special resolution relating to the adoption
of the Chinese name "B E £ # & E B R A 7" as secondary
name of the Company was passed by the shareholders of the
Company.

The Chinese Name has been entered on the register together
with the primary name maintained by the Registrar of Companies
in Bermuda on 27 December 2018 and Registrar of Companies
in Hong Kong on 21 January 2019. All existing certificates for
securities of the Company in issue, after the adoption of Chinese
Name, continued to be evidence of title to such securities of
the Company and continued to be valid for trading, settlement,
registration and delivery purpose. Meanwhile, a Chinese stock
short name " @ EEHH £ E " for trading in Shares on the Stock
Exchange was adopted by the Company with effect from 11
February 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business, an indication of its likely
future development and an analysis as well as particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the year ended 30 June 2019 (if any) are discussed
in the “Chairperson’s Statement” and “Management Discuss
and Analysis’ sections from pages 5 to 35. On the other hand, a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group is set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
78 and 79. The above discussions form part of this report.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies
of the Group are shown in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group puts great emphasis in environmental protection
and energy conservation to enhance the capacity of sustainable
development and undertake relative social responsibility.
Through the establishment of an ever-improving management
system, energy conservation and environmental protection were
strongly promoted, leading to the remarkable achievement of
environmental management.

Pursuant to Rule 13.91 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the
Company will publish an Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report within three months after the publication of this
annual report in compliance with the provision set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELATED LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations, in particular, those of
which may have a significant impact on the Group. Save as
otherwise disclosed and as far as the Board and management
are aware, the Group has complied with all related laws and
regulations in all material aspects which may have significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group during the
year under review.
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RELATIONSHIP OF STAKEHOLDERS

The Company believes that employees, customers and business
partners are the key to maintain continuous sustainable
development. The Company is committed to be people-oriented
and build up good relationship with its employees. The Group
provides on-the-job training and development opportunities to
enhance its employees’ career progression. Through different
trainings, staff's professional knowledge in corporate operations,
occupational and management skills are enhanced. The Group
also values the health and well-being of its staff. In order to
provide employees with health coverage, its employees are
entitled to medical insurance. The Group also works together
with its business partners to provide high quality products and
services to achieve the goal of sustainable development and
contribution to the society.

There was no material and significant dispute between the Group
and its distributors and/or customers during the year under
review.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 90 to 91 and in the
accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 30 June 2019 (2018: Nil). Capital will
be reserved for the expansion of the Group's business and to
capture investment opportunities arising in the future. There is
no arrangement that a shareholder of the Company has waived
or agreed to waive any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RIGHTS ISSUE

On 30 May 2018, the board of directors of the Company
announced that the Company proposed to raise approximately
HK$91.2 million before expenses by issuing 227,943,616 rights
shares at the subscription price of HK$0.40 per rights share by
way of rights issue, on the basis of one rights share for every
two existing shares held on the record date. The rights issue was
completed on 18 July 2018 and net proceeds of approximately
HK$86.7 million were raised by the Company. The number
of issued ordinary shares of the Company was increased to
683,830,848 shares and the share capital and share premium of
the Company was increased from approximately HK$45,589,000
to approximately HK$68,383,000 and from approximately
HK$2,156,386,000 to approximately HK$2,221,869,000
respectively. For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 30 May 2018, 12 June 2018 and 25 June
2018.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The board of directors of the Company established a dividend
policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in December 2018, pursuant to
which the Company may declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, the Board shall take into
account, among other things, the actual and expected financial
performance of the Group, retained earnings and distributable
reserves of the Company and each of the members of the Group,
cash flow, working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans of the Group, the
liquidity position of the Group, general economic conditions,
business cycle of the Group's business, future prospects and
other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the Company
and any other relevant factors that the Board may consider
relevant.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
compliance with applicable laws and regulations including the
laws of Bermuda and the Company’s Bye-laws. The Board will
continually review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year under review are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 94 and note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

Details of the distributable reserve of the Company as at 30 June
2019 are set out in note 43 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 253 to
254.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Company during the year
ended 30 June 2019 amounted to HK$12,000 (2018: HK$10,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during the
year are set out in notes 15 to 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

JOINT VENTURE

Particulars of the Group's joint venture as at 30 June 2019 are set
out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson)
Mr. LIU Ka Lim
Mr. GAO Hong (appointed on 2 May 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica
Mr. CHAN Sung Wai

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai
Mr. CHAN Yik Hei
Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the bye-laws of the Company
(the “"Bye-laws"), one-third of the Directors for the time being,
(or if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
so that each Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years.

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, any Director
appointed by the Board at any time either to fill a casual vacancy
on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation) as at the date
of this report.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

(continued)

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information of the Directors are set out below:

Mr. CHAN Sung Wai, a Non-executive Director, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Sunway
International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange) with effect from June 2019.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the
Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Each of the Company and its subsidiary, Kantone, has a share
option scheme under which eligible persons, including directors
of the Company, Kantone or any of their respective subsidiaries,
may be granted options to subscribe for shares of the Company
and Kantone respectively.

Details of the share option schemes of the Company and
Kantone are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No share option has been granted since the adoption of the share
option schemes of the Company and Kantone.

Other than the share option schemes described in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year
was the Company, its subsidiaries, holding companies or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 30 June 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying share and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “"Model Code”) as set forth under Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules were as follows:

EECESZEERAR

RZFB-NFRA=ZTH REEFLIAER
B ((RERBEMRE) £352FREARFA
THEEZE ML SR AR A K &%
0B EMBITAEFTETERIINEEST
Al ((BEFRA) AARRRBRMSITELZ
BA EERARABIBTHRABEARRARK
HALMHREEAE (ER R E 5 LB RIS XV ED)
2Bt HERD RESFTEE RS AR
L

Approximate

percentage*
Number of of the issued
Name of Director Capacity shares share capital
HEeBITREZ
EEHR S RBEE BABED*
Ms. Wong Man Winny Interest of controlled corporation 63,103,750(L) Mete 1/(Hizz1) 9.23%
=T SIS EE R
Mr. Liu Ka Lim Beneficial owner 498,000(L) 0.07%
BRRTE EmEAA
Notes: BtaE -
1. These shares of the Company were held by Worldwide Peace 1. AARZERMBARRAREIEIERAITES

Limited, which is wholly-owned by Ms. Wong Man Winny, the
current chairperson and executive director of the Company. Ms.
Wong Man Winny is deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Worldwide Peace Limited.

2. The letter “L" denotes the Director’s long position in the shares of
the Company.

* The percentage represents the number of shares involved divided
by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 30 June 2019.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) as
at 30 June 2019 as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” below, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, its subsidiaries, holding company and any
of their subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or his/
her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group's business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” below, no contract of significance has been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

During the year under review, the Group did not conduct any
non-exempt connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group had entered
into certain transactions with parties which were regarded as
“Related Parties” under the applicable accounting principles.
Details of those related party transactions are set out in note 40
to the consolidated financial statements. The transactions which
are considered as connected transactions under the Listing Rules
are further disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at 30 June 2019, the following person (other than the
interests of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
disclosed in the paragraph headed "“Directors’ interests and short
positions in securities” above) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO:

FER

RZFB-NFRA=ZTH REESFEBAEK
17155 336 (R E AR RA TIRTF Z E LM ATRCER -
THAT(EXTEEZBFERLORR ] —BA
REARBEFTHITHRAR ZERRIN) RAR
Blz ety RARRER ) R B MO R

Approximate
percentage*

Number of of the issued
Name Capacity shares share capital
HEeBITREZ
8 5 RBEE BABED*
Worldwide Peace Limited Beneficial owner 63,103,750 (L) 9.23%
BFBRAA EmEAA
Poon Tak Chun Paul Beneficial owner 54,112,500 (L) 7.91%

EEE EREEA
Note: The letter "L" denotes the shareholder's long position in the shares
of the Company.

* The percentage represents the number of shares of the Company
involved divided by the number of the Company'’s issued shares as
at 30 June 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, according to the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO, there was no person who had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries had no outstanding convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights as at 30 June 2019.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed the Company'’s listed securities during the year ended
30 June 2019.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their
holding of the Company's securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group sells its products to customers, some of whom act as
its distributors, and purchases materials and components from
suppliers, some of whom act as its merchandisers.

For the year ended 30 June 2019, sales to the Group's five
largest customers, on individual entity basis, accounted for
approximately 68.0% of the total revenue for the year and sales
to the largest customer, on individual entity basis, included
therein amounted to approximately 31.5%. Purchases from
the Group's five largest suppliers, on individual entity basis,
accounted for approximately 83.8% of the total purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier, on individual entity
basis, included therein amounted to approximately 81.0%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders,
which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company's issued share capital, had any interest in the share
capital of the five largest customers or suppliers of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2019, the Group employed about 219 staff
around the globe. Staff costs for the year ended 30 June 2019
were approximately HK$89 million (2018: approximately HK$94
million).

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is determined
with reference to market terms and the performance,
qualifications and experience of the individual employee.

Emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Human
Resources and Remuneration Committee of the Company after
considering factors such as the Company’s operating results,
individual performance, salaries paid by comparable companies,
and time commitment and responsibilities of the position.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors and eligible employees.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company's issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts,
provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any
Directors. Such permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of
the Directors was in force during the year and remained in force
as of the date of this report.

The Group has taken out a directors’ liability insurance to cover
Directors’ liabilities to third parties. During the year ended 30
June 2019, no claims were made against the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in this report,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares, or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing Shares, were entered into by the Company during the
year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the Directors
of the Company and senior management of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2019 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

a. On 5 July 2019, Formal Agreement was entered into in
relation to the disposal of Kantone Centre (i.e. as referred
to the Disposal Group A of note 15) and the disposal was
completed on 8 July 2019.

b. On 8 August 2019, Vast Acute Holdings Limited, Hero
King Holdings Limited and Lucky Edge Holdings Limited
(the “Vendors B"), all indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, Sonic Jet Limited (the “Purchaser
B") and the Company entered into S&P Agreement B,
pursuant to which the Vendors B conditionally agreed to
sell and the Purchaser B conditionally agreed to purchase
the sale shares and the shareholders’ loans in the Target
Companies B, at the total consideration of HK$36,600,000.
Crown Zone Development Limited, Ever Vast Development
Limited, and Wise Great Development Limited (the “Target
Companies B") which are principally engaged in property
holdings in Hong Kong, Upon Completion, the Target
Companies B will cease to be subsidiaries the Company.
Further details of are set out in the announcements and
circular of the Company dated 8 August 2019, 23 August
2019 and 25 September 2019, respectively.

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in note 45
to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed, no significant event affecting the Group
occurred subsequent to 30 June 2019.

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

Ms. WONG MAN WINNY
CHAIRPERSON

Hong Kong
27 September 2019
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INTRODUCTION

The Board and the senior management of the Company are
committed to establishing good corporate governance practices
and procedures. The maintenance of high standard of business
ethics and corporate governance practices has always been
one of the Group's goals. The Company believes that good
corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, successful business growth and a
healthy corporate culture, thereby leading to the enhancement of
shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize
a quality Board, sound internal controls, transparency and
accountability to all shareholders. By applying rigorous corporate
governance practices, the Group believes that its accountability
and transparency will be improved thereby instilling confidence to
shareholders and the public. The Company has been conducting
its business according to the principles of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “"CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules during the year ended 30 June 2019.

Throughout the financial year ended 30 June 2019, the Group
has complied with the code provisions in the CG Code save for
the deviation of code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, details of
which will be explained in the relevant paragraphs in this report.
The Board will review its corporate governance practice annually
and make necessary changes if necessary. Meetings were
held throughout the year under review and where appropriate,
circulars and other guidance notes were issued to Directors and
senior management of the Group to ensure that they were aware
of issues regarding corporate governance practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's business, strategic decisions
and performances and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its
affairs. In practice, the Board takes responsibility for decision
making in all major matters of the Company including the
approval and monitoring of all policy matters, the setting of
objectives, annual budgets and overall strategies, the entering
into material transactions, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters. The day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the senior executives and the management.
Their responsibilities include the implementation of decisions
made by the Board, the co-ordination and direction of day-to-
day operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the
Board. The Board receives full support from senior executives
to discharge its responsibility. Prior approval has to be obtained
from the Board before entering into any significant transactions.
The statement of the auditors of the Company in relation to
their reporting responsibilities for the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 81 to 89 of this report.

Composition

The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date
of this report was as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson)
Mr. LIU Ka Lim
Mr. GAO Hong (appointed on 2 May 2019)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica
Mr. CHAN Sung Wai

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai
Mr. CHAN Yik Hei
Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand
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THE BOARD (continued)
Composition (continued)

One of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate
accounting and financial management expertise. The number
of independent non-executive Directors is more than one-third
of the Board. Biographical details of the other Directors are set
out in the paragraph headed “Directors and senior management
profile” on pages 36 to 40 of this report.

The presence of three independent non-executive Directors is
considered by the Board to be a reasonable balance between
executive Directors and non-executive Directors. The Board is
of the opinion that such balance can provide adequate checks
and balances to safeguard the interests of shareholders and of
the Group. The independent non-executive Directors provide to
the Group with a wide range of expertise and experience so that
independent judgement can be exercised effectively. They have
also participated in Board meetings and general meetings, dealt
with potential conflicts of interest, served on audit committee,
human resources and remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company and scrutinized the Group's
performance and reporting. Through their active participation, the
management process of the Company can be critically reviewed
and controlled.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field
of expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal
and professional ethics and integrity. All Directors have given
sufficient time and attention to the Company's affairs. The
Board believes that the ratio between executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate
to perform check and balance function over the Board in the
decision-making process.

The Board is responsible for the appointment of new Director
and nomination for re-election by shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company. Under the Bye-laws, the
Board may from time to time appoint a new Director either to
fill a vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any new Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office until the next annual general meeting after
his/her appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at
such meeting.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairperson and the Chief Executive
Officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The role of Chairperson is being performed by Ms. Wong Man
Winny, who is also being an executive Director, and she is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and development
of the Group and the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board.

The Company has no such title as the Chief Executive Officer and
therefore the daily operation and management of the Company
has been monitored by the executive Directors as well as the
senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no Chief Executive
Officer, the balance of power and authority is ensured by the
operation of the Board, which comprises experienced individuals
and who meet from time to time to look after the operations of
the Company.

INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
each of them has declared fulfilment of all the guidelines for
assessing independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such
in all corporate communications containing the names of the
Directors. In addition, there is no material relationship between
Board members.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DEVIATION FROM THE CG CODE

Throughout the year ended 30 June 2019, the Company complied
with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
save and except the following deviation:

Term of appointment of non-executive Directors

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. Whilst the non-executive Directors are not appointed
for a specific term, the term of office for non-executive Directors
is subject to retirement from office by rotation and is eligible for
re-election in accordance with the provisions of the Bye-laws. At
each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, (or if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation so that each Director shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years. As such,
the Company considers that such provision is sufficient to meet
the underlying objectives of CG Code.

BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times every year to
determine the overall strategic direction, objectives and to
approve interim results, annual results or other significant
matters. Draft notice and agenda for regular meetings are
provided to all Directors for comments and inclusion of any
matters for deliberation at the meetings. Apart from holding
regular meetings, senior management from time to time provides
to the Directors information on activities and development of
the business of the Group. The company secretary assists the
Chairperson in preparing agenda for the meetings and ensures
that all applicable rules and regulations in connection with the
meetings are observed and complied with. Except for ad hoc
Board meetings to deal with urgent issues, the agenda and
Board papers are then sent to all Directors at least 3 days prior to
the meeting. The company secretary also takes detailed minutes,
keeps records of matters discussed and decision resolved at the
meetings.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS' EEEEENRERRE @)
MEET|NGS (continued)

Directors’ attendances in the general meetings and the REEARTZREAERETS BFZRZET -
meetings of the Board, audit committee, human resources and ANEREFHEZEES REZEGURKEE
remuneration committee, nomination committee and investment ZESERCESHREBERIENNNOT

committee held during the year are set out below:

Human
Resources and

Audit  Remuneration Nomination Investment Annual Special

Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/

Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible

Name of Directors to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend
BHE/

BiiE/ BEE/ AEREEZ BHE/ BHE/ BiiE/ BiiE/
RERERZ REREEZ  ANERR  REKERZ AEREEZ RERMEZ  RERERZ
EBfif ESE83 ENZREEE FNZREES R4ZEE8H REZEEEE RREFAE  RRENAE

Executive Directors

yEzs

Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson) 99 - - - - n 1
ERRT(ZE)

Mr. LIU Ka Lim 99 - - - 22 7 N

Mr. GAQ Hong (aopointed on 2 May 2019) 22 - - - - - 01
BERE(R=E-NERA-AEFH)

Non-Executive Directors

FUTES

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica 99 - - - - 0/1 "
ftfnaT

Mr. CHAN Sung Wai 8/9 - - - - 1 i

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BUFATES

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai 79 20 20 20 20 i "
RNERLE

Mr. CHAN Yik Hei 89 20 202 202 - " ot
RABRL

Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand 99 202 202 22 - 1 0
Rk

N
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETINGS (continued)

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and
formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor financial
performances, review the annual and interim results, and
make decisions on significant matters. The execution of daily
operational matters is delegated to the senior executives of the
Group.

The company secretary records the proceedings of each Board
meeting in detail by keeping minutes, including the record of all
decisions resolved by the Board together with concerns raised
and dissenting views expressed (if any). Draft Board minutes are
circulated to all Directors for comment and approval as soon as
practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection
at any reasonable time upon request by any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information at all
times and they may make further enquiries if it is necessary to
do so.

They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services
of the company secretary, who is held responsible for providing
Directors with Board papers and other related materials. The
company secretary also ensures that proper Board procedures
are followed and that all applicable laws and regulations
are complied with. If the Directors consider necessary and
appropriate, they may retain the service of independent
professional advisers at the Group’s expense.

In case where a conflict of interest arises involving a substantial
shareholder or a Director, such matter will be resolved in
a physical meeting instead of passing written resolutions.
Independent non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest
will be present at meetings to deal with such conflict issues.

The Board committees, including the audit committee, the
human resources and remuneration committee, the nomination
committee and the investment committee, have all adopted the
applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETINGS (continued)

The annual general meeting and other special general meetings
of the Company are the primary forum for communication with its
shareholders and for shareholders’ participation. All shareholders
are encouraged to attend the general meetings or to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings on their behalves if they
are unable to attend.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Company held its
annual general meeting on 19 December 2018 and its special
general meeting on 17 May 2019. Details of major items
discussed in that general meetings are set out in the circulars
of the Company dated 15 November 2018 and 24 April 2019
respectively.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors, must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business of the Group.
As such, the Group provides a comprehensive and formal
introduction to each newly appointed Director upon his/her
appointment. Briefings and orientations are provided so as to
ensure that new Directors are familiar with the role of the Board,
their legal and other duties as a Director as well as the business
and governance practices of the Group. Such programmes are
tailor made for each Director taking into account their background
and expertise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

(continued)

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. During the year ended 30 June 2019 and up to the
date of this report, all Directors engaged in business activities in
their respective fields as continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to
ensure that their contributions to the Board remain informed and

relevant, and they participated in the following training:

EE2HBIIRXE®

ARBBIREREZIHEERERTHA
EREITREEELE - RBEE_F—NF
NAZTBELEFEARBEAREBHL 2
REFCEREEZENBREIDEBEAN2EGE
BEER - ONMEBRILE M ELME N E
REREELBIBFEARNERHERESE

AR RESRZBVMT -

Type of Training (Notes)

Name of Directors EENR AR (A7)

Executive Directors HITES

Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson) "R Z LT (FE) A B

Mr. LIU Ka Lim BRERTE A, B

Mr. GAO Hong (appointed on 2 May 2019) =R A B
(R=ZZF—NFAHRH-HEZE)

Non-executive Directors FHMITES

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica M#EZ+ A B

Mr. CHAN Sung Wai PR 5= 0& ST A& A B

Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai BB A B

Mr. CHAN Yik Hei R 5% ok A, B

Mr. WONG Yuk Man Edmand EV-P &k A, B

Notes: HtaE -

A Attending seminars, briefing sessions, conference andj/or forums. A HEEWHEE -BNE 2R KHE -

B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy B: HEEMEBER L —REFSHAZRE -

and/or general business etc.

Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter

BHREHFER -

BEERREEREZEIREREFAAEHE

BRERARAR MABFAEE2BLZHE &
ME - AREMBARSE -

on a yearly basis, disclose to the Group the number and nature
of offices held by such Director in public companies and
organizations and other significant commitments.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The human resources and remuneration committee was
established with specific written terms of reference which was
revised and adopted on 19 March 2012. As at 30 June 2019,
the human resources and remuneration committee consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Leung
Man Fai (Chairperson), Mr. Chan Yik Hei and Mr. Wong Yuk Man
Edmand.

The human resources and remuneration committee is
responsible for, among other things, making recommendations
to the Board regarding the overall remuneration policy,
remuneration of Directors and senior management of the Group,
share option scheme, bonus structure, provident fund and other
compensation-related issues. This committee consults with
the Chairperson and/or other Board members on its proposals
and recommendations and has access to professional advice, if
necessary. The human resources and remuneration committee
is provided with sufficient resources to discharge and perform its
duties.

The specific terms of reference of the human resources and
remuneration committee is posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

During the year under review, the human resources and
remuneration committee held two meetings to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
all Directors and senior management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established with specific written
terms of reference which was revised and adopted on 23
September 2014. As at 30 June 2019, the nomination committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Leung Man Fai (chairperson), Mr. Chan Yik Hei and Mr.
Wong Yuk Man Edmand.

The main duties of the nomination committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board annually,
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company's corporate strategy, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board,
selecting individuals nominated for directorships, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors,
in particular the Chairperson and other executive director. The
nomination committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge and perform its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination committee is
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The nomination committee meets at least once a year.

During the year under review, the nomination committee held
two meetings to review the composition and diversity of the
Board, assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and considered the appointments of
Directors.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with specific
written terms of reference which was revised and adopted on 1
January 2016. The main duties of the audit committee include,
among other things, the following:

(@) toreview the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company'’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function or external auditor before submission to the
Board.

(b)  to review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of external auditor.

(c)  toreview the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company'’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The audit committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge and perform its duties.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in its specific
terms of reference which is posted on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The audit committee shall meet at
least twice a year.

As at 30 June 2019, the audit committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Man Fai
(chairperson), Mr. Chan Yik Hei and Mr. Wong Yuk Man Edmand.
No member of the audit committee is a former partner of the
existing audit firm of the Company within one year from the
date of his ceasing to be a partner or had any financial interest
in the auditing firm. The audit committee has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters with
the management team of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year under review, the audit committee held two
meetings to review, among other things, the Company'’s interim
report for the six months ended 31 December 2018 and annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2018. The audit committee has
also reviewed the financial reporting and compliance procedures,
report on the Company'’s internal control and risk management
review and processes as well as the re-appointment of the
external auditor. There is no material uncertainty relating to
events and conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. There is no
disagreement between the Board and the audit committee
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditor.

The accounts for the year were audited by Moore Stephens CPA
Limited, whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The audit committee has recommended
to the Board that Moore Stephens CPA Limited be nominated for
re-appointment as the auditor of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit committee
meetings. In line with practices consistent with Board meetings
and other committee meetings, draft and final version of audit
committee meeting minutes are circulated to all members of the
audit committee for comments, approval and record as soon as
practicable after each meeting.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The investment committee was established with specific written
terms of reference which was adopted on 15 August 2017. As
at 30 June 2019, the investment committee consists of one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu Ka Lim (Chairperson), one
independent non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Leung Man
Fai and two executive staffs of the Company. The investment
committee is responsible for, among other things, to review
investment performance and to advise the Company on their
investment of cash, cash equivalents, financial assets, margin
deposits, cash collateral taking account of the necessary
constraints on the deployment of the various sources and
purposes of the funds to enhance the Company’s investment
returns.

The specific terms of reference of the investment committee is
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
The investment committee meets at least twice a year.

During the year under review, the investment committee held
two meetings to consider and review the securities investments
of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity within the Board. The Company
considered that diversity of board members can be achieved
through consideration of a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued) BEEERESTTLBE @)
The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits of the ERBREHEANEZEBYHRAIABAESEER
selected candidates and their contribution to the Board. R EBMELRE -

As at the date of this annual report, the current Board RAFHAH 2B ENRTESTSHEK
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the fee for the Company's
external auditor for audit services was approximately
HK$3,735,000 (2018: HK$7,179,000) and that for non-audit
services mainly relating to taxation matters was approximately
HK$26,000 (2018: HK$59,000 mainly relating to taxation matters).

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.
Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors, who have
confirmed that, during the year ended 30 June 2019, each of
them has complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITOR

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The auditor is responsible to form an
independent opinion on the audited financial statements and
report the same to the shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and
the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
functions including but not limited to developing and reviewing
the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance,
reviewing and monitoring training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, and reviewing the
Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for making decisions in relation to
the overall strategic development of the Group's business. All
Directors have formal letters of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions of their appointment. Due to the diversity
and volume of the Group's business, responsibility in relation to
the daily operations and execution of the strategic business plans
are delegated to the management of the Group.

All committees, namely the audit committee, the human
resources and remuneration committee, the nomination
committee and the investment committee, have specific terms
of reference setting out the authorities and responsibilities of
the respective committees. All committees are required by their
terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their
decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain specific
situations, to seek the Board's approval before taking any actions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board will review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the
Board to different committees to ensure that such delegations
are appropriate and continue to be beneficial to the Company as
a whole.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and Officers’
Liability to provide adequate cover, as determined by the Board,
in respect of the current Board members and senior management
of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure
of relevant information to its shareholders. The commitment to
fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of
the Company'’s activities can be reflected in various aspects.

To maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders, the annual
and special general meetings provide an opportunities for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS (continued)

Ms. Wong Man Winny, the Chairperson and executive Director
and Mr. Liu Ka Lim, the executive Director attended the annual
general meeting in 2018 (the “2018 Annual General Meeting")
so as to ensure that shareholders’ views were communicated
to the Board. A separate resolution was proposed by the
Chairperson in respect of each separate issue at the 2018 Annual
General Meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed
from time to time to ensure that the Company conforms
to the best corporate governance practices. The circular in
relation to the arrangement of annual general meeting will be
circulated to all shareholders at least twenty one (21) clear days
prior to the holding of the annual general meeting, in which
it sets out the details of each resolution proposed and other
relevant information. At the 2018 Annual General Meeting, all
resolutions were put to vote by poll. Tricor Secretaries Limited,
the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
agent, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure votes were properly
counted. The rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at general meeting are contained
in the Bye-laws. An explanation of the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll is provided to the shareholders at the
commencement of the meeting. The Chairperson and other
directors would respond to queries raised by the shareholders
regarding the voting procedures. The poll results are published in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the relevant provisions in the
Companies Act of Bermuda.
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SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS (continuea)

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its proposal
(the “Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact information
at Unit 3412, 34th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, No0.168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong. The identity of the shareholder will be verified with
the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office. Upon confirmation by the branch share registrar and
transfer office that the request is made by a shareholder and that
if the request is proper, the Board will include the Proposal in the
agenda for the general meeting. The notice period to be given
to all the shareholders for consideration of the Proposal raised
by the shareholder concerned at the general meeting varies
according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than twenty one (21) clear days and not
less than twenty (20) clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval in an annual general meeting;

(2)  Notice of not less than twenty one (21) clear days and
not less than ten (10) clear business days in writing if the
Proposal requires approval by way of a special resolution in
a special general meeting;

(3)  Notice of not less than fourteen (14) clear days and not less
than ten (10) clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in a special general meeting other than
by way of a special resolution of the Company.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through its
annual and interim reports. The Directors, company secretary or
other appropriate members of senior management also respond
promptly to inquiries from shareholders and investors.

Shareholders may at any time serve their enquiries to the Board
in writing for the attention of company secretary at Unit 3412,
34th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, No. 168-
200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETINGS

Under Bermuda law, in addition to the right to requisition
a special general meeting, any number of shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth (1/20) of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the general meeting to which the requisition
relates; or not less than one hundred (100) shareholders, shall
(unless otherwise resolved by the Company) at their own
expense have the right by written requisition:

(@)  to require notice of any resolution which may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the next annual
general meeting to be given to shareholders entitled to
receive notice of that meeting; and/or

(b)  to request for circulation to shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting any statement of not more
than one thousand (1000) words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

A requisition referred to above must be signed by the
requisitionists in a single document or in separate copies
prepared for the purpose which between them contain
signatures of all requisitionists. A copy of the signed requisition,
accompanied by a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the
Company's expenses, must be deposited at the Company's
registered office in Bermuda:

(@) in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution,
not less than six (6) weeks before the annual general
meeting unless an annual general meeting is called for
a date six (6) weeks or less after the copy has been
deposited, in which case the copy shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited though not deposited within the
time required; and

(b) in the case of any other requisition, not less than one (1)
week before the general meeting.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to shareholders and
investors. The Company updates shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through its
annual and interim reports and notices, announcements and
circulars. The Company’s website (www.champion.hk) provides a
communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

During the year under review, there had been no significant
change made to the Company's constitutional documents.

The Bye-laws is available on both the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management functions and internal control systems of the Group
and ensuring review of the effectiveness of these systems has
been conducted annually. Management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring such systems, while
the Board oversees management in performing its duties on an
ongoing basis.

During the year, the Board has complied with the risk
management and internal control code provisions of the CG
Code by establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control system. Such review covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls. Main
features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described in the sections below:
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
Risk Management Framework

We adopt an integrated bottom-up and top-down risk review
process to enable comprehensive identification and prioritization
of all material risks throughout the Group, escalation of material
risks at the right managerial level, effective risk dialogue among

RkEERABEE®
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“Top-down”
Overseeing,
identification,
assessment and
mitigation of risk at
corporate level
(LT
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BEE - Bl
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“Bottom-up”
Identification,
assessment and
mitigation of risk
at business unit level
and across
functional areas
[Tt
REBELL
[EpS&R T2
#HEEHA - FE
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the management, and proper oversight of risk mitigation efforts. WHEEBRERR 2B -

The Board EE g
Has overall responsibility for the Group's risk management systems and internal
control systems;
BRAFTASEZAREEGERAIEEGE
Sets strategic objectives;
il FE SR B B A
Reviews the effectiveness of our risk management systems and internal
control systems;
2 b B IR I 2 S AR B R R 2 AR
Monitors the nature and extent of risk exposure to our major risks; and
ERTFEMRMERAEAZIRAREE &
Provides direction on the importance of risk management culture.

SEREREX Mz EEERMITEH -

Management & 12 /8
Designs, implements, and monitors risk management and internal control
systems; and
HE  BRERERERERANEZEHE 0 R
Assesses our risk and mitigating measures Company-wide.
AR BE T 2 B g RO B o

Audit Committee BEXZE S
Supports the Board in monitoring risk exposure, design and effectiveness of
the underlying risk management and internal control systems.

XEREFEEERBAZBRIAMIAREEREIE R ARSI HE 2 6 KA

Operational Level & EH
Risk identification, assessment and mitigation performed across the business;
and
BEBBA - AR ER 0 &
Risk management process and internal controls practiced across business
operations and functional areas.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
Risk Management Framework (continued)

The risk management framework adopted by the Group is
embedded in our strategy development, business planning and
day-to-day operations. The Group adopts a control and risk self-
assessment methodology and continuously assess and manages
its risk profile on a regular basis. Risks that are relevant to the
Group's business are identified, assessed and ranked according
to their likelihood and consequence on the Group. Risk owners
are required to submit risk alerts with risk response promptly
to the Board and Audit Committee for ongoing review and
monitoring. Action plans were formulated and implemented
during the year to address the areas of concern effectively.

Internal Control System and Continuous Improvement

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
based on the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COS0O") framework for internal controls
and has five components, namely Control Environment; Risk
Assessment; Control Activities; Information and Communication;
and Monitoring. In developing our internal control system, we
have taken into consideration our organizational structure and the
nature of our business activities.

We have put in place a phased improvement plan and progressed
to future enhance our internal controls and risk management
system. The phase of the plan focused on adopting a more risk-
based (instead of process-based) approach to risk identification
and assessment. This approach enriches our ability to analyze
risks and respond to opportunities as we pursue our strategic
objectives. Management reporting to the Audit Committee has
also been enhanced, including the presentation of special reports
on selected risk topics.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Internal Control System and Continuous Improvement

(continued)

In the current place, we still aim to integrate internal controls and
risk management into our business processes since the business
development keep developing, including in annual budgeting
and planning. Instead of treating the COSO framework as a
framework-update exercise, a holistic approach has been adopted
by us, taking into consideration the Company's circumstances,
including its ongoing internal controls and risk management
improvement plan as well as other strategic initiatives (e.g.
corporate social responsibility strategy and reporting). All of these
enhance our ultimate objective to make our risk management
system a “live” one that is practiced on a day- to-day basis by
operating units.

In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent
a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who
are in possession of inside information are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

° Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

° The executive Directors are the designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating with
external parties such as the media, analysts or investors.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
Internal Audit

The Group has engaged an external professional consultant
to take the primary role to perform the Internal Audit (“1A")
function, and professional staff with relevant expertise of the
Group are designated to provide assistance in the IA function.
The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily operation and
carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal control
systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of
operating effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The following are the key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other risks
and uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.

Business risk
Trading Business

The risk exposure in oil trading is comparative limited as the
Group adopted a very conservative approach in selecting
customers and stringent credit policy in trading gas oil.

Technology Business — Renewable Energy

As a long-term investor-operator in the renewable energy sector,
the Group is subject to Hong Kong government supportive
policies, climate, economy and other execution risks.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

(continued)
Business risk (continued)
System Products

Loss of market share and the uncertainties are the risks we are
facing it, great change is taking place with each passing day on
the stage of the internet and technology world. The Group needs
to continue exploring opportunities in technology innovation
to broaden the market share and keep investing in products
research and development.

Property Market in Mainland China

The Group has interest in property investment in Mainland
China and is therefore subject to the risks associated with
Mainland China's property market. The Group's operations
in Mainland China may also be exposed to the risks of policy
changes, currency fluctuation, interest rate changes, demand-
supply imbalance, changes in the overall economic conditions,
competition in the labour market, and availability of financing,
which may pose an adverse impact on the Group’s business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates its businesses in Hong Kong, USA and UK
and transactions are denominated in HKD, USD and Pound. The
value of Pound against HKD and other currencies may fluctuate
and is affected by, among others, changes in the economic
conditions and policies. However, fluctuations in the exchange
rates of Pound would have limited impact on the Group's
operations because the portion of revenue from UK will be used
and refinanced in UK.

Legal Risk

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or
adverse judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively affect
the operations or financial conditions of the Group. The Group
has complied with the relevant laws and regulations during the
year.
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Review of Risk Management & Internal Controls
Effectiveness

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the Board, through its review
and the reviews made by IA function and Audit Committee,
considered that the risk management and internal control system
were effective and adequate. No significant areas of concern
that may affect the financial, operational, compliance controls,
and risk management functions of the Group has been identified.
During the review, the Board also considered the resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, and their training
and budget were adequate. Such systems, however, are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance is
significant in strengthening investor confidence and attracting
investment. The management will devote considerable effort
to strengthening and improving the standards of the corporate
governance of the Group. Any views and suggestions from the
shareholders to promote and improve our transparency are also
welcome.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

K| MOORE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (“the Group") set out on pages 90 to 252, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
30 June 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
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801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

T +8522375 3180
F +852 23753828
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www.moore.hk
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2018, which form the basis for the comparative
figures presented in the current year's consolidated financial
statements, included a disclaimer of opinion in respect of the
possible effects arising from the scope limitations on audit of
available-for-sale investments and inventories on the Group's
loss, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended 30
June 2018. As the closing balances of the cultural products and
the available-for-sale investments as at 30 June 2017 have been
carried forward as the opening balances for the year ended
30 June 2018, any adjustments found to be necessary to the
closing balances as at 30 June 2017 may have a significant
effect on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 30 June 2018. Details of the disclaimer opinion were set
out in the independent auditor’s report in respect of the years
ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017 dated 27 September
2018 and 29 September 2017 respectively which were included
in the Company’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2018
and 30 June 2017 respectively.

The matters of the above mentioned scope limitations no
longer have any effect on the current figures in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019.

However, the comparative figures presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows may contain material misstatements and
hence may not be comparable with the figures for the current
year.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our qualified opinion.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019

RESRNER

REZAIEEERERGFENSEER I8
FE O KEBRE_Z-N\FRA=THLE
BAR A R (AR E R A M s MKk
25 RBTFHER) AHETEXRER - A
AXCEMRAIFEHERER_ZE—+FA
STERNPREHREBAZZ-N\FAZT
EEJEE’\JHH%)M%%'Efﬂﬁ%?&ﬁf?*tﬁ
ANAZTHEWHREHRZFAEBLHN =

—)\iz‘_\ﬂ:"I—Elifﬂ’],m/\?é/\&ﬁﬁﬂiﬁ
WaHk REREAEZEHERGAELRE
REFEAZZ RBE_ZT-—N\FRA=T
BHE-ZE—+EXA=1THIFE BEATH
rERZHBREENR -_Z—N\FhLA-+tH
RZB—+FNAZTNBZBIREMBS
WEEERASNBEEZE-_E—\FA=1TH
FFERZZE-—tFRA=ZTHZFERS -

R @ T W

EXFBERGAFER T~ NFRA
ZtTRZGEAEMBRARRAEN 2 RMEIEE
ﬁ'E/;

AW REEEERRHEMEZEKGEE  HREk
AERSHERRGEHESRYDERMEINA LR
TR e R g E TEAREREM - ALt ATae
ERRAFENFRBTETLR

BPRBEEEEHMAGEM 2 FBEEL
([BEBBEIFER)ETE - RANZFER
TmeEEA$$ﬁ¢HZ%(EWE‘?E%&T%%WH%#&%
ARENEE] -SHEEE—FTFL - RIBFE
A“rEﬂi’*@%WE’J%%@%%E%?E\'J(FE%—"&

SR BABIRER YEETEEST
THHEHBERXRERET HMARE RFARE
METREBERARES REMANERRHER -



18 M % BLA R

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis
for Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated
in our report.

EREXRSIR
MREZERAERBRMANEELHE  RLY
AUG AV BBRENBELRA/EENERE &
UERRERMERERGAVBRR LA
EARKCTURE - HM A GHELEHSI
REBR -RIREERANERE D P e
EEN BHMEBEATETEERMEST 2
BENEREXEE -

Key audit matter

HMRELER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEMETERRNMNEEREERSHE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Pl B 5 BR K AR E R G

We identified the impairment of trade receivables as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole and

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of
recoverability of trade receivables included:

BPIAARHE B 2 BUKIAN AT K BN EF 81

the estimation of impairment losses entails a significant
degree of subjective estimation and assessment. o
HREWNE FEFN ARG e BmERERMS 2

ZH - ARBEGESREREEH B MG RTE
WEMRABERE SRFRESHAREZSZE -

As disclosed in the note 22 to the consolidated financial o
statements, the trade receivables net of impairment
amounted to HK$71,360,000 as at 30 June 2019. No
allowance for credit loss has been recognised for the

year ended 30 June 2019.

Miza M MERMT 22 BE R_E—-—NLEXA
Z=TH MBRBABEREEENFERZEZRFFES .
71,360,000/ 870 c BE T —NFRA=ZTHILFE -
WEEREERIERE -

Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and the sufficiency

of provision for impairment based on information
including credit profile of different customers, ageing

of the trade receivables, historical settlement records, o
subsequent settlement status, expected timing and
amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and on-
going trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate the °
expected credit losses for the impairment assessment.
FRERBIRAZTPHNERMR  BRE SRR
MAKEDS  BELERR  EHREEU - U R#E
HEREPNHER S EERSERNEEKE 5 RRE AT

B RREREN T CEETERTG -ERENG S
EARE ERPEEENMAEEER - tmEBEAE
EEBREN G EL R -

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables under the expected
credit losses model involved the use of significant
management judgements and estimates.

BT SE D ERNEREEEENRETHEEY
NOERE R By 2B L5 -

Obtaining an understanding of how the expected
credit loss on trade receivables is estimated by
the management;

THREEBNEBEEKEZERNEREER

Testing the ageing of trade receivables, on a
sample basis, to the supporting documents and
the credit term granted;

75 38 T 8OR B TE FE I 5 AR SRR B0 B EE B ST
HRERNERGREEYS

Challenging the information used to determine
the expected credit losses by considering cash
collection performance against historical trends
and the level of credit loss charges over time;
ERDNFBEEENENENRELHBED
BRBFCRKRHRE  EMECEEEREE
B

Reviewing the accuracy of management's
judgement by comparing against historical
management’s actual write-offs;

LEEB AR E S E R A MERE - g
&I B )l ey AR T

Discussing with the management on their
assessment based on the business relationship
with customers in relation to overdue trade
receivables with/without settlement; and

HEBENREESENERFPMERBEM Y
Eﬁa%iﬁ/ﬂi%%%iﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁuﬁz%ﬂ%?ﬂlﬁﬁfi’ﬁﬂ?ﬁ ;

Examining on sampling basis evidence related to
post year end cash receipt.

BB FAERORS DU -

BEHREMERAT —E-NFEHR (83
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRI EIE (2)

Key audit matter

HEERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMETERRNAEERRERSEE

Valuation of investment properties

BREYRMLE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole and
the significant judgement and estimation required by
management in determining their fair values.
ERREMENEENRBBESVBRROHERNT - &
BEEHARERIELDERAG MG HARRKRED
FLERBEREFNEFE-

Investment properties of the Group mainly represent
commercial properties. As at 30 June 2019, the fair value
of investment properties and investment properties
included in assets classified as held for sale amounted to
HK$64,018,000 and HK$154,400,000 respectively, with
the fair value gain of HK$35,355,000 recognised in the
profit or loss for the year then ended.
EENREMETIZEREDE -R_ZE—LFXA
=+H REVEERGENEDEAFIFHEZEENR
BEWMERNRQRED R A64,0180007% 7T & 154,400,000
B HBHEZALEFECRERBERAAEERS
35,355,000/8 7T °

As disclosed in notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, in estimating the fair value of
investment properties, the Group engaged independent
qualified external valuers to perform the valuation and
worked with the valuers to establish inputs to the
valuation.

WMERE WIS MERM T4 R 16 PTHEEE - IMEFTIREMEZ
AABER  SEEEECAEEINEGEMETHE
I R ERD 2[R 85 ) S E P R B -

In determining the fair value of investment properties,
the management and valuer had taken into account
key inputs including price per square feet/square
metre, reversionary rate and monthly rent with certain
unobservable inputs that require significant management
judgement.

ERERENENDAEERN  EEEMGHEMZET
BREASE ARG THERTHROER HE
EHARD - BRIV R — L REEED &8 ABUR T
FEEEBFEHERAEN -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

BPSEAREMEGENREF R

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities,
objectivity and independence of the valuers;
HEEMNER &0 THEMERE I HELD
STA

° Obtaining an understanding of the valuation
techniques and significant assumptions adopted
by the management and the valuers;

TREIRE R AR S BRI R EABR

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
models and the judgements made by the
management and the valuers; and
FEAE A E R K B IR B B A (A D P B 2T =
BiEE &

° Checking the reasonableness of significant
unobservable inputs used by the valuers in the
valuations, in particular, the adjusted unit sale
rates, on a sample basis, against market data
such as recent selling prices.

HEMSEE (A AEE) mMEREmEMR
HERMERNEATIBRENEAEB(LER

RARENEB)ROTEAHE -

/ N
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BREXER @)

Key audit matter

HEELER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMETERRNAEEBEEAEE

Valuation of inventories (cultural products)

FE(XcER) fhE

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had inventories
amounting to HK$58 million, of which, finished goods of
HK$12 million represented cultural products that are held
for trading and resale in the ordinary course of business.
RZE-NFEFRAZ+RH SEEEFE®E
58,000,000/% 7T * HLAK 52 & ' & & 12,000,00078 7T H &
E¥BBARPHIFEEREBEECXUELER °

Valuation of inventories (cultural products) has been
identified as a key audit matter due to the use of
judgements in identifying slow moving inventories and
determining the net realisable value (“NRV") which
are based on conditions and the marketability of the
inventories (cultural products).

ERfFE (UbER) 8RR A ] 35 S 1 LA TE R I 17
BERETERFEES R FE (CUEER) HER S
Pl mBRRER=E -

NRV represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. The Group carried out the inventory review at
the end of the reporting period and made the necessary
allowance on slow moving items so as to write down
inventories to their NRVs. No impairment loss on
inventories (cultural products) was recognised for the
year ended 30 June 2019.

AR RERTFEZAFESERMB M ETHEMY
AR - SEEREFHRETTHRERS - HFHEN
BAFRTHVENEE SEEMRE AR SR HE -
HEZZ-NFAA=ZTHILEFE  WERRTFERE -

Details are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FHIEFN A MR RMEE21 -

Our procedures to address the matter included:

BMAAREEEABERNBR TR

Understanding the internal controls over
inventories from management;

THREEEBNFEMERNAMBET

Discussing with management on the basis
of determining the NRV and evaluating the
condition and marketability of the inventories;
FETEE Al & IR E N AT B R EE AR A
AEHE MR FREREETAW

Performing on a sample basis a comparison
between costs of inventories and the estimated
net realisable value of the inventories;

NHEEERA BT EX ARG EFFEE
BRE

Obtaining and evaluating the methodologies and
inputs adopted in the valuation report prepared
by the independent professional valuer engaged
by management and on which the directors’
assessment of the NRV of the inventories was
based; and

BN EREREERNE L FEEGERM
FREOMHERESPEBOFEME AL - m
EERERHRAFENA S RFEMELTMGHD
B &

Assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional valuer
by reference to its qualifications and experience.
LBRBIIENGEEMOER RS - AFTH
HERNER S REBIE -

BEHREMERAT —E-NFEHR (85



18 M %% BLA R

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the financial highlights, corporate information,
chairperson’s statement, management discussion and analysis,
directors and senior management profile, directors’ report
and corporate governance report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

R E RS M IR A REN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

R E RS M IR A REN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTSmmmmW

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Sai Kit
Practising Certificate Number: P05544

Hong Kong, 27 September 2019
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mEBEm R EMEE KSR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-_ZT—NF/NA=1+HISFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2019 2018
—ZE-h#EF —ZE—)N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
it FET FET
Revenue U &5 6 385,664 142,754
Cost of sales $HE AR (299,350) (67,011)
Gross profit EF 86,314 75,743
Other income, gains and losses HaA - Wz Kk EE 7 5,263 12,321
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2 WS 11 3 1,465
Distribution costs DK (29,229) (27,692)
General and administrative expenses ~ — M R ITE ST H (92,340) (117,395)
Impairment losses recognised for RFEERREERE
inventories - (4,222,621)
Impairment losses recognised for HIEWE 5 IR R ER R EEE
trade receivables 22 - (411)
Impairment losses recognised for L FE L BR SRR RR R B BT 18
other receivables 22 - (8,751)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets X AR BEABZZ CRHEE
at fair value through profit or loss AREE(ER) W (33,409) 15,077
Fair value gain on investment properties 7@ EE TR EBREWEZ
acquired in prior year N EERE 16 35,355 27,366
Fair value loss on investment properties RAFEEMUNBIREME Y
acquired in current year NAEEEE 16 - (178,259)
Research and development costs e BB A
expensed (2,619) (2,712)
Finance costs B 75 AR 8 (40,458) (50,634)
Share of result of a joint venture B —HeErEZERA (3) 7)
Loss before taxation BRBLATEIE 9 (71,123) (4,476,510)
Income tax credit FRigHiE 12 348 790
Loss for the year REEEIR (70,775) (4,475,720)
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mERmkHEMEE RaR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-_ZT—NF/NA=1+HIHFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-)N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
it FET FET
Other comprehensive income: Ht 2 E WK :
ltems that will not be reclassified to ~ ST EFMHEEEZZER ¢
profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined FEFHEEMNRKEE
benefits pension plans 33(b) (882) 36,450
Surplus arising from transfer of HYE  BMELERESEB
property, plant and equipment REWMEEE AR
to investment properties 15(ir) 13,431 73,221
Item that may be reclassified HEnEmoBeEmcEE
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange difference arising on BIONESMEFTEE 2
translation of foreign operations VEH =% (7,804) 8,155
Other comprehensive income REEHMEEUNE
___fortheyear ... 415 117,826
Total comprehensive expense AEEXAXHAE
for the year (66,030) (4,357,894)
Loss for the year attributable to: AR FEESR:
Owners of the Company RATIHEB A (72,177) (3,811,905)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR IR i 1,402 (663,815)
(70,775) (4,475,720)
Total comprehensive expense EBEAFEFERXEX LA
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company iN/NETE ZEN (64,303) (3,711,175)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR AR SR 2 (1,727) (646,719)
(66,030) (4,357,894)
Loss per share — Basic and diluted FREBEBR-EARKEE 14 HK$(0.11) HK$(9.29)

The notes on pages 97 to 252 form part of these consolidated FIOTEDEMB AL FRAE M B HRE
financial statements. Z AR ER S ©

BERREEERAR —T-AFFHR (91)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—Z—AFNA=1H 30JUNE 2019

At 30 June
RAA=+H
2019 2018
—ZE-hF — )\
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REE 15 64,018 34,087
Investment properties LAY 16 64,018 167,834
Development costs for systems and ESSWSE EEY kgD wiN
networks 17 - -
Interest in an associate iRl /N P v e 18 2 -
Interest in a joint venture R—EEELE IR 19 449 452
Prepayment for property, plant and Y - BB REEZTBENR
equipment 120 -
Finance lease receivable FEM R & E FIA 20 41,742 46,117
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 170,349 248430
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 21 57,847 32,949
Finance lease receivable e U S T O 308 20 4,309 4,488
Trade and other receivables FEWE S &Eﬂﬂﬁ%m 22 81,844 43,523
Financial assets at fair value through EBARBESABRZ
profit or loss CEEE 23 51,611 110,786
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFAEER 24 123,632 112,634
319,243 304,280
Assets classified as held for sale NEABELEZEE 25 154,478 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 473721 304,280
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables JERTE 5 R EMERRK 26 125,558 44,654
Contract liabilities BREE 27 21,587 21,034
Warranty provision RERE 28 1,347 1,236
Customers’ deposits XPE® 3,483 3,483
Amount due to a director Bt —REEFHIE 29 4,180 4,180
Finance lease payable EAmERE 30 168 -
Interest bearing other borrowings FFEEMEE
- amount due within one year —R—FAEH 317 - 52,728
Promissory note payables JFE A H R 32 98,762 1,279
255,085 128,594
Liabilities associated with assets MO ARIEHEEEMRBN
classified as held for sale af& 25 232 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 255,317 128,594
Netcurrentassets = *h®&EE®E 218,404 175,686
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBERE 388,753 424,176
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

—ZT—hF/NA=1+H 30 JUNE 2019

At 30 June
RARHA=1+8
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T-)N\F
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
btaE FET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Finance lease payable FER AR E IR 30 463 -
Interest bearing other borrowings AFEHMEER
— amount due after one year —R—F &2 H 31 230,000 230,000
Promissory note payables FERTEH ZIR 32 - 55,714
Retirement benefit obligations RRAE F A 33(b) 25,301 27,774
Deferred tax liabilities RIENIABE 34 9,545 9,496
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 265309 322,984
Net assets EEFE 123,444 101,192
Capital and reserves B R #E
Share capital (& 35(b) 68,383 45,589
Reserves ] 35(c) 3,825 2,645
Equity attributable to owners of RRARHEB AEIEER
the Company 72,208 48,234
Non-controlling interests FETZ B RS SR R 51,236 52,958
Total equity A 123,444 101,192
The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 252 were FNEEMB LKAV BERRERESTE

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
September 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

WONG MAN WINNY

BH

Chairperson

TE

The notes on pages 97 to 252 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

RZFB-NFAA-TERIEREET

T TIIEFRREE :

LIU KA LIM
BER
Director

EF

FOEW2EAMBZMARBEEGRAFBHEHE

ZHRERD o

BEMREEERATE

ZE-NFFER



mERAEREER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-_ZT—HhFNA=FHLLFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALREEARE
Capital Property Non-
Share Share  redemption General Capital Merger valuation  Translation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
&% NEGE 2R RAER

e RiERE REfE -RiEE fuy-1 BbEE #E EXfE ZitER Bit RREH 2%
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000
T i T T T TEr i FEr FE#r T i T

Inote 35 fhote 35 fnote 35 fhote 36 fnote 36 fnote 35 fnote 35

cli olfiy ol el e (clial) el

(#it3s (W35 (W35 (W35 (W35 (Hit%s (W%

e {cli) (cli) (cliv) (c) (o) i)

At1July 2017 R-B-tFtA-R 633179 2,09,276* 50% 1,366,003* 125,036* 8,358* - 5,725* (669,562 3,565,065 588,025 4,153,090
Loss for the year REEEE - - - - - - - - BBITYE (3811908 (663815)  (4475720)
Remeasurement of defined BERERNRMGHE

benefits pension plans - - - - - - - - 23,669 23,669 12,781 36450

Surplus arising from transfer wiE BERZEER
of property, plant and equipment  REMEEL 2 BH

10 investment properties - - - - - - 73201 - - 1321 - 132
Exchange difference arising on RENEBAEMEL
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - - - - - 3,840 - 3840 4315 8,155

Total comprehensive expense FERRANLEE

lortever .. .T._.___.I______.______z.__.pa_ 3 380 BTSZE__ BTILITE_ 46719 4367894
Acquisiton of subsidiaries frore47) KRB AR (H#41) - - - - - - - - - - 111,652 111,652
Issuance of new ordinary shares less 7T ERRBZHHE

transaction costs (rote 35/6)) (it 3516)) 126,63 3672 - - - - - - - 130308 - 130308

Issuance of new share upon placing & RAFETHR
of shares less transaction costs RRBRE (WL 360)

(note 35i)) 75% 56,438 - - - - - - - 64,036 - 64,036
Capital reduction frote 34/6)/ A (H22 3500)) (721,824) - - - 721,824 - - - - - - -
o __________ @M 60 - - OB - o DD % e 366
At30June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZE-\§tA-H 45589 2,156,386* 50% 1,366,003* 846,860* 8,358* 73221 9,565* 4,457,798) 48,234 52,958 101,192
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - - 12,177) [12,177) 1402 70,775)
Remeasurement of defined benefits  EBTBRFIRfR3HE

pension plans - - - - - - - - (673) (673) (309) 882)

Surplus of arising from transfer ERESY TNE Y]
of property, plant and equipment RENFEL RS

toinvestment properties - - - - - - 13431 - - 13431 - 13431
Exchange difference arising on RESNEBALMEE,
translation of foreign operations 353 - - - - - - - 4,984 - (4,984 (28200 (7.804)

Total comprehensive expense REERERLEE
for the year - - - - - - 13431 4,984) (72,750) (64,303) (1,727) (66,030)

Rights share less transaction costs ~ SRRGEZ BHA

(note 3516) (22 36b) 2,79 65,483 - - - - - - - 88277 - 88,277

Capital contribution from non-controlling K& ~ KK BAF&—%
shareholder of a subsidiary FERRRMLE - - - - - - - - - - 15 15
Disposal of a subsidiary fmore 1) HE-RKBLR (it 11) - - - - - - - - - - (10) (10)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, ame e - T T T .T_____.T______t_._.Bwm_ 5 88
At30June 2019 WoE-AEARZTH 68383 2221869 50 1366008 846860 835" 86,652 451 (45305481 72208 B26 12344
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * WERERFPAREGEVBMRARZEEHEE
of approximately HK$3,825,000 (2018: HK$2,645,000) in the #73,825,000 %7 (= — \4F : 2,645,000/ 7T) °

consolidated statement of financial position.

The notes on pages 97 to 252 form part of these consolidated FIOTEDEMEB M AILERAMBHRE
financial statements. ZHKE D -

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



mERERE R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZT—hHFNA=FHLLFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZT-N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
Krax FET FEL
Cash flows from operating activities K& EK2BEER
Loss before taxation W 75 A S 18 (71,123) (4,476,510)
Adjustments for: PR
Depreciation of property, plant Y- BERRB2ITE
and equipment 9 7,844 9,411
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets QA BET ABIZZ £/
at fair value through profit or loss BEEALEBERBRE () 33,409 (15,077)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE  WEK&E
and equipment 2 BB 179 59
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKB ARz W 11 (3) (1,465)
Fair value gain on investment RBEFEMBRERENE
properties acquired in prior year NABENR 6 (35,355) (27,366)
Fair value loss on investment RAFERREREMEZ
properties acquired in current year NAEEEE 16 - 178,259
Gain on early redemption of TR AT Bl FE TR R IR
promissory note payables 2 W 32(ii) - (3,444)
Impairment losses recognised REERRZREEE
for inventories 21 - 4,222,621
Impairment losses recognised for BB E AR FRETRER 2
other receivables BB EE 22 - 8,751
Bad debts written off for M EFE U E SR 2 AR
trade receivables - 411
Finance costs B 7% A AR 8 40,458 50,634
Interest income FEWA 7 (3,173) (2,176)
Share of result of a joint venture Bh—HaErFE A 3 7
(27,761) (55,885)
Increase in inventories FEZEM (24,389) (336)
Decrease in finance lease receivable fEW RE & A E KB 2R 4,554 3,420
Increase in trade and other receivables JEUE 5 K E b BR 202 32 4N (38,396) (45,173)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets 1R AR BE ABFZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRVEEZ A (3Em) 25,766 (95,709)
Increase in trade and other payables JERTE S R EARRFR Z 10 81,626 6,679
Increase in contract liabilities BHEE 2N 553 21,034
Increase warranty provision IREBE ZE M 11 136
Net cash generated from/(used in)  REEBKHE (i) 2BE
operating activities FE 22,064 (165,834)
BEHEEEERAT —T-NFFR (%)



mERERE R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEZT—NF/NA=1THIE4E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Notes HK$°000 HK$000
Krax FET FEL
Cash flows from investing activities REFZEZHESR
Prepayment for purchases of property, #1% - Bi/= k&
plant and equipment 2 BRI (120) -
Purchases of property, plant RNEWME - WFE REE
and equipment 15 (7,950) (9,115)
Purchases of investment properties NBNEYE 16 - (3,607)
Payment for the acquisition of assets B BUEEAREEREEE
and liabilities through acquisition of kBEZAR
subsidiaries 41 - (29,746)
Interest received R B 3,173 2,176
Investment in an associate R—FH 5%%@5 ZIRE 18 (2) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from disposal HEMB AT REA, Ght) 2
of subsidiaries IR 558 11 5 (1,127)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BMERREMSZ
plant and equipment A 265 -
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFEZHESEEHE (4,629) (41,419)
Cash flows from financing activities BEFE 2RSSR
Loan from a director RE—ZEBER 24 - 4,780
Repayment to a director EE—RESHE 24 - (600)
Repayment of promissory note payables {& i J& {5 7# 5, = & 32 - (35,950)
Repayment of other payables BEEMEMER 24 - (6,155)
Drawn down of other borrowings B EL .z H AL fE 5K 24 10,081 -
Repayment of other borrowings EEEMER 24 (12,809) -
Repayment of bank and BERITEAMEE
other borrowings 24 (50,000) (21,099)
New borrowings raised NEECZEE 24 - 100,098
Proceeds from issuance of shares BITRM TG 2 3R 35(b) 88,277 194,344
Capital element of finance lease JERHEENERBS
payable 24 (69) -
Interest paid for finance lease payable JEMEMEF A 2 F B X 24 (28) -
Interest paid for promissory note EERREERZFMEMRAY
paid 32 (640) (199)
Interest paid 2R E 24 (30,937) (40,257)
Net cash generated from financing BETFHFB2REFEE
activites 387 194,962
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HekReEHEL
and cash equivalents Wi, OR) B4 21,310 (12,291)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ¥R 4 KBBS54
of the year 112,534 121,971
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes & R & &)~ & (10,212) 2,854
Cash and cash equivalents at end FHBESRESEHE
of the year 24 123,632 112,534
Note: Major non-cash transaction i FBIERERSH
During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group acquired property, HEZZ-NFAA=+H KEERFEME -
plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of HK$32,823,000 5 K 5% i 48 5832,823,000 8 LB T A S A
by issuance of promissory note with principal amount of 4,200,000%73(*EEE@%’\BZ]G0,000?%?E)E’\]ﬁ‘
USD4,200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$32,760,000). HEBIE o B FIR M EE32(i) ©
Details are stated in note 32(iii).
The notes on pages 97 to 252 form part of these consolidated 97:.:2525%%22%‘ HEALSREMBmE

financial statements. 2 HBRER D
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GENERAL

Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “"Company")
was originally incorporated in the Cayman Islands but
subsequently re-domiciled to Bermuda and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information
section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented
in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries, an associate and a joint
venture are set out in notes 44, 18 and 19 respectively.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs*)

Champion Technology Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries

(collectively referred to as the “"Group”) has applied, for

the first time in the current year, the following new and

revised HKFRSs issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants (“HKICPA"):

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to Classification and Measurement

HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4

Insurance Contracts

Amendments to
HKAS 28

As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property

HKAS 40
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014~
HKFRSs 2016 Cycle

These new standards and interpretations do not have
significant impact to the Group.

e TR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—hF/NA=1+H 30 JUNE 2019
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e BB RNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERMFFIRELEITEBVBERE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING # A ((HKFRS) (&)
STANDARDS ("HKFRSS") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised standards, amendments and interpretation that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

AEEYEREEEAATEEMEMKRE
B2 FNET RARMERT R - (BRI A R -

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after
RTSIBEE SR UERH
BMZFERETHBENR

HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10
amendments

BB G AERIE 2857 & HKFRS
F10FIEET AR

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 25 16 9%

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 23
BB (BB BRERE
ZE8g)-2BEWLBH

Amendments to HKFRS 3
HKFRS £ 355 2 1& 5]
Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8
BB G ERIE 158
R E8IR Z1ER]

Amendments to HKAS 19
BEBEGHERE195RBET

Amendments to HKAS 28

B GRTERF 28 RMER]

Amendments to HKFRSs

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

REERABENARGERE LMY
BEHEIEE

Leases
HE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

PSR 2 T HEE 1%

Definition of a Business

EBHTEE

Amendments to Definition of Material

BEFEEWER]

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

ETENEET - RSk aEE

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

REE QR R G ERANRPES

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

To be determined*
e B

1 January 2019
—E-NF—H—H
1 January 2019
—E-NF—H—H
1 January 2020
—E-_FTF—-H—H

1 January 2020

1 January 2019
—ET-hEFE—-HA—H

1 January 2019

—E-NF-A—H

1 January 2019

HKFRS 5T —E-RFE_T—+FEH —E-NF—A—H
Z HKFRS 4F [ 2t
* The amendments were originally intended to be effective * ZEBITAREBRR_ZE—N\NF—H—

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The
effective date has now been deferred. Early application of
the amendments continues to be permitted.

Bk RMAmmFEMEER - EHA
HRERT HEREERFRAZS
CHEN

/

N\
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS("HKFRSS”ﬂwmmww

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the related impact of adopting the above new and revised
HKFRSs. So far, the directors of the Company (the
"Directors”) have preliminarily concluded that the above
new and revised HKFRSs will be adopted at the respective
effective dates and the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group except for the following:

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

For lessees, HKFRS 16 introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a lease term of
more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset
is of low value. A lessee is required to recognise a right-
of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. For lessors, HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or financial leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently.
The standard is mandatorily effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Earlier application is
permitted for entities that apply HKFRS 15 at or before the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the
Group's operating leases (as lessees). As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$9,149,000. The Group estimates
that none of these relate to payments for short-term and
low value leases which will continue to be accounted for
based on the current accounting model. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short term leases.
Detailed impact will be disclosed after a detailed analysis is
performed.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised HKFRSs will have a material impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

e IS AR M A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—hF/NA=1+H 30 JUNE 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEITHX
Statement of compliance EREHR

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs (which include all the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

GREMBREDZESSTMAGREMZ
HKFRS (B #& F7T A HKFRS « & & & 5t 2 8|
([BERAETELN) KRB REELARE
FPERIRE - o SRE VBRI MEB
PR A EmARA(T LR REE
RNEMEBIFTIRE 2 @ARBEER

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared BIZARBEFAEBEZEEVMERS R
on the historical cost basis except for investment BERAANEBEFE R EEEAIRIKG S

properties and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss that are measured at fair value and defined benefit
retirement plan. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in
use in HKAS 36.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

—
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 30 June 2019. A subsidiary is an entity, directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, are set out below.

The investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) for
which transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or
loss. These investments are subsequently accounted for as
follows, depending on their classification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

(continued)

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
into one of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

- fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) - recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments of
principal and interest and the investment is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both the collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
in profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

- fair value at profit or loss (FVTPL) — recycling if the
investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the investment (including
interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

(continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity security is classified as financial
assets at FVTPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an irrevocable election to
designate the investment as financial assets at FVTOCI
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer's perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as financial assets at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises
revenue when it transfers control over a product or service
to a customer.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

(@) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs.

(b)  The Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced.

(c)  The Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternate use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group
recognises revenue at the point in time at which the
performance obligation is satisfied.

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by
delivering the promised goods or services, it creates a
contract based asset on the amount of consideration
earned by the performance. Where the amount of
consideration received from a customer exceeds the
amount of revenue recognised, this gives rise to a contract
liability.
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CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group recognises revenue from sales of goods
(including cultural products, leather, gasoil and systems and
related software licensing) are based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer and the Group
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The
Group satisfies a performance obligation when it transfers
control of the cultural products, leather, gasoil and systems
and related software licensing to a customer. Revenue
from sales of goods is recognised at the point in time.

The revenue from provision of installation and maintenance
services is recognised over time.

The revenue from provision of maintenance service is
recognised over time as the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits from the Group’s
performance. Input method is used to measure the
progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs
to the satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best
depict the Group's performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
assets under operating leases, is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the relevant lease term.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continuead)
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer. When the Group acts as a principal, it recognises
revenue in the gross amount of consideration to which
it expects to be entitled in exchange for the specified
good or service transferred. The Group is an agent if its
performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of the
specified good or service by another party.

Indicators taken into account by management of the Group
to determine whether the Group acts as a principal or an
agent include, but are not limited to, the following:

(@) whether the entity is primarily responsible for
fulfilling the promise to provide the specified good or
service;

(b)  whether the entity has inventory risk before the
specified good or service has been transferred to a
customer or after transfer of control to the customer
(for example, if the customer has a right of return);

(c)  whether the entity has discretion in establishing the
price for the specified good or service, indicating
that the entity has the ability to direct the use of that
good or service and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits; and

(d)  whether the entity bears the customer’s credit risk
for the amount receivable from the customer.
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CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil
Buildings on freehold land 50 years
Vessel 2-5 years

Over the shorter of the
remaining unexpired
terms of the relevant
leases or 50 years

10%-50%

Leasehold land and buildings

Plant and machinery and

communications networks
Furniture and fixtures 20%-33'/,%
Motor vehicles 25%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is released over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. All of the Group’s property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using the fair
value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which
the property is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal company is classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal company) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal company) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether the
Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment (other than development costs for
systems and networks and financial assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted. If the recoverable
amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Development costs for systems and networks

Development costs for systems and networks projects
including those paid to independent system developers,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Development costs are recognised only if all of the
following have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the asset and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the asset;

- how the asset will generate probable future
economic benefits. Among other things, the entity
can demonstrate the existence of a market for the
output of the asset or the asset itself or, if it is to be
used internally, the usefulness of the asset;

- the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the asset during its development.
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CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Development costs for systems and networks

(continued)

Development costs that do not fulfill the above conditions
are recognised as expenses in the period in which it is
incurred.

Amortisation is calculated based on straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, subject to a maximum of three
years.

Where the recoverable amount of development costs for
systems and networks has declined below their carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to reflect the
decline in value. Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

An item of development costs, including any deposits and
prepaid development costs for systems and networks is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Research expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets

Credit losses from financial instruments and finance
lease receivable

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables); and

- finance lease receivable.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for receivables are discounted
using the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation thereof where the effect of
discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is
the maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and finance
lease receivable (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and finance lease
receivable are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs on the basis that there are no significant
financing components. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group'’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both the
current and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments (including loan
commitments issued), the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument
since initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and finance
lease receivable (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90
days past due. The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and finance
lease receivable (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised
as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their
carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-
impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and finance
lease receivable (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or finance
lease receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to
the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect is
material).

Interest in a joint venture

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint venture are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in joint venture are initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the joint venture. When the Group's share of losses of a
joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that joint
venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of the associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investment in an associate (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate and the fair value of any retained
interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associate is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain
or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investment in an associate (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-
out method except for cost of cultural products, which are
assigned by using specific identification cost method.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
ECL.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Trade and other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable and deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the directors of the Company that made
strategic decisions during the year.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the group entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollar) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve). Exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation
is disposal of.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a self-
administered and funded pension scheme in the United
Kingdom. The scheme provides defined pension benefits
with reference to the final salary of the members at
retirement and their length of service. The scheme is
closed to new members since 1 January 2003.

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit
retirement plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and
prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
the present value and the fair value of any plan assets
is deducted. The calculation is performed by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Retirement benefit scheme (continued)

Service Cost and net interest expense/(income) on the net
defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised in profit or
loss and allocated by function as part of “administrative
expense” Current service cost is measured as the increase
in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in current period. When
the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is
curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to past
service by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment,
is recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier
of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and
when related restructuring cost or termination benefit are
recognised. Net interest expense/(income) for the period is
determined by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit liability/(asset). The discount rate is
the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group's obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not be
reclassified to profit or loss. Remeasurements comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability/(asset)) and any change in the effect
of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset)).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Related party

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group's parent;

or

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)~ one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member);

(iiiy ~ the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personal
services to the reporting entity or to the parent
of the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:

Classification of inventories

The Group holds certain cultural products for resale
in the ordinary course of business. Although the
value of cultural products may appreciate over time,
it is the Group’s intention to hold such assets for
trading. Accordingly, those items of cultural products
are classified as inventories under current assets.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Group has reviewed
its investment property portfolios and concluded:

In respect of the Group's investment properties
located in Hong Kong, the management has
determined that these properties are not held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time and consequently
the presumption in the amended HKAS 12 is not
rebutted for these properties. As a result, the Group
has not recognised deferred tax on changes in fair
value of the investment properties as the Group is not
subject to any income taxes on the fair value changes
of the investment properties on disposal.

In respect of the Group's investment properties
located in the PRC, the management has determined
that these properties are held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time and consequently the
presumption in the amended HKAS 12 is rebutted for
these properties. As a result, the Group continues to
measure the deferred tax relating to these properties
using the tax rate that would apply as a result of
recovering their value through use.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Judgement is required in determining the timing
of satisfaction of performance obligation. The
Group derives revenue from sale of gasoil, systems
and related software including renewable energy
systems, and cultural products. The Group carefully
evaluates the terms and conditions stipulated in
contract and/or sale order with a customer and
assesses when the control of the goods has been
transferred to the customer. In addition, the Group
also assessed whether the Group is acting as the
principal (i.e. whether the Group has the primary
responsibility for the sale of goods, bears the risks of
loss and obsolescence, and also has full discretion
over the goods). The Directors have determined that
the control is passed to customer upon the goods
are delivered to the agreed destination. This is also
the point in time at which the right to consideration
becomes unconditional, only the passage of time is
required before payment is due.

The Directors assessed and considered that the
sales of systems and installation are one single
performance obligation and to be recognised
at a particular point in time (i.e. when control of
the systems and software is transferred to the
customer). The Group delivers products to customers
after installation of customised softwares in the
systems. The installation work is carried out in the
Group's premises or on sites specified by customers.
The Group grants customers the right to use the
software and no update or upgrade of the software
is required to be performed by the Group after sales.
The sales of systems and software and related
installation are assessed by the management to be
not distinct in the context of application of HKFRS
15 as what being delivered to the customer is a
combined product with customer specifications.

7N
(132 ) CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019

\

/

4. BRAFRMEFFAEEMZER

L

(a)

NEpoe
IR (&)

ERASEEHEREZETES
T HIER 2

EHEEBOEFNETERER
EH A - AEBOBEREHE
R RS R AR REE LR
RER  RXLER - AEEFHA
AEEHR/ RBEETETEEP
AT B B0 A5 TR S (R 0 R ik (AT B
EWEHIRERERP -t K
SENTHEREAKEETEIEA
BEANAIREAREHEMHEAT
EREME AZBARBERNERL
HEMEZTZNERER) - EBWR
RELHE IR - = 50T 25
EEBERP - WA EZ R TR
RZERMHESEGS  EAFE
B 38 25 (% AT WRER A 3K o

ESTATRAE RREERTHE
P TE By R 2 (BDAE B S B 2 )
BREREEER)ERRAE—RBY
BE - ANEEL RGP L ETE B
HERNEERIMNER - ZREIIERE
REESHRE T #ETT -
REEE FEPEAZRITOER
AEBBAEREREINRAREZK
oA EEEREBRBEHKFRS
F15%  ERENEHEHERARE
HUARBBELZETERR  BAR
NTPEFHNERZHETEFREIELE
EWER -



SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group sells large telecommunication equipment
and software that need to be installed at customers’
premises. As management considered that the
hardware installation service is a very simple
procedure the equipment can operate and function
as normal way and the customer can choose to
install the equipment by themselves or by third
party service provider. The installation service
and sales of equipment are distinct in the context
of the application of HKFRS 15. Revenue from
provision of installation services is determined by
management to be recognised over time as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs the installation service. The
Group recognises revenue in relation to the sales
of telecommunication equipment of a particular
point in time (i.e. when control is transferred to the
customers).

The Group signed contracts with customers to
provide maintenance over a period of time. The
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs the maintenance service, therefore,
revenue from provision of maintenance service is
recognised over time.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies (continued)

Principal versus agent consideration (principal)

The Group engages in trading of gasoil. Upon
application of HKFRS 15, the Group assessed
whether the Group should recognise revenue on
gross basis based on the requirements in HKFRS
15. The management concluded that the Group
acts as the principal for such transactions as the
Group controls the specified goods before the
goods are transferred to customers after taking
into consideration of indicators such as the Group
is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to
provide the gasoil products, the Group has inventory
risk before transferring the gasoil to customers, the
Group has discretion in establishing the prices for the
gasoil in form of a premium over their market prices
and the Group bears the customers’ credit risk for
the amount receivables from the customers. Before
transferring the gasoil to customers, the Group has
ability to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all
of the remaining benefits from the gasoil products by
determining the customers and the timing to which
the gasoil products will be sold.
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SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties as at 30 June 2019 are stated
at fair value based on valuation reports, issued by
Stirling Appraisals Limited and Malcolm & Associates
Appraisal Limited (2018: Stirling Appraisals Limited),
by using market comparable approach.

In determining the fair value, the valuer has based on
property valuation techniques which involve certain
estimates including comparable sales in the relevant
market and appropriate discount rates.

In relying on the valuation reports, management
has exercised their judgement and is satisfied that
the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market condition.

The carrying amount of investment properties as
at 30 June 2018 and 2019 were HK$167,834,000
and HK$218,418,000 (included in both investment
properties and assets classified as held for sale)
respectively. Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement, are
stated in note 42.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowances on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables)

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on internal credit ratings as groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group’s historical default rates
taking into consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available without
undue costs or effort.

At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances
and credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The Group determines the provision of impairment
of other receivables and finance lease receivable
based on ECL. The Group assesses the ECL for each
of the other receivable and finance lease receivable
individually based on the financial position and the
economic environment in which the borrowers
operate.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL of the
Group's trade receivables and other receivables and
finance lease receivable are disclosed in note 5.

No provision for finance lease receivable has been
made as the debtor is with high credit rating and has
no historical default record with the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market
price of similar products and historical experience
of distributing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of market
condition. Management assesses the estimations at
each reporting date.

At 30 June 2019, the carrying amount of the
Group's inventories was HK$57,847,000 (2018:
HK$32,949,000).
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R-ZZE—-AENA=1H K"&£E
FE 7 REEA57,847,0008 7T (=
T — \4E : 32,949,000/87T) °

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS @I A
Categories of financial instruments ST EER

2019 2018
—E-hE  —T-N\F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FETT

Financial assets SHEE
At fair value through profit or loss BAREBEFAEBR 51,611 110,786
At amortised cost R SE R 203,840 154,952
255,451 265,738

Financial liabilities R afE
At amortised cost TR SH A AR 459,116 388,117
TEREEEERAG ZZT—NFFR
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivable, deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, interest
bearing other borrowings, amount due to a director,
finance lease payable and promissory note payables.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade
and other receivables and finance lease receivable, the
management of the Group will only allow customers
with good credit history to pay on credit. In addition, the
management reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account future discounted cash flows, to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The directors are of the opinion that the credit risk of trade
receivables is low based on the sound collection history of
the receivables and the economic environment the debtors
operate. Therefore, the ECL rate of the trade receivables is
assessed to be closed to zero and no provision was made
as at 30 June 2019.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. In the opinion of the
Directors, no trade receivables has been written off for the
year ended 30 June 2019 (2018: HK$411,000).

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk on
finance lease receivable and trade receivables, as the trade
receivables amounting to HK$47,446,000 are mainly from
the largest customers, and the finance lease receivable
amounting to HK$46,051,000 (2018: HK$50,605,000) is
due from a single debtor. As at 30 June 2019, no provision
for expected credit loss on the finance lease receivable has
been made as the debtor is with high credit rating and has
no recent history of default, thus the management of the
Group does not expect any significant loss from the non-
performance by the debtor.

Other than concentration of credit risk on the largest
customer and finance lease receivable and liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist
of a large number of customers, spread across diverse
industries and geographical areas. Liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for
other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

To the extent that the interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount of interest payment is estimated
based on the interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. RT &)
Financial risk management objectives and iR EEEZERBER @)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) FEELERE (&)
Carrying
Effective Within Total amount at
interest  one year or Between Between undiscounted 30 June
rates  on demand 1-2 years 2-5years  cash flows 2019
iy
ZB-NE
15/ BB KA=TH
ERR= REA 122% 25 BReREH ZEEE
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
=5 TEx TET TEx TET TET
2019 b ;2
Trade and other payables ENEAREMER - 125,543 - - 125,543 125,543
Amount due to a director ER—2EZHE - 4,180 - - 4,180 4,180
Finance lease obligation REMERH 18 188 375 109 672 631
Interest bearing other EEMEE
borrowings 13.0 - 275,382 - 275,382 230,000
Promissory note payables eSS 6.0-15.9 108,214 - - 108,214 98,762
238,125 275,757 109 513,991 459,116
BERREEERAR ZT—NAFFR
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 5.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

ERmIEB

Bt 7% [ ez

A s
=)

REBELEE (E)

2 A SR BUER #)

Carrying
Effective Within Total amount at
interest ~ one year or Between Between  undiscounted 30 June
rates on demand 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows 2018
i
—E-N\fF
TERS REE  ANA=TH
il A (EVES 2E5F  REREE ZEEE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
AAH T T T T T
2018 ZB-N\F

Trade and other payables ERBAREMER - 44216 - - 44216 44,216
Amount due to a director ER—2EZHE - 4,180 - - 4,180 4,180

Interest bearing other HEEMEE
borrowings 13.0 59,228 275,301 - 334,529 282,728
Promissory note payable S S 159 1279 69,787 - 71,066 56,993
108,903 345,088 - 453,991 388,117

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of
the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to finance lease receivable, fixed rates other
borrowing, finance lease payable and margin loans.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group's fixed rates borrowing
amounted to HK$230,000,000 (2018: HK$282,728,000).
The Group does not enter into any arrangement to hedge
cash flow interest rate risk. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
deposit and bank balances at the end of reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming that the amount of
balances outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis points
(2018: 10 basis points) increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2018: 10 basis
points) higher or lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's loss after tax for the year ended 30
June 2019 would decrease or increase by approximately
HK$124,000 (2018: decrease or increase by approximately
HK$113,000).

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
investments decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of equity indices and the values of individual securities.
The Group was exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (note 23).

The Group's listed equity investments classified as financial
assets at FVTPL are listed on the Stock Exchange and are
valued at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

The market equity index for the Stock Exchange, at the
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to
the end of the reporting period, and its respective highest
and lowest points during the year were as follows:

ERmIEB
BERKESEEERKE @)

RAESE R

P AR (B8 [ i 73 R RS 8 BROK S K M8 1) 38
HEEZHMEBBARERNARBETR
ZRER - AEEEmHEABRNDBR/EASL
BEFABRSZZEMEE (HiE23) 2k
A E M EE R A B ER

AEEDBREALEEFABRSZESRH
BEZ ETMRARERERT EH - Wiz
BERKRABMEME -

BRXANFARBOIREMRZZZBE
ERRAERE 2 TIZRAEE - URIEHR
REAZ &R REEHEOT

30 June 2019 High/Low 1 July 2018

= ik —E-N\#F

AA=+H Ba/ &IE +tA—H

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index  &&— 8458 28,643  30,280/24,541 28,617

AEBEBTVERARYERSTRAR
BBEENEBEREFLRTREHEREMT
LR o

The Group manages its exposure by closely monitoring the
price movements and the changes in market conditions
that may affect the value of these equity investments.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in the fair values of the equity
investments, with all other variables held constant and

before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts

at the end of the reporting period.
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£RT R %)
BiEEREEEERBE®E)
RABIEERG (&)

THRIFEMA LS BHRETEAK
HAEABRBYEZERT  BAREY
DAEELRA BT BB 2 G
TR AR MR (A -

Decrease/
(increase) Increase/
Carrying in loss after (decrease)
amount of Increase/ tax and in other
financial (decrease) accumulated components
investments in price losses of equity
REBREER HitfEx
LREE  EEEMS R EE HRBD
FREE (R2) mD, (g i CEd)
HK$000 % HK$'000 HK$'000
FET EFoya FET FET
2019 —E-hF
Equity securities EHEELEmZ
listed in Hong Kong: RAES
Held-for-trading: FEEE 49,646 23.39 9,695 -
(23.39) (9,695) -
2018 —E-N\F
Equity securities EEB LM
listed in Hong Kong: AR FE S
Held-for-trading: FEEE 110,786 32.87 30,407 -
(32.87) (30,407) -
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CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group's financial results and its cash flows. Certain
trade receivables and bank balances of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group does not
engage in any foreign currency hedging instruments.
It is the Group's policy to manage foreign currency risk
through matching foreign currency income with expense,
and where exposure to foreign exchange is anticipated,
appropriate hedging instruments will be used.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

£RT R %)
BERKESEEERKE @)

I m g

SNERBRIERT ERNEBMBEEERER
ERZINEEXE PG -  AEEE TR
WE SRR IRITRERRTIAINESHE » K
SEWESRIAINEE P TE - AKH
Z—EBREBEBREEINERA R HE
BEHINERR - 2 EMEEEIMNERRE
BERBAEZEHPTA -

ARRAZEWBE R AFEAINEEZE
WEEREE SAEEEBINERR o

SEEBIINEHECEREERERR
BERHEARZREEDT

2019 2018

—E-AF —E—)N\F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =R BE =L
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
Euro BT 17,454 (793) 22,068 -
Hong Kong dollar BT 156 (105) 591 -
Pound Sterling g 31 - 367 -
Macau Pataca ek 14 - 915 (121)
Malaysian Ringgit BRATSH 926 - - -
Renminbi ARH 7 - 2,133 -
United States dollar E7T 65,311 (78,709) 5,144 -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk from Euro, Pound Sterling, Renminbi and Macau
Pataca. Under the pegged exchange rate system, the
financial exposure on exchange rate fluctuation between
Hong Kong dollar and United States dollars is considered
insignificant by the Directors and therefore no sensitivity
analysis has been prepared.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to a 5% (2018: 5%) increase and decrease in Euro,
Pound Sterling, Renminbi and Macau Pataca against each
group entity’s functional currency. 5% (2018: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year end
for a 5% (2018: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates a decrease in loss before
taxation where Euro and Renminbi strengthens by 5%
(2018: 5%) against each group entity’s functional currency.
For a 5% (2018: 5%) weakening of Euro and Renminbi
against each group entity’'s functional currency, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the profit or loss.
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B EEEE | ERBEK (&)

S ()

AEEEEE2REZINERBRKBET -
R AR RORPTHE o R B 0E R
T EERRBEIRETEXRS2UB
RBRARG - W EREGEE DN -

TRERFEFPAEETRYERUT - 5 -
ARBERMFBHSCSEEBZIKE
ZIER AN THA% (ZZT—/\F :5%)
CHEE 5% (ZT—N\F :5%) I AE
EEAIEEZEE A BREINE R BT
FrRAz@RELE - ERRERE LI
[BERASBAIAEE D) 2 T - REDN
EEREUIINESTEZ REMFEBIEE - I
EINEEREEH5% (ZF—/)\F 1 5%) ¥
HELZ7BEEDFAE - LT EERE RN
BTRARELSEETRNEEEAE
5% (ZZ—)\F :5%)BeSKRBiATER
TBE - BT RARE KBRS S EE
BRI EERBELS (ZE—N\F:5%)
AleHBaRERKERRE 2 ERFE -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NE

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Euro Br 7T 833 1,103
Renminbi AR - 107

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. W@

(a)

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Revenue

Revenue represents the amounts received and
receivable for goods sold and services provided by

the Group to external customers.

The revenue of the Group comprises the following:

Wy 2

WHEAEERMIATFHEE
an MR AR 2 B U e R MR

AEBZKREBETIIRE:

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZTET-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEr
Revenue from contracts with FEHKFRSE 155 &E A2
customers within the BPE NS
scope of HKFRS 15
Sales of cultural products $HE XL E @ 116 -
Technology — Sales of systems B —ZRRHEE
including software (BRI RFTTE)
licensing 92,961 86,547
Technology — Rendering of B — R R EERS
installation and
maintenance
services 29,373 27,892
Technology — Sales of renewable B —HEBAERERER
energy products 245 -
Trading for gasoil and leather AHNEENE S 241,330 5,890
364,025 120,329
Technology — Leasing of system BHE - E X5 E m
products 21,639 22,425
385,664 142,754
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(b)

Segment information

The operating segments have been identified on
the basis of internal management reports prepared
in accordance with accounting policies conforming
to HKFRSs, which are regularly reviewed by the
executive directors of the Company, for the purpose
of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. Six (2018: five) operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 “Operating
Segments” are identified as follows:

. Sales of cultural
products

includes income from trading of
cultural products

. Technology: System - includes income from sales of

sales including

software licensing

and services

systems including software

licensing and provision of

installation and maintenance

services

. Technology: Leasing - includes income from leasing of

of system products system products

includes income from sales of
renewable energy products

. Technology: -
Renewable energy

. Trading for gasoil and includes income from sales of gasoil

leather and leather

g Strategic investments includes income from financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

Segment results represent the profit or loss before
taxation recognised by each reportable segment,
excluding interest income, finance costs, share of
result of a joint venture, unallocated income and
expenses such as central administration costs and
directors’ salaries, etc. This is the measure reported
to the executive directors of the Company, the
chief operating decision makers, for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

e M BHRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—hF/NA=1+H 30 JUNE 2019

DHETRIEFAHKFRS 2 €51
BEMSIE 2 AT ERREHZR
VHARBRTEZTHEMAD
RRERTEDEWLTFHERE %
HKFRSZE 83 (& & n 48] » /<@ (=
T—)\F: AE)LEERAIREDSE
EHmT

¢ BEXEER - BEXLERE
ZBA
o HMECZBEE - BEEERR(E
(BB EF REAHTER
BRRH) R RRREE
BRi5) 2 A
o HRCEERS - BRESZSER
Em LKA
o BERCUBEE - BREETRLH
E2d REmMZMA
o NHRKEN - BETARKEER
25 ALBA
o REERE - BERAAEE
ANBEZERHE
EZBA

DREBESATRE D BAHER
BB AI MBS EE - TEEMN SR
A-BBRA EBE-—HaELE
EBERADE 2 WA (AR
TTBRARESHIE) - lIIRA
RAPMITEF - TELERRE-
BEzFERR  UHEELER
DEMFHEDERRR -
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WEkoEER @

(continued)

(b) Segment information (continued) (b) DEER @
Information regarding the above segments is BRELANBEERZHROT

reported below:

Technology
M
System sales
including
Sales of software Leasing Trading of
cultural licensing  of system  Renewable Strategic  gasoil and
products  and services products energy  investments leather  Consolidated
AoHE
(REEH
#E  KITER g ARREE
WLER ) ZhER  UBLRE  RMERE EE E
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FAr FEr FET FEr FEr FET
Year ended 30 June 2019 BE-E-N0E
AAZTRLEE
REVENUE s
External and total revenue WMEE RkE
Recognised atapointintime A E— & 116 92,961 - 245 - 1,330 334,652
Recognised over time REEED - 29373 21639 - - - 51,012
116 122,334 21,639 25 - 241,330 385,664
RESULTS EL |
Segment result AREE (2,844) 8,658 2915 (714) (46,660) 991 (37,654)
Interest income HSMA 3173
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  (HENBLAE ZM&E 3
Fair value gain on investment ~~ RBAFEATAE
properties acquired in prior hENEZ
year NEERE 35,355
Finance costs BTRRA (40,458)
Unallocated expenses, net RARFEL-F8 (31539)
Share of result of ajoint venture  EfE—FIAERE2
24 (3)
Loss before taxation KHAER (1123)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WaEkosBEER@®W

(continued)
(b) Segment information (continued) (b) DEER &
Technology
B
System sales
including
Sales of software Leasing of
cuttural  licensing and system Strategic Trading of
products services products  investments leather  Consolidated
ZRRE
(afEH
BEXER BTERERE) REZGER 0 FBERE  KENES e
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000
AT TEr FEn T T AT
Year ended 30 June 2018 BE-Z-N\§
ARZTALEE
REVENUE W&
External and total revenue HMEE R
Recognised at a point in time RE-BEED - 86,547 - - 5,890 92437
Recognised over time il - 2789 242 - - 50,317
- 114439 2405 - 5890 142,754
RESULTS L
Segment result HH%E 4,228,726) 1483 1567 (1817) 158 (4,227,335
(Gain on early redemption of RABEENALERL
promissory note payables e 3444
Interest income F8HA 2176
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENBAF K& 1,465
Fair value gain on investment RAEERFIBRENZ
properties acquired in prior year  ZAREBEME 27,366
Fair value loss on investment RAFERE RENZ,
property acquired in currentyear AR EEFE (178,259)
Finance costs BRI (50,634)
Unallocated expenses, net AORAX -8 (54,726
Share of result of ajointventure Bl —HABLE 4 ()
Loss before taxation BAaEE (4,4765510)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERDEER @)
(continued)
(b) Segment information (continued) (b) DEER @
Technology
AR
System sales
including
Sales of software Leasing Trading of
cultural licensing  of system  Renewable Strategic gasoil
products  and services products energy  investments  and leather Consolidated
e
(BfR4 HRREE
HEXLER WTEREH) HERGER  TREER  REMRE KER &4
HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000
F&r F&r FEr 273 23 273 Fér
Year ended 30 June 2019 HECE-1%
AAZTHLEE
Amounts included in the measure of  BRETE A RETK
segment profit or loss: ER/EE:
Depreciation biES 135 6,062 509 6 9 - 143
Fair value loss on financia RAARETABRL
assets at far value through SREE IR BEES
profit orloss - - - - 33,409 - 33,409
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WakoEER @
(continued)
(b) Segment information (continued) (b) DEER &
Technology
B
System sales
including
Sales of software Leasing of
cuttural  licensing and system Strategic Trading of
products services products  investments leather  Consolidated
Z5iE
(afEH
HENER WMERRR) BEZGER  FRERE K285 e
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$000
AT FET FEn THT TET AT
Year ended 30 June 2018 HZ-E-N%
AAZTALEE
Amounts included in the measure AR E A BEFIS
of segment profitor loss: BRZeE:
Depreciation nE 65 7,159 1,390 6 - 8,620
Fair value gain on financial assets at AN BEFABEZ
fair value through profit or loss SREEZAAEENE - - - 15077 - 15077
Impairment losses recognised for S E B EEE
inventories 4,222,621 - - - - 4,222,621
Impairment losses recognised for ~ SENE HE
iradle receivables EAAEEE - 411 - - - 411
Impaiment losses recognised for L EME B TR
other receivables HEEE - 583 - - - 5,835

No information about segment assets and liabilities
is presented as such information is not regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker for
resource allocation and performance assessment
purposes.

BRI B E R D B kKRB A E
HREERerRERHARIE
BENBEMEN BAEZ2IEF

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
(c) Geographical information

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group's revenue and non-current assets by location

WamEkoEES ®)

(c) HWEEHR

AEEDHREFP REEMEMHE
2 W R IFREE E D TR R

of customers and by location of assets respectively: Tk
Revenue Non-current assets (Note)
& FRBEE (M)
Year ended 30 June As at 30 June
BZRA=1THLEE RAB=+8
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hE -T2\ CB-AE T )\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
The People's Republic 7 %= A & A1 E
of China (the “PRC"), ([HE]) -
including Hong Kong ~ B1E&E#
and Macau K2 B P 241,698 6,011 141,258 218,200
Europe (mainly UK BN(EZE A
and Germany) TE K EE) 143,966 136,743 28,640 29,838
385,664 142,754 169,898 248,038

Note: Non-current assets exclude the Group's interest in a
joint venture and interest in an associate.

(d) Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

et ERBEETREARER —H
BEMCENR—HBE QR 2B -

(d) FEEFZEHN
RAEFEEEAEEHERERBG

contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group 10% 2B P=IT -
are as follows:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Customer A EFPA 121,632 -
Customer B ®FB 89,506 -

Customer A and B contributed revenue from sales of
gasoil during the year ended 30 June 2019.

No single customer contributed 10% or more to the
Group's revenue for the year ended 30 June 2018.

659 CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019

BE_Z-NFRAA=TBHILFE "
BEFARBHYE TUHHEREFHE
Bt o

2T NFENAZTHIFE
WERE-RXFEMASBEKZE10%
AL o



OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES
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—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

HlA -~ aE RIEE

2019 2018
—E-AF  —FN\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Interest income SR ON 3,173 2,176
Exchange (loss)/gain, net B (B1B) WS F5 (2,551) 369
Others (note) H A (Ha2) 4,641 9,776
5,263 12,321

Note: As at 30 June 2018, included in others are gain on early
redemption of promissory note payable amounting to

HK$3,444,000.

Wi - R—ZE—NFNAZ+AH EbaiEiR
5 RE Bl FE A SR 98 2 W5k 3,444,000 %8

7T|: °

8. FINANCE COSTS B 7 R AR
2019 2018
—Z-h#EF ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on other borrowings Hitnf& B 2 F8 30,937 40,257
Interest on promissory note payables JERF R 2 F B 9,493 10,377
Interest on finance lease payable RMEHEZFE 28 -
40,458 50,634

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR 659
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9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRMAIEE
2019 2018
—E-hF ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before taxation has been arrived BRERIBRENR
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 10(a)) EE=ME (Wt 106) 8,180 6,740
Staff costs excluding directors’ EBEERA(TEEEZEHE)
remuneration 78,795 84,075
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R4 A5t B3k (EEKRIN)
other than directors 2,168 3,634
Total staff costs BB AEE 89,143 94,449
Depreciation of property, plant and mME BERSREIZTE
equipment, included in general and GFA—RMERITBZEA)
administrative expenses (note 15) Kzt 15) 7,844 9,411
Auditor's remuneration % EEN B & 3,735 7.179
Cost of inventories recognised EERBIH 2 FERAR
as expense 299,350 67,007
Direct operating expenses relating to HICEMERBrEELERE
investment properties 796 771
Minimum lease payments paid under RREEHEEN 2 &ERE
operating leases in respect of: NRERIE
Rented premises HEWE 6,500 7,432
Motor vehicles AE 1,177 2,617

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors and chief executive’s remuneration

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefit of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 30 June 2019

10.

e M BHRNE
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—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

EEME  BEFALIRSRE
HEEME

(a) EBRTBEARZHNE
RBEEE R AEGIE 38BN IEE R
Al (RBEENDER) ROIF 28
BREZEEMWT

BE-ZE-NAFARA=Z+THLFE

Defined

contributions

and

Performance retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments

RERAR
HeR RIERR BAHRER Esme
ik HiRR  BHeRe HE 538 ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEx FEx FEx Tz

(note (i)}
Wiz (i)
Executive directors BTES
Ms. Wong Man Winny FgaL
(note (i) and (v)) (HzEn 2 w)

- the Company VNG 3,744 - - 18 3762
- Kantone -ER - - - - -
3,744 - - 18 3,762
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10. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION, INDIVIDUALS 10. EEME  BESHFATRENE

WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS AND BEMS @
SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)
(a) Directors and chief executive’s remuneration (a) ESRTHEZZHNE &)
(continued)
Defined
contributions
and
Performance  retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments
REMAR
ek RIERR BB EEHe
ik HpER  BRe#e HE 15228 By

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FiEx FiEx FEx FiEx FiEx
{note (i)
(Bt i)

Mr. Liu Ka Lim (note (i)

BERAEWZY)

— the Company VNG 2,600 - - 18 2,618
—Kantone -Ef - - - - -
.. %00 SR LA 2618
Mr. Gao Hong (note (x)) BERTENHE )
-the Compeny CARE s -t - -
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. To Yin Fong Cecilica itHEzT

(note (i) and (xi)) (0 &)
- the Company YN 480 - - - 480
- Kantone -EB 480 - - - 480
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, e S o
Mr. Chan Sung Wai BREELE

(note (xif) (B i)
- the Company YN 360 - - - 360

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s remuneration

(continued)

—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

10. EEME  BESHFATRENE
BEME 2

(a) ESRTHEZRZHNE &)

Defined

contributions

and

Performance  retirement

Salaries related benefit Total

and other incentive scheme directors’

Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments
REMHR

HeRk  RIERR BAER EEHe

ik HitER  BReKS HE 15228 By

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEn FEn FEn FEn FEn

(note (ij)
(Bt i)
Independent non-executive ~ BIUFHTEES
directors
Mr. Leung Man Fai (note (i) REEE ()
- the Company YN 120 - - - 120
- Kantone -ER 120 - - - 120
240 - - - 240
Mr. Chan Yik Hei RHFERE
-theCompany CRRR W ST -
Mr. Wong Yuk Man Edmand & & U504 (i (i)
(note (xii))
-theCompany -ARE 2w - - - 1o
8,144 - - 36 8,180
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, INDIVIDUALS 10. EEME  BESHFATRENE

WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s remuneration
(continued)

Year ended 30 June 2018

BEME 2

(a) ESRTHEZZHNE &)

BE-Z-N\EXRA=+HLEFE

Defined

contributions

and

Performance retirement

Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
REEHR
ek RIfRR RIRER e
ik AfbfEh  BRzKE R @
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET
(note (i)
(Wit i)
Executive directors BTES
Ms. Wong Man Winny BRT
(note (}) Wzt )
- the Company —ARA 2,484 - - 12 2,496
- Kantone i - - - - -
2,484 - - 12 2,496
Mr. Cheng Yang (note (il and (vi}) 28554 (A1) & (vi)
- the Company NG - 425 - 2 427
- Kantone i - - - - -
- 425 - 2 427
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s remuneration

(continued)

10.
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EEME BEFAIRESRE
BEME 2

(a) ESRTHEZRZHNE &)

Defined
contributions
and
Performance retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
REEFTR
ek RIffRB RIRER CELE
ik EfbEh  BERz%R HEIER ek
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET
(note (i)
(Wit i)
Mr. Liu Ka Lim frote (i) BRREE W)
— the Company YN 2,600 - - 15 2,615
- Kantone -E@ - - - - -
2,600 - - 15 2,615
Ms. Lei Leifnote ) and (vil) ~ FERLT (720 & i)
— the Company YN - 29 - - 29
- Kantone 5@ - - - - -
- 29 - - 29
Mr. Lin Xiang note (j and vif) ¥ 54 (Hi32 ) R i)
— the Company YN - 19 - - 19
-Kantone &3 - - - - -
- 19 - - 19
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s remuneration
(continued)

10. EEME ZEFATRESRE

BEME 2

(a) ESRTHEZZHNE &)

Defined
contributions
and
Performance retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
REEFTR
ek RIffRB RIRER CELE
ik EfbEh  BERz%R BE Lt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET
(note (i)
(Wit i)
Non-executive directors FUTES
Ms. To Yin Fong Cecilica itHEzT
(note () and (xi) (B2 b))
- the Company YN 277 - - - 277
- Kantone -EB 277 - - - 277
554 - - - 554
Mr. Chan Sung Wai REETLE
(note (xif)) (Hré# (i)
- the Company NG 219 - - - 219
Independent non-executive =~ BYXHTEE
directors
Mr. Zhang Jingzhi (note i) RERZ KA (M i)
- the Company YN 9 - - - 98
Mr. Dong Limin (note (ix)) ENRKEMWHE )
~ the Company YN 5 - - - 5
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, INDIVIDUALS 10. EEME  BESHFATRENE

WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS AND BEME 2

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s remuneration (a) ESRTHEZRZHNE &)
(continued)

Defined
contributions
and
Performance retirement
Salaries related benefit Total
and other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
REHTR
ek RIffRB RIRER CELE
ik EfbEh  BERz%R HEIER ek

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TEL TET

fnote (i)
R
Mr. Leung Man Fai ABERE
-theCompary CARE o S R -
Mr. Chan Yik Hei Ro% %4
-theCompary CARE o S R -
Mr. Wong Yuk Man Edmand &5 b4 (#fat (i)
(note (xii))
-teCompany ~~ ~Ap&g 38 - - - 3
6,238 473 - 29 6,740

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR @
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s remuneration
(continued)

Notes:

(i) The director is also a director of Kantone Holdings
Limited (“Kantone"”), a listed subsidiary of the
Company.

(ii) The performance related incentive payment is
discretionary as recommended by the remuneration
committee of the Company having regard to the
Group's financial results and performance of the
Directors.

(iii) The remuneration for non-executive directors
comprises directors’ fees and other emoluments
which vary with the number of committees in which
they serve.

(iv)  During the year, no emolument was paid by the
Group to any of the Directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or retirement from
employment with the Group or as compensation for
loss of office (2018: Nil). None of the Directors had
waived any emoluments in both years.

(v) Ms. Wong Man Winny was appointed as executive
director and chairperson of the board of directors of
the Company and Kantone on 19 October 2017.

(v Mr. Cheng Yang resigned as executive director and
Chairperson of board of directors of the Company on
15 August 2017.

(vii)  Ms. Lei Lei and Mr. Lin Xiang resigned as executive
directors of the Company on 7 July 2017.

(viii)  Mr. Zhang Jingzhi retired as independent non-

executive director of the Company on 28 December
2017.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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BEME 2
(a) ESRTHEZZHNE &)

Bzt

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

REFNAERREERAN ((F
B)2EF - FRAARAZL
THBRA -

BIERBRER RS BHIBIE
AR RzHHEREeRE
UBEAGEMBEEAREST
fERRMEE °

FRTESIHEeREESES
REMHE BFEEHEZE
SeHAEMmMABAMTR -

FAAEERBEREMNESX
FHE ERBRMAREERR
MAAREER 2 R EAEE
SEBHERBERE (—F—/\F:
) -MEFEAN HEEEUE
TR -

ERLLR T —EFTATA
AEZERAARNREBRNTE
EREREEER

BEEER-_Z—+tF N \A+H
HBEARRRTEERESS
Er

BELTRMEAER T —+
FHALRBEARANTES -

Rz RER_E—+EF+ A
ZHNBRERDRIFELIERT
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a)

Directors and chief executive’s remuneration

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Mr. Dong Limin resigned as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 11 July 2017.

Mr. Gao Hong was appointed as executive director of
the Company on 2 May 2019.

Ms. To Yin Fong Cecilica was appointed as non-
executive director of the Company and Kantone on 7
July 2017.

Mr. Chan Sung Wai was appointed as non-executive
director of the Company on 22 November 2017.

Mr. Wong Yuk Man Edmand was appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 8 March 2018.

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for

the executive directors and non-executive directors

are generally emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of those persons’ other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of

the Company and its subsidiaries.
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10. EEME  BESHFATRENE
BEME 2

(a)

EERTHEAE NS &)

Bzt ()

ix EBEBIREER-_ZT—LtFLA
T BEEARAEILIENITES -

X ®mEREERZZE-—NFEAZAH
BEZEARARRITES -

) MIAFLEIR-_FT-—EFLAL
REZERAREREBIFNT
EEo

REBEENR-_ZT—EF+—A
T RAEZERARAFEMIT
B%-

(xii)

BEEXAER_Z-NF=ZAN
RERERRRRBLIFNITES -

(xiii)
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, INDIVIDUALS
WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
(b) Employees with highest emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included two (2018: two) directors of the Company.
Details of the emoluments of those directors for
the year ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 during their
directorship period are set out above. The aggregate
emoluments of the three (2018: three) highest paid
employees of the Group, not being directors of the

10. EEME - BEFATIRSRE
BEME 2

(b) BEHFHEE
AEERREGRRFALTERREM
Z(ZE—N\F MB)AQBIES -
DEEERE_ZT-NER -
—N\FERAZT+HILFEIHRES
HEzHMEFBERR EX - AEHE
HHp =32 (CE—N\F: =R &S
HFEE (WIIARRESR) 2R

Company, are as follows: BT
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries and other benefits e RHEMEF 4,332 3,657
Performance related incentive BIERREB 2 ES
Payments 628 1,424
Retirement benefit scheme RRREFIFTEI R
Contributions 341 333
5,301 5,314

Emolument of three (2018: three) employees were
within the following band:

=R (ZE-NF:=ZR)RE ZH
SN FTIIEHE :

Number of employees

EEAY
2019 2018
—2-hE T )\F
HK$1,000,000-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,000 % 7 — 1,500,000 & 7T - -
HK$1,5600,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T — 2,000,000 & 7T 3 3

There were no amounts paid during the year (2018:
Nil) to the five highest paid employees in connection
with their retirement from employment with the
Group, or inducement to join.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
Year ended 30 June 2019

On 22 May 2019, the Group agreed to dispose of its entire
interest in Champion Renewable Energy Technology
Company Limited (“CRET") to an independent third party
for a cash consideration of HK$10,000.

As at the disposal date, the collective carrying amount of
net assets disposed of amounted to HK$17,000, mainly
representing other receivables of HK$12,000 and bank
balances of HK$5,000. The derecognition of non-controlling
interest amounted to HK$10,000. The net gain on disposal
of the subsidiary amounted to HK$3,000.

Year ended 30 June 2018

On 30 August 2017, the Group agreed to dispose of its
entire interest in Champion Technology Limited (“CTL")
to an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$300,000.

On 30 August 2017, the Group agreed to dispose of its
entire interest in Chinese Science & Technology Limited
("CST") to an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$100,000.

On 21 December 2017, the Group agreed to dispose of
its entire interest in Zhuo Chong Investments Limited
("ZCl") to an independent third party for a consideration of
HK$100,000.

As at the relevant disposal dates for the disposals of CTL,
CST and ZCl, the collective carrying amount of net liabilities
disposed of amounted to HK$965,000, mainly representing
cash and cash equivalents of HK$1,627,000, inventory of
HK$5,000, other receivables, deposits and prepayments
of HK$3,934,000, property, plant and equipment of
HK$921,000 and other payables and accrued charges of
HK$7,452,000. The net gain on disposals of subsidiaries
amounted to HK$1,465,000.

11.

—ZT—hF/NA=1+H 30 JUNE 2019

EME QB z k&

EZE-NEARAB=ZTHLEEE
NWERA=-Z+=-H KAEBRE
HEEREERBERERBEAERAR (B
ERLEHRRBRAERAT]) 22 BRET
—ZBIE=H BEEAR10,000E T -

aw
=
R-B—

REERY CHEEEFECREAE

17,0008 7= B 85 E Ab fE 58 12,000
BT R IRTT8 585,000/ 70 c WA IEFER

RIIEIERR IR R 2= 2 © 58 /4 10,0008 7T ©
Hj%ﬂﬁ% 12/?”&31%3,000/%75 °

E_E-N\EFEXRNA=THLEEE

R_EBE—+tFENA=+H AEBREEM
—EZBUE-FHEERBEREERA
A ([BERFEERAF) 222K E K
{& /300,000 7T °

RZE—tFN\A=1+H A£EERER
—RBUYUR=ZSTHEERPXHEAR
RAEA(HXNED 22HBE KER
100,000 7 7T ©

R=F—t&+-A=+—0 AKER
B EBUESSHERNSRREAR

RAR ((ERRE) 2 2 HRIE - REA
100,000‘}%73 °

REETERBEERAA A XEFER
SR E ZHEBEE R 965,000
TRZEBELHEEEFECEALETER
FR&RREE51,627,0008w &
5,000 7T B E MR - 2 e RFEHN
AR 373,934,000 70 - W% - WE k& E
921,000 7T - BT HMEZKETER
7,452,000 70  HE M B A A 2 FE
/41,465,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

12. INCOME TAX 12. F8%

2019 2018
—E-hF ZT-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current tax: BNHARH 1R -

— United Kingdom (“UK") corporate —HE([&E]) XS

income tax credit i) (1,059) (1,120
— Germany corporate income tax —ERCEMESH 405 407
— Malaysia corporate income tax — B REMEN 10 -
- Hong Kong corporate income tax —BBEMRGEN 247 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, B97) (713)

Deferred tax: BT IA -
__—Charged/(credited) for the year —FERfRER) 9 (77)
Income tax credit FRi8 ik & (348) (790)

UK corporate income tax is calculated at 19% (2018: 19%)
on the estimated assessable profit derived from UK.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Germany, the
Group is subject to corporate income tax at 15% (2018:
15%) on the estimated assessable profit of the subsidiary
which carried on business in Germany.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Malaysia, the
Group is subject to corporate income tax at 24% (2018:
24%) on the estimated assessable profit of the subsidiary
which carried on business in Malaysia.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 256% for both
years. For income generated in PRC earned by subsidiaries
incorporated outside PRC is subjected to withholding tax at
10% (2018: 10%). There is no estimated assessable profit
for PRC Enterprise Income Tax for both years.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2018:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits derived from
Hong Kong.

7N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

13.

INCOME TAX (continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss

—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

12. FrE%is)
AR 2 BB RGS AR R A MR E RS

before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or RGBS EEERENAT
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before taxation Fx %1 Bl BT 18 (71,123) (4,476,510)

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5%

REBNSHE165% (—ZF

(2018: 16.5%) — )\ :16.5% )t HE 2 1A (11,735) (738,624)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ FAE fth 7A 0 & 48 & 2 M B A 7

operating in other jurisdiction ZAEMER &8 (172) 74
Tax effect of income exempted or not R E A B A M [ T ER P SR A 3k

subject to taxation in other jurisdiction BERMMAZ R 2 (1,426) (7,018)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ HERFIE B NFH 2 2

tax purposes Hsge 3,675 733,500
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBIBEEE I MGETE 12,026 12,034
Tax effect of share of result of a joint EE—HAaELEXEY

venture ks - 1
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRBERERZHIBEE

recognised (2,634) (571)
Others Hpth (82) (186)
Income tax credit for the year FAFRGHER (348) (790)

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
30 June 2019 nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of reporting period (2018: Nil).

13. RE
BE-_T-—AGAAZTALEE TF
EESRBREEARS  AREHTLE
EMAREREREMBRE (ZT—\F
m) o
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14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. SREE

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to the
owners of the Company is based on the following data:

AR GE AR 2 SRR RS
THIE R -

2019 2018
—E-NF —F-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss for the year attributable to owners N2 A1 A A JE1G R E E E518
of the Company (72,177) (3,811,905)
‘000 ‘000
Number of ordinary shares TERR G E A Fig FHR
Weighted average number of ordinary AEEREREE L
shares for the purpose TR E
of basic loss per share 673,214 410,230

The weighted average number of shares for the purpose of
basic loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2019 has
been adjusted after taking into account of the rights issue
which was completed on 18 July 2018.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purposes of calculating basic loss per share for the year
ended 30 June 2018 has been adjusted after taking into
account the share consolidation occurred during the year
ended 30 June 2018 and the bonus element of the rights
issue which was completed on 18 July 2018.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2019 and
2018 were the same as the basic loss per share as there
were no potential ordinary shares outstanding during both
years.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. ¥1% - BMEK&E

e TR R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

Plant and
machinery
and
Landand - communications Furniture Motor
buildings networks  and fixtures vehicles Vessel Total
BE B8R
THRET BEAs FRREE AE il h
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
AT AT AT AT AT FAT
ot f}) (note (i) note )
(En) (ist) (W)
Cost HAE
At 1 July 2017 RZE-tFtA-A 30173 392,845 16,856 9,616 - 449,490
Currency realignment ik 502 7142 77 - - 7567
Additions hE - 6,516 24% 101 - 9,115
Acauisiton of subsidiries fnore 47/ WERBAR W24 - - - 1,962 - 1,962
Assets classified as ivestment properties A EBRENE EE
fnote i) (W) (1259%) - - - - (1259
Disposalsfwitten off bE /i - (15,543) (129) - - (15672
Disposal of subsidaries frote 77) HERBAR Ha211) - (106,934) (9,291) (0,615 - (125,840)
Moo REEARRAZIR . em ;o wr e S 31404
Currency realignment EHAE (491) (11,238) (10) - - (11739)
Additions TE - 6,862 60 1242 33,309 1473
Assets classified as investment properties B ARENEVEE
frote i) (W) 289 - (602) - - (3694)
Disposalshwriten off HE /Hi - (28 - (551) - (834)
MOne20t REENERAZTR ue me Mo 2 B 339280
TERHEEBEBRART ZE-NEFH

~

-
N
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—ZE—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y%  BEREZXE®

(continued)
Plant and
machinery
and
Landand - communications Furniture Motor
buildings networks and fixtures vehicles Vessel Total
BE BER
1HRET BRAL BiREE hE L) it
HKk$ 000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$000
AT AT AT AT AT FAT
fnote fj) fnote fiv) fnote ()
(W) (W) (Wt
Depreciation and impairment FERAE
M1y 2017 R-F-tEtA-B 12768 312,007 16,852 8676 - 410503
Currency realignment EiAE 122 6,617 (75) - - 6,664
Provided for the year FREE 532 8131 21 47 - 9411
Acauisiton of subsidiaries fnore 47/ WERBAR W24 - - - 1210 - 1210
Assets classified as ivestment properties ~ AEBRENEEE
fote i) (Hit) 1319 - - - - 71319
Fliminated on disposalsfwriten off HE /R - (15,484) (129) - - (15613
Disposal of subsidiaries (7ot /1) HERBRAHE11) - (106,870) (9,290) (8759 - (124.919)
At30Jne20t8 ] RIB-NErAZtE 618 . L [ [ S 27897
Currency realignment EiRE (357) (10,088) (10 - - [10,45)
Provided for the year EREE 3 6,674 601 537 - 7844
Assets classified as ivestment properties A EBRENEEE
fote i) (Hit) (1,697) - ) - - (1,724)
Fliminated on disposalsfwriten off HE /R - (275 - (115 - (390)
AtS0Jne20t9 ] RIB-AERAZHE e 0092 828 - 206 - S 275212
Carrying values BEE
At 30 June 2019 RZE-NEARZTA 10,613 18,455 902 739 33,309 64,018
At 30 June 2018 WZE-\ERRZTA 11,974 19,426 2218 470 - 34,087
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—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. W% - BMENRRZE @)

(continued)
At 30 June At 30 June
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
~A=+H ~NA=+H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FEIT
The carrying values of the Group's property AEEZ Y EEFERESE
interests comprise:
Freehold properties held outside Hong REBAINDRFFEKAEEZ
Kong (note (iii) Y (B (i) 10,590 10,885
Leasehold properties: HEWE :
Held in Hong Kong REBHH
- long leases —REIRD - 1,061
Held outside Hong Kong REBAIMN R TR
—long leases (note (v)) —REEY (M) 23 28
10,613 11,974
TERHEEBEBRART ZE-NEFH
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—Z—AFNA=1H 30JUNE 2019

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. M% - BERRE#)

(continued)

Note: Biaz -

(i) The Group leased equipment to customers on operating (i) AEEBRCEHESAHERBTER -
leases terms. As at 30 June 2019, the carrying value of such R-ZTE—NhEA=1+8H AEZEZ
equipment, which was included in plant and machinery and BRI {8 /& 253,000 L (ZF — )\ F :
communications networks amounted to HK$253,000 (2018: 265,000 70) ' EETAME - #2S i@
HK$265,000). EHREA -

(i)~ During the current year, the usage of the Group's property (iy  WAFE (881,970,000 BTt AW -
located in Hong Kong included in property, plant and BMEERSEBZASENRBEEZAETY
equipment amounting to HK$1,970,000 was changed from XRASEE BN ERENRAKEE
internal use to generation of rental income. Such property WA -ZEVEADVE  BERZH
was transferred from property, plant and equipment to EM AR EYE - REYFENER A
investment properties. The fair value of the investment WARBEDBREFREIEARAAR
properties at the date of transfer of the properties from —E-NEFEXRA=ZTHHANGKERS
property, plant and equipment to investment properties was BEE ZRERFAMBHLBIAET
based on the valuation reports as at 30 June 2018, issued FE-AEBEEERA MENEE
by Stirling Appraisals Limited, by using market comparable HENAAEBEEYER =T —\FX
approach. The management of the Group considered the A=+TH®HAREBEBEES - KRB H
fair value of the properties as at the date of transfer was a ZANBEEZEVXERAECEZES
close approximation to the fair value of the properties as at #13,431,000/ 8 TREE =T — NF X
30 June 2018. The difference in fair value and the carrying A=THIEFERIABMESEHER -
amounts of the properties at the date of transfer amounted
to HK$13,431,000 was recognised in property revaluation
reserve for the year ended 30 June 2019.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, certain of the Group's HE_ZTZ-N\FAA=1+HILEFE &
properties located in Hong Kong included in property, plant B5,279,000 B Tt A% - B FE k&
and equipment amounting to HK$5,279,000 were changed in BAEBURERBZETYERSESR
use from internal use to earn rental income. Such properties g omASMERERAKRIAS WA -
were transferred from property, plant and equipment to ZEVMEBME BERIEER AL
investment properties. The fair value of the investment EME -R_ZT—+tFN\A=1THMW
properties as at 30 August 2017 (date of transfer of the EXEUME BEAXBEEREREDE
properties from property, plant and equipment to investment WA REVENAAEBEDIRE
properties) is based on the valuation reports as at 30 June Hilco Global Greater China Limited A =%
2017, issued by Hilco Global Greater China Limited, by —NFRNA=ZTHEANGFHERE AE
using market comparable approach. The management of £ ZRERFERAMIGHLEREITIEE -
the Group considered the fair value of the properties as AEBETEERAL WEREZHAN
at date of transfer is approximated to the fair value of the AREBEAYER-_T—NFA=T
properties as at 30 June 2018 as there was no significant BRAREBEEE B N\FEX
change in the properties market in Hong Kong subsequent A=+HZ2-ZZ—LFN\A=1THEHEFE
to 30 June 2017 up to 30 August 2017. The difference in fair METSWBRERNESH RERBH
value and the carrying amounts of the properties at the date ANEEAZEYXEEEC 2SR
of transfer amounted to HK$73,221,000 was recognised 73,221,000 TRBEZE =T — \F XA
in property revaluation reserve for the year ended 30 June ZtALFERRAMESAHE -
2018.

The management of the Group considered that no deferred AEBEEEERA - REBURE
tax is necessary as the properties of the Group located in BHMEREEBAECHRIE  ZZEWE
Hong Kong are not held within a business model whose WHEEBERAANZE HENSERE
objective is to consume substantially all economic benefits BHEEZSREVEMBESHBARI
embodied in the investment properties over time. DECEF 2R o

(i) As at 30 June 2019, property, plant and equipment (i MZZT—AFNA=Z+H A£EE@
of the Group with the aggregate carrying amounts of 418 410,590,000 L (ZZE— N\F:
HK$10,590,000 (2018: HK$10,885,000) have been pledged 10,885,000 70) W% - BB REHBE
as collaterals for the defined benefit retirement scheme of WERIERRNBEEENE THERAR
certain subsidiaries operated in UK. B E REAR MR AREH SR R ©

(ivi  As at 30 June 2019, property, plant and equipment of the iv) RZZ—hFRA=+H A£EHYE -
Group with carrying amounts of HK$739,000 (30 June 2018: 5 f =% 5 7 BR T (B /% 739,000 7 7T (=
Nil) was accounted for as assets held under finance lease. T-NFNA=1+H 8B ARER

EMBFENEE -

(v) Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property, plant (v) B 3t B TR D TR A] SE st Bl
and equipment as the allocations between the land and BEANGRCHEELHEFT AYE - K
buildings elements cannot be made reliably. FESES

(vl During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group acquired a Vi) #HEZZFE-NAFAA=ZTHLEFE X
vessel amounting to HK$33,309,000 with details set out in SEEE T — B 12E33,309,000%
note 32. 7T AIEERMIEE32 0

—
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—ZT—hF/NA=1+H 30 JUNE 2019

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWE

Properties Properties
located in located in
Hong Kong the PRC Amount
BEBYE HRE Y3 k-
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FEIT FET FET
At 1 July 2017 R-ZZE—tFtA—H 14,300 39,794 54,094
Currency realignment P& 3 & - 7,930 7,930
Addition NE 3,607 - 3,607
Addition through acquisition of FRBWENBARIRE
subsidiaries (note (i) and note 41)  (#1at () R H1i£41) - 174,596 174,596
Transfer from property, plantand ~ E B8 ¥%¥ - BER&E
equipment (note 15) (et 15) 78,500 - 78,500
Fair value gain on investment RBAFEMBBRENE
properties acquired in prior year ZAnEEKE 22,193 5,173 27,366
Fair value loss on investment RAFERBEREMEZ
properties acquired in current NABEEE (K2 0)
year (note (i) - (178,259) (178,259)
At 30 June 2018 RZZE—N\FA=+H 118,600 49,234 167,834
Currency realignment PE 3 & - (171) (171)
Transfer from property, plantand ~ EE Y% - BE M&E
equipment (note 15) (Ha£15) 15,400 - 15,400
Fair value gain on investment RBEFEMBREREE
properties acquired in prior year ZAnEEkE 33,100 2,255 35,355
Transfer to assets held for sale EERFEHEECEE
(note 25) (Bt5t25) (154,400) - (154,400)
Carrying value at 30 June 2019 R=-ZE—hAEAXA=+HZ
BRMEE 12,700 51,318 64,018
TERHEEBEBRART ZE-NEFH
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—ZT—NFNA=1+H 30JUNE 2019

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REWH*E )
Notes: Hiat -

of subsidiaries during the year ended 30 June 2018 are
recognised initially at cost. As at the date of acquisition, the
initial carrying amount of the investment property based on
its acquisition cost amounted to HK$174,596,000 (see note
41).

In the opinion of the Directors, currently there are no
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC which precisely
state the arrangements for extension of the land use rights
in the PRC after the end of the contractual lease term.
As mentioned in note 41, the Group acquired 2 pieces of
leasehold land in the PRC with contractual lease terms
expiring in 2032 and 2043 during the year ended 30 June
2018 with a hotel property being erected on the 2 pieces of
leasehold land and with a tenancy agreement with a hotel
operator expiring near the end of the contractual lease term
of one of the leasehold land (i.e. 2033). As mentioned in
note 41, the acquired assets mainly included 2 elements:
one was a finance lease receivable representing the right to
receive rental from the tenant till the end of lease term (i.e.
2033) and the other was an investment property representing
interest in a leasehold land with the remaining lease term
from the end of the lease term with the hotel operator (i.e.
2033 to 2043). The management noted that leasehold land
in the PRC are commonly treated as operating leases until
the end of the relevant lease term with no assumption that
the lease term can be further extended.

As at 30 June 2019 and 2018, the fair value of the
investment property element was determined by adjusted
market comparison approach by a) making reference to
comparable sales of bareland with lease term of 40 years;
b) adjusted for the term factor using the valuation technique
to estimate value of bareland with lease term of 10 years as
at 2033; and c) take into account the time value of money
at discount rate of 6% from 2033 to 30 June 2019 and
2018 respectively. Accordingly, compared with the carrying
amount of the investment properties element recognised
on initial recognition which was determined after taking into
account the fair value of the consideration paid to acquire
the assets, fair value loss of HK$178,259,000 (based on
spot exchange rate) was recognised for the year ended 30
June 2018. No material fair value loss for the year ended 30
June 2019, the fair value of related investment properties
as at 30 June 2019 amounted to HK$4,097,000 (2018:
HK$4,267,000). The fair value as at 30 June 2019 and 2018
was performed by an independent firm of professional
valuers, Stirling Appraisals Limited.

The fair value of other investment properties of the Group as
of 30 June 2019 have also been valued by Stirling Appraisal
Limited, by using market comparable approach.

(i) The investment properties acquired through acquisition (i R-ZT—NEXNA=1+HILEBUENH

BARIUIE 2 IREMETIRK AN L
ReRNBBEAE HEMEREIWER
AErE 2 ¥ REE A 174,596,000 7% 7T
(RBKIzE41) -

ARAREERE BRiRETEMREE
BRERBERIAREHNEERLERE
MR AR A A 2 B o SR B R
At REE-ZE—NEA=1+H
LHFE AEERTERKBERAAEL
HWEHAGNWEERR _TE=Z_FR_F
M=FEm)  AREARREE L
TBEME RBEEERI L2
FihEgnEn P —mHAEt 24
NHERERBEH BT ==4F) -
BN 4 Pl T EEX B 0IE
MIEE S — @A REKEE S RE -
AAEFESHEREEEMERR
(BZZ==F)NEHN S—E@BAREE
ME KRRAFEEERZANEER
HEREBEOEIZZE=Z=ZF=2-_TN=F) 2
BTITHEH2HAEL R BEET
BTEEEL I —REEAKEHE
HEEABAEESER BXTBRERAE
HA[ i — R -

RZZE-—NEFER=_ZT—N\FXA=1+H8"
BEMELDANBEDRACHARZ
MBS EBAEE  Z A EAMBHOERE
REMBEENTEZ) L EMABEAIF
T EE D) RAGERTRERR
EZEEARUGHR -_ZEZ=ZFHY A
10F M = EE - Ko Lat R BaE
HMEEA - E==FZEZ_T—hLhEKk=
F-NEFENA=ZTHIRBRRE%AE -
Elt - HERV P HERREEROEZEY
¥BOMEEEKERKBEEDHR
BHNARBERET) REEZZT—AN
FRA=THIEFERRT 178,259,000
BILZ AABEEBE (BIERIHIE =&
) BHE_ZT-NAFAA=T+THLHTF
E-WESEARAAEBEEE - BREAKE
MER-_ZT—NWERA=ZTHZARE
B /4,097,000 (=Z — J\4F : 4,267,000
BL) R_ZE-AFANA=Z+HE-Z
—NEXNAZ+BZARBEHBLE
EAEMPETEBRARTE -

AEER-ZE-NFRAZTBZEAM
BREWMEXZ ARBETHPEFGEAR
REME RIS BOREITHE -

—
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17. DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR SYSTEMS
AND NETWORKS

17.

e M BHRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

B I AR A B B AR

2019 2018
—E-NE —E—)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost A E
At the beginning of the year F9 13,769,936 13,769,936
Written-off A (13,769,936) -
Attheendoftheyear A T......13769,936
Amortisation and impairment BHRRE
At the beginning of the year F9 13,769,936 13,769,936
Written-off e (13,769,936) -
Attheendoftheyear  F& = 13,769,936
Carrying value REE
At the end of the year F i - -

Development costs for systems and networks include all
direct costs incurred in setting up and development of
systems and networks.

R EEHAERNABRRIIMFAERR

K a2 A BN o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

17. DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR SYSTEMS 17. R RBEFABRA #)

AND NETWORKS (continued)

In prior years, the directors of the Company reassessed
the market conditions in Asia Pacific region for the Group’s
systems and networks and considered that they were
worse than previously expected. Further, no revenue
in Asia Pacific region was generated from the system
sales including software licensing and services segment
business. Management conducted an impairment review
of the Group’s system sales including software licensing
and services segment business in Asia Pacific region. The
impairment assessment took into account the fact that
no further development costs would be provided by the
Group for that segment after granting the independent
third parties non-executive rights to exploit and use the
design of certain of the Group's developed systems
and networks during the year ended 30 June 2016. The
recoverable amount based on the value in use method was
estimated as zero and accordingly, full impairment loss of
HK$49,199,000 was recognised in profit or loss in prior
year.

As at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2019, the management
of the Group considered the zero recoverable amount of
the development costs for systems and networks was
appropriate and no reversal of impairment was considered
necessary. As at 30 June 2019, the fully amortised and
impaired development costs for systems and networks
were written off.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

RBEFE  AARBEEEFIEAEET
REMBERE AR Z TR REBERBE
TEHEZE - IbIh ZRMEE (RIERMEF
FFRERRE) P EEBTEREAME
EXFAlz - BEELHASEREA
&7 ZEHE (BRI RS o
BEBETRESERN - REFGHETER
HEZ—ARENAZTHILFEERTS
NEZAHEBREFUABEREADS A
EEARRGERBELTE  AEEET
SRR EE—FREABKAR - LUEA
BEFEZAMNESEGHAT  Eite
HUREET18 49,199,000 B TE RN IBEFE
ZIBEHER ©

RIZE—NERNAZTAER-Z—HLEX
A=+H ZXEEEEBERAZRGLBG
kAN RESEASBEE

BARLRE R-_E—AFEA=1H"
BAREREC R R BEREK AT B -

R—BEBE QT2 R

2019 2018

—E—-hF TN\

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Unlisted shares, at cost JELEMBRAES - KA 2 -
Share of post-acquisition losses FE(h UL 12 518 - -
2 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) . R—EBERR 2 ER @)
Particulars of the Group's associate at 30 June 2019 and FRZZF-NAERZFT-N\FRNA=Z+THRK
2018 are as follows: SEZAEREZFBNT
Proportion of
Principal nominal value of
Place of place of Class of issued capital
Name of company incorporation operation shares held held by the Group Principal activity
Bl g fi%E AEERRERT
NAER W mEHY kbl RAEEZ A TEER
2019 2018
ZB-NE —E)\E
Champion Oriana Power Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 20% - Provision of solar energy and
Management Limited related products
(“Champion Oriana Power")
BEENZHBERAA A A LBk 20% - REAGEARABEERHE
(BEENZH))

Champion Oriana Power, the only associate in which the
Group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose
quoted market price is not available.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group'’s

FLETEEERTEENEREEREE
EE—28 RERE HIWEMEAREMN -

AEER—HBERAR 2 EE I HEER

interest in an associate, which is prepared using accounting MERBFMRA ST - JHRER
policies in conformity with the accounting policies adopted FEPTIRAZ BEHHR — 8 WARRE
by the Group and accounted for using the equity method, ABR - BB EHI|IT -
is set out below:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total assets BERE 10 -
Total liabilities BERSE - -
10 -
Revenue e - -
Loss and total comprehensive AFEBEREZES LA
expense for the year - -
TERHEEBEBRART ZE-NEFH

=)

e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

19. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. R—EEELF 2 Em
2019 2018
—B-hE T )\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of unlisted investment in a joint R—EEEREZIE LTI
venture BB 500 500
Share of post-acquisition loss FE(G IR 12 51 (51) (48)
449 452
Particulars of the Group's joint venture at 30 June 2019 and FR-ZZFE-NALEZFT-N\FRNA=Z+AHR
2018 are as follows: SEEEREZFBOT
Proportion of
Principal nominal value of
Place of place of Class of issued capital
Name of company incorporation operation shares held held by the Group Principal activity
Eau £ Jiig=2-] REBRBERT
NRER it BeEny {75l BAmEZ LA TEEY
2019 2018
ZE-NE It S i:3
Hungary Hongkong Innovation Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50%  Promoting, developing and
Investment Limited marketing of innovative products
("Hungary Hongkong") and solutions
TN EBEFREERAR B B LRk 50% 50% REBERRARREMGEE AT
((aF7E%]) Ris5HE RS
Hungary Hongkong, the only joint venture in which the LM EERBATFNEEAAEE K —
Group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose 2EEEDE  EWEMBRE -

quoted market price is not available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.

—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continved) 19. R—BEELE 2 @)
Summarised financial information in respect of the AEER—HEELE RV BER
Group’s interest in a joint venture, which is prepared using FERBEBMEAZETHE - JHiRER
accounting policies in conformity with the accounting SEFTERM 2T BER — 8 WA RE
policies adopted by the Group and accounted for using the AR HZEEH T -

equity method, is set out below:

2019 2018

—ZE-h#EF —ET-N\F

HK$000 HK$000

FET FET

Total assets EEEE 899 925

Total liabilities BfERE - (21)

899 904

Revenue & - -
Loss and total comprehensive expense AFEEBEBLEAES LB

for the year (6) (14)

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

20. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE 20. ERmEHRERE
Present Present
value of value of
Minimum Minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEEE BEHE BREHEENE SEEEHE
A HE ZRE ZBE
As at As at As at As at
30 June 2019 30June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
RZZB-hE RKRIZ-\F RZE-LE RZIZ-N\F
~A=1H ~A=t1H AA=1+H ~A=t1H
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000
FE FET FET FET
Within one year —FR 4,438 4,622 4,309 4,488
In the second to fifth year, ECERF(BREEMT)
inclusive 17,753 18,489 15,641 16,290
Over five years AFNRE 37,724 43,912 26,101 29,827
59,915 67,023 46,051 50,605
Less: Uneamed finance income &l : AEHEE A (13,864) (16,418)
Present value of minimum lease ~ S{XEUHEFEZRE
payment receivables 46,051 50,605
Represented by W51 R IEFR
Current portion EEE 7 4,309 4,483
Non-current portion R H 4,742 46,117
46,051 50,605

As disclosed in note 41, the assets acquired by the Group
included a finance lease receivable. The effective interest

rate applicable to the finance lease is approximately 3.96%

per annum.

The tenant mentioned in note 41 had made payments in

AN EE AT Pl - AEBEWE 2 BEFTA

EMEBMERSENIE BREHRE

MERFMEH3.96% °

i B

MEs it 2 PR ENEP REHEN

accordance with the contractual tenancy arrangement and
had a good repayment record in prior years. Accordingly,
the management of the Group considered that the
credit risk is low and no provision for impairment loss is
considered necessary.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

INVENTORIES 78
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials Fr 7,352 7,185
Work in progress TR 6,352 5,170
Finished goods (notes) X e (B7L) 44,143 20,594
57,847 32,949

Notes: Wit -

(i)

(ii)

Included in finished goods are gasoil of HK$25,275,000
(2018: Nil) and cultural products (including precious stones
and antiques) of HK$12,428,000 (2018: HK$12,763,000)
respectively, which are held for trading and resale in the
ordinary course of business.

As at 30 June 2019 and 2018, all the cultural products of
the Group were stored in a secured warehouse run by a
world-renowned security solution company, which is an
independent third party to the Group.

(i)

(ii)

YR REERAEEBBRRERBEESR
MEEE 7 /78 25,275,000 T (ZZF— )\
FEELT)ENLER(BELEE
K47 55) 12,428,000 87T (=T — \4&F :
12,763,000 7T) °

R=B-NERZZ-NERA=TA -
AREZHAERD RN Bt
RABHZRADORBER - KZR
ARARKEBLESS -

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

21. INVENTORIES

Notes. (continued)

(iii)

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group
engaged GEM Appraisal Center of Peking University (1t &
b K8 f B F F L) (the “Appraisal Center”) to conduct
a scientific examination of 360 pieces of cultural products
regarding their grading and classification. According to the
Appraisal Center, further downgradings and reclassifications
were required to be made on cultural products as compared
to those as at 30 June 2017. The management of the Group
arranged the valuer, It R Bl A5 B A B R QA to
reassess the market values of all 368 pieces of cultural
products as at 30 June 2018 based on the finding of a team
of cultural product and jewellery expert (“Experts”) from
“China Cultural Heritage Information and Consulting Center”
led by Ms. YANG Zhen Hua (#5 E %) and the Appraisal
Center concerning the grading and classification of 8 pieces
and 360 pieces of the cultural products respectively. Based
on the result of the final authentication report and evaluation
report for the valuation of the cultural products as at 30
June 2018, the management of the Group determined
that their net realisable values were below their costs
and the shortfalls resulted in further impairment loss, of
HK$4,222,621,000 for the year ended 30 June 2018.

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group
engaged the valuer, t R ZEERTHEER QA to
reassess the current market values of all 368 pieces of
cultural products as at 30 June 2019 based on the finding of
the Experts and the Appraisal Center concerning the grading
and classification of 8 pieces and 360 pieces of the cultural
products respectively. There is no significant change to the
market value of the cultural products during the year ended
30 June 2019. As a result, in the opinion of the Directors,
no further impairment loss or reversal of impairment is
considered necessary for the year ended 30 June 2019.

The Directors were of the view that, with the detailed
exercise performed by the Appraisal Center, the carrying
amount net of impairment recognised so far, reflected in the
consolidated financial statements, was the best estimate of
the recoverable amount of the cultural products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

22. BRWE S K HAMIRK

2019 2018

—E-NF —E—)N\F

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables (note) FEWE S RF (HiE) 71,360 30,575
Other receivables P LS EL i BR 3R 19,208 21,699
Less: provision for impairment losses R ERE (8,724) (8,7561)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 10484 = 12,948
81,844 43,523

Note:

The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy regarding its trade
customers depending on their credit worthiness, nature of services
and products, industry practice and condition of the market with
credit period ranging from 30 days to 180 days. The Group's credit
policy for sales of cultural products is cash on delivery.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (after impairment allowance)
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period
is as follows:

Hiat

AEEREEGRFPETHEZEERR - R
BEEZER RERERZHEE - 1TRBRE
KB EAMBETFELNTI0RE10REE
H-AEERBEEVLERMZEERR AT E
ke

B E SR OREREBER) KRS &R
BERAHZREDT27/0T

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

0-60 days 0-60 H 66,281 28,622
61-90 days 61-90 H 3,453 1,896
91-180 days 91-80H 625 57
Over 180 days HBiE180H 1,001 -
71,360 30,575

Before accepting any new customer, the Group's finance and
sales management team would assess the potential customer’s
credit worthiness and define the credit limit accordingly for the
customers. Credit limits attributable to customers are reviewed
regularly with reference to past settlement history and where
appropriate, information about their current reputation. The Group's
finance and sales management team considers trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality
as continuous repayments have been received.

REMEMFEFH  AREZHBEREEE
BERGFHEERPZEEE WAL ENY
REFPZEEE -BTEPZEEHEEZ2E
BEARTHEREEENBRT  REENE
BEEMMH AEPHEEENR AKEZ
M RHEEREBRR R RAR K RMEZE
WESERABRIFEELE -

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Note: (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivable (after impairment
allowance) that are neither individually nor collectively considered

22. BEIWE G K EHAMBR ()
Wit - (48)

ARk K REE BT EREZ EKRE SRR O
ERER) ZREANWAT

to be impaired are as follows:

2019 2018
S -2 N%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Neither past due norimpaired | BAmMALARME 626 28,622
Less than 1 month past due wE LR —@A 853 1,896
1 to 3 months past due i —==A 280 57
Past due over 3 months EHARR B 3 A 1,001 -
234 1,953
71,360 30,575
23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. MARBEFAEBZEZEMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unlisted equity investments IEEmRARE
— Companies A, B, C and D (note (i) —RaA B, CED (B M) - -
— Company E (note (i) — A alE (K722 i) 1,965 -
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong BB LR E (A7 (i)
(note (iif)) 49,646 110,786
51,611 110,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THR

Notes:

(i)

OUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

These companies are private entities incorporated
outside Hong Kong which held strategic investments
that were involved in information technology and
telecommunications industry. As at 30 June 2017,
the management of the Company considered
that there was a general downturn in the market.
Furthermore, the management had not received
the necessary financial and other information of
these investments nor been able to establish
contacts with these investees. Accordingly,
management has assessed the recoverable amount
of these investments based on the limited financial
information from or about these investments and
management’s own experience. These investments
were written down to their recoverable amount of nil
and an additional impairment loss of HK$418,296,000
was charged to profit or loss for the year ended 30
June 2017.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the
management continued to make its efforts to
try to establish contact with the investees. The
management exhausted all means practically
possible, including engagement of legal advisors
and private investigators, to locate and contact the
disappeared management of the investee companies
and to try to recover part of investment amount. The
Directors after taking into account a) the findings by
the investigators; b) the legal advice from the legal
advisers; c) the various options suggested by the
legal advisers, where the estimated cost to perform
the actions would significantly exceed the benefit,
and d) there is no other alternative or possible further
action that the Company could reasonably take. As
at 30 June 2018, the Directors concluded that the
recoverable amount of the investments was zero. As
at 30 June 2019, the investments were written off.

23.

—ZT—hF/NA=1+H 30 JUNE 2019
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—ZE—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

On 29 March 2019, Allied Joy (Hong Kong) Limited
("Allied Joy"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and two other independent third parties entered into an
agreement for the establishment of Company E, which was
incorporated in British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with limited
liability. Allied Joy subscribed for 25 ordinary shares of total
US$250,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,965,000)
of Company E. Pursuant to the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of Company E, it required more than 50% of
the voting rights of shareholders to pass all the resolution
(including appointment and removal of directors of Company
E. The other two shareholders, together hold 75% of the
equity interests of Company E, have joint control over
Company E and appointed all directors in Company E. Upon
the completion of the capital contribution, the Group holds
25% of equity interest in Company E. The Group has not
appointed any director in the board of directors of Company
E which is responsible for making decisions of the relevant
activities of Company E. In this regard, the Directors
conclude that the Group does not have significant influence
over Company E and hence conclude that the investment in
Company E is accounted for as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss of the Group.

The fair values of the listed shares in Hong Kong are
determined based on the quoted market closing prices
available on the Stock Exchange.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group's listed financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss with carrying amount of
HK$81,638,000 were pledged to secure margin facilities
granted by licensed securities companies in Hong Kong to
the Group. The margin loan was fully settled during the year
ended 30 June 2019.

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a)

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

The cash and cash equivalents comprise short-term
deposits with maturity of three months or less and

cash held by the Group.

Certain bank balances and cash of HK$22,953,000
(2018: HK$47,644,000) were denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is not freely convertible
currency in the international market. The remittance
of these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange
restrictions imposed by the Government of the PRC.
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(ii)

(iii)

—hFE=ZRA=-thB XRAFH
2EMBARER (BH) BRAR (E
18] BB INRAI BB = RIS T AL
ARAIEMWE  ZARERBHERRE
E((XBEBEABEE ) MR AA
REMLAA - ERMARERE T 25
LB A - 4 5H250,0003% T (FHER L
1,965,000/ 7T) - RIBABIEMMEBER
KEFMAE - A RZE(BIEAREES
HEMmFAESR) B ARERHRERBIBE0%
WEZEROBRES BB BIMAR

AFEBEBERREZT5% MM - At

P HEES T ARE  WED T AAE
BARBES TROEIER AEERXE

NAEEZ25% WHE - AEEEAREE
=ghUREEREST MREFSH
BEHARENEREEEITIRE - EE
THEFRRARERBERENTE D

WHEILEHER ST EEE R TEE’J&
EWERARAREEFEAEZHFA
EHEENEREE -

BB LR 2 A BE TR 2 P T
BHOMHKTEETE -

R-ZZE—NEXNA=Z+B AE£EEER
{8 /481,638,000 LiZ A L BEFT AR
HZLITeRMEED KT WERSE
BREBLHARAAEERHZRES
BE -ZRESBEEFR-_ZT—NEF
NAZTBEBEREHERE -

24, HeRBEESEE

(a)

RekReFHEERIPAR=(E
ASRUAZERFREANEEFE

ZHE -

A#22,953,0008 L (ZZF— N\F :
47,644,000 70) 2 & TRITE SR K
RETUARE (ARY]DEE
MAREWIEATRBEERETISZE B L
Bz EEE - hF .Eﬁngﬁﬁééﬁ
S E BT E 2 INEE HIFTARR



24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below shows the detailed changes in
the Group's major liabilities arising from financing

e M BHRNE
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—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

24, RERBEEEH @)

(b) BREFBFELEEGENHERER

TR ASEERELTDAESE
TRRENEYH (BRAS KRS

activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. HE)) G o
Interest-bearing Amount
bank and other Promissory due to Other
borrowings  note payable a director payables
(note 31) (note 32) (note 29) (note) Total
HERTR Efi-5%2
AfE  EARREE FE EHEMES
(W31 iR (Wiz29) i) )
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET AT FET FET
Mtdy2t? b R-®-t¥tA-R weH S S S 213611
Financing cash flow: RERSRE:
Drawdown of margin loans BROZRELER 100,098 - - - 100,098
Loan from a director RE-REZEH - - 4780 - 4780
Repayment of bank and other borrowings B ERTRAMEE (21,099) - - - (21,099
Repayment of promissory note payable  EEEREFZE - (36,9501 - - (36,950)
Repayment to a director EE-7E27H - - (600) - (600)
Repayment of other payables EEEAEMES - - - (6,155 (6,155
Interest paid BfifE (40,257) (199) - - (40,456)
S ../ S B9 aeo 1% 618
Cureney edigrment B BREE B SR S SR
Other changes AE8
Transfer to other payables EREFEMER - - 9,975) 9975 -
Purchase of investment properties BRRENEAFEE
through acquisition of subsidiaries RENEZAF - 86,209 - - 86,209
(Gain on early redemption REBO ME - 3.444) - - 3,444)
Finance costs BBRA 40,257 10,377 - - 50,634
. - LS 1 S b 997 133399
At 30 June 2018 R=8-NFRAZTH 282,728 56,993 4180 3820 37,721
TERHEEBEBRART ZE-NEFH

S

&/

o
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 24. BRERBEEEE @
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BRIEFBMELEEENHIER
financing activities (continuead) (#&)
Interest-
bearing Promissory Amount Finance

other note duetoa lease Other

borrowings payables director payable payables
(note 31) (note 32) (note 29) {note 30) (note 26) Total

e Ef-%  EA#RE 30
HitfgE BAERREE E3RE HERE  HEEX @t

(Waz31)  (Wirsz)  (HE29)  (WiEso)  (Wit2e)
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
THET TEL TET THET TEL TET

At 1July 2018 R-EB-N\5tA-H 282,728 56,993 4,180 - 3,820 347,721
Financing cash flow: MERERE:
Capital element of finance ERREEEN

lease paid BEARED - - - (69) - (69)
Repayment of bank and other ERRITRAM

borrowings EE (63,783) - - - - (63,783)
Drawdown of margin loans BEROZREGER 13,783 - - - - 13,783
Repayment of margin loans EERERER (2,728) - - - - (2,728)
Interest paid BRFE (30,937) (640) - (28) - (31,605)

(83,665) (640) - 97) - (84,402)

Currency realignment EHEE - 93 - - - 93
Other changes Hitt# 5
Purchase of property, plant RNENE  BE

and property B - 32,823 - 700 - 33,523
Finance costs B 30,937 9,493 - 28 - 40,458
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, %097 4236 - 78 - 3%
At 30 June 2019 R-Z-hA&EXA=1A 230,000 98,762 4,180 631 3,820 337,393
Note: Bt -
Included in other payables is amount due to previous EREMERBRERMIES(ER=F
director whom resigned on 15 August 2017. —tFENA+HRBET) FE -

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019



25. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE

(a)

Disposal of (1) Very Happy International Limited;
(2) Happy Union Development Limited; (3) Lucky
Success Development Limited; (4) Lucky Tone
Investments Limited and (5) Chief Champion Limited
(the "Disposal Group A")

On 22 March 2019, Champion (Cook Islands) Limited
and KTT (Cook Islands) Limited (collectively, the
“Vendors A"), direct wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company, Gold Trinity International Limited (the
"Purchaser A"), an independent third party and the
Company (the “Vendors’ Guarantor”), entered
into a provisional sale and purchase agreement (the
"Provisional S&P Agreement A"), in which the
Purchaser A would acquire the entire issued share
capital of and all debt owing by the Disposal Group
A to each of the Vendors A as at completion at a
cash consideration of HK$125,000,000. The assets
and liabilities of the Disposal Group A have been
classified as a disposal group held for sale.

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising
the Disposal Group A classified as held for sale are
as follows:

e M BHRNE
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25. DERFFHEZEERAR

(

a)

HEMAREBRBEAER AR - (2 25
BEARAR QEREREERA
Al AHFBREEARARKEGTE
BRAF([HEABIA]) -

RZZE-—HAE=ZAZ=_+=8"
Champion (Cook Islands) Limited &
KTT (Cook Islands) Limited (%t & -
[ZEEBRA]) (ARAEEZ2EN
BAF)  —EHERARAF(ER
AD(—RBBUE=F) RARR(E
RRBAD FILBERHEEHZ ([
BREBEWMEAD Bt ERAKE
BELEHENANEPEHITRA
RERRENEGERERANEE
7%+ #8 X {8 %125,000,000% 7T ©
BHEANANEERBEEDEAR
ERE R SR

BREEANANTITEEERAE
EDBERFIERENHNT -

At 30 June
2019
R-B—-h#&
NA=t+H
HK$000
FET
Assets BE
Investment properties measured AR REBEEH
at fair value "EYE 120,800
Other receivables JFE LA L A BR 3K 15
Assets classified as held for sale D MEABFIEHE 2 EE 120,815
Liabilities BfE
Other payables P E AL BR X 221
Liabilities associated with assets B2 9 48 A {EH &1
classified as held for sale BEMRBRNaE 221

As the consideration was expected to exceed the net
carrying amounts of the relevant assets and liabilities
attributable to the Disposal Group A, no impairment
loss has been recognised.

mRERRESEELESARAN
HEEERABNREFE W&
ABRMWERRERE

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR
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25. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD FOR SALE (continued)

(b)

Disposal of (1) Crown Zone Development Limited; (2)
Ever Vast Development Limited; and (3) Wise Great
Development Limited (the “Disposal Group B")

During the current year, the Group located a buyer
to acquire the Disposal Group B and the Directors
are confident that the sale of the Disposal Group B
are highly probable. On 8 August 2019, Vast Acute
Holdings Limited, Hero King Holdings Limited and
Lucky Edge Holdings Limited (collectively, the
“Vendors B"), wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, and Sonic Jet Limited (the “"Purchaser
B”), an independent third party and the Company,
(the "Vendors’ Guarantor”), entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the "S&P Agreement
B”), in which the Vendors B agreed to sell and the
Purchaser B agreed to purchase the entire issued
share capital of the Disposal Group B and all debt
owing by the Disposal Group B to each of the
Vendors B as at completion at a cash consideration
of HK$36,600,000. The assets and liabilities of the
Disposal Group B have been classified as a disposal
group held for sale.

7N
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(b)

AEFHECEEREE W

HENTEHERER A (2187
BREBRAALBBEERERA
A([HEHBIB])

RAFE  AEBABEHLEHTB
MYETER ARaEEECEE
DRE AT BER D E A RIB o 1
—ZET-AFENANR ERERE
FRA A HEE R A R A B R R
TRBERAR (FiE  [ZEERB))
(KRREZ2EWELRQF) > Sonic Jet
Limited ([BERB)(—&BILE=7)
EARAR (BEREBAD FILT
E=5hm ((BEEHEB]) @ Bt
ZEEXRBRELE  MEXRBAIR
EREBEHEMHARBMNEIE BTN
AERERNEENERERBRESE
EREMFEER BREeNRER
36,600,000/8 7T - HEAHRIBHEE
MBEESEARELENLEHER -
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25. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 25. DEABEHECZEERERE #)
HELD FOR SALE (continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the BRLEHEMNBNETZEERBED D
Disposal Group B classified as held for sale are as follows: BEHELEIHNOT ¢
At 30 June
2019
R-Z—NF
ANA=+H
HK$’000
FETT
Assets BE
Investment properties measured A REETENREME
at fair value 33,600
Other receivables JFE SUEL A BR 3K 63
Assets classified as held for sale D AIFIEHEZEE 33,663
Liabilities BfE
Other payables FE AT E M BR R 11

Liabilities associated with assets EED(E A IEHENEERBREE

classified as held for sale 11
As the consideration was expected to exceed the net AREHARESERLEHANBHNAEBE
carrying amounts of the relevant assets and liabilities EFBEMNERLDFE WEAZEIRMNE
attributable to Disposal Group B, no impairment loss has g -

been recognised.

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. BNV EZ RHAMIRN

2019 2018

—E-nE —E)F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade payables FERTE SRR 83,295 7,751

Other payables JRE {51 B A AR R 42,263 36,903

125,558 44,654

The aging analysis of trade payables presented based on the ENESEFIRREHEARERERER
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HEBOTEHMT

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

0-60 days 0-60 H 82,503 7,751

Over 60 days HBiE60H 792 -

83,295 7,751

The credit period for purchases of goods ranged from 30

days to 60 days.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. BHEE
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Receipts in advance from IR HERTE 2
customers for provision TN E P kI8
of services 21,587 21,034
Movements in contract liabilities EHEEED
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FET
At 1 July wntA—H 21,034 21,188
Currency realignment ME H I (920) 534
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of R4 AR 7S 78 W FKIB ™
billing in advance of provision of service EBYALABEM 22,062 20,771
Decrease in contract liabilities as aresult ~ EARFERNERT AFETNEL
of recognising revenue during the year BEMREMEREHE
that was included in contract liabilities &R
at the beginning of the year (20,589) (21,459)
At 30 June RANA=+H 21,587 21,034

All the amount of billings in advance of performance as at
30 June 2019 are expected to be recognised as revenue

within one year.

As at 30 June 2019, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance

obligations under the Group's existing contracts is
HK$23,458,000 (2018: HK$23,533,000). These amounts
would be recognised as revenue when the service is
provided by the Group over the life of the contracts to the
customers, which is expected to occur over the next three

years.

RZB-NFRA=TRH FMBEEHZHE
NRIRER R — F AR R -

—hERNA=TRH REXEHE

RBERHANER

HRTENEETNRFZE

48 %8 523,458,000 T (ZF — \ 5 :

23,533,000 7T.)

CAEEENRENFER

MR E P AR5 i fE R UL SRR A M e

NIALYEE S
WA -

BEMREEERATE

FEBNRAR=ZFAZBHERR

ZE-NFFER
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28. WARRANTY PROVISION 28. RERE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 July RntA—H 1,236 1,073
Currency realignment ME W & (34) 31
Provided during the year FAEME 145 132
At 30 June KANA=1+H 1,347 1,236

The warranty provision represents the management’s best
estimate of the Group's liability under 12-month warranties
granted on manufactured products, based on prior
experience and industry average for defective products.

29. AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 29.

The amount due to a director of the Company is unsecured,
non-interest bearing, has no fixed term of repayment and is
repayable on demand.

As at 30 June 2019, such director of the Company is

deemed to be interested in 9.23% (2018: 9.17%) of the
issued share capital of the Company under the SFO.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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30. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLE

EERNRMEMEE

Present
Minimum value of the
lease minimum lease
payments payments
BREAERE BEESEZHRE
As at As at
30 June 2019 30 June 2019
—E-NF —E-NF
ANA=+H ANA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Within one year —FR 188 168
In more than one year, but not exceeding i@ —FETBBRE
five years 484 463
672 631
Less: future finance charges W R RE B E A AR (41) N/A
Presented value of lease obligation HEEFMEEEE 631 631
Less: amount due within one year shown & : 8B E F A5 —F R
under current liabilities E|HA ) IR - (168)
Amount due after one year shown under  JERBEBEE N —FEH
non-current liabilities Ffr 5 5K38 - 463
The Group has a leased motor vehicle under finance lease. REBERBEREHEGRIEHL —22)9%5 -

The lease term is 4 years. Interest rate is fixed at 1.8% per
annum on the contract date. The lease is determined on
a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been

entered into for contingent payments.

BEMREEERATE

MEMAME -HEANAHREUEESF S
18%at 8 HEZRERBEEEFTTZRA
FORBRAXNNLHTERE -

ZE-NFFER

S
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31. INTEREST BEARING OTHER BORROWINGS 31. ;FFEEMEE

2019 2018
—E-hF ZT-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other borrowings (note (i)) HMEE (HaZ0) 230,000 280,000
Margin loans (note (ii)) REBESERHaZ 1) - 2,728
230,000 282,728
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

The interest bearing other borrowings are  7BEE st B HMEEWNT

repayable as follows:
On demand or within one year REAS—FANEERE - 52,728
After one year but within two years —FHREMFENRN 230,000 230,000
230,000 282,728
Less: amount due within one year shown  J& : BB EHE NRA—F R

under current liabilities Ell ) o - (52,728)
Amount due after one year R—FRIBA S 230,000 230,000

699 CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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31. INTEREST BEARING OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

(i)

On 12 June 2017, the Company, Mr. Cheng Yang (the
“Former Guarantor”) and a licensed money lender
(the “Lender”) in Hong Kong had entered into a facility
agreement which the Lender agreed to lend the Company
up to HK$305,000,000 in aggregate principal amount
bearing fixed interest rate at 13% per annum and the expiry
date is 12 months from the date of the first utilisation. The
Company had drawn down a loan with principal amount of
HK$203,000,000 on 5 July 2017 and HK$97,000,000 on
6 July 2017 respectively. Part of the principal amounted
to HK$200,000,000 was used to repay the original loan
drawn down in financial year 2017. The maturity date
of this borrowing is 4 July 2018. The loan is secured by
640,689,792 shares (128,137,958 shares, after share
consolidation of Kantone which became effective on 10 April
2018) of Kantone (stock listed in HKEX, stock code: 1059)
and personal guarantee by Mr. Cheng Yang, a previous
director and substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr.
Cheng Yang had resigned as director of the Company on 15
August 2017 and disposed of 1,766,860,957 shares of the
Company on 17 August 2017. The facility agreement stated
that the Former Guarantor should ensure that he directly
and beneficially own not less than 1,766,860,957 shares
of the Company at all times and he should remain as the
Chairperson of the board of directors of the Company. No
action had been taken by the Lender and waiver from the
Lender was obtained on 28 September 2017 and 2 March
2018 with retrospective effect. Ms. Wong Man Winny
(the “Existing Guarantor”), a director and substantial
shareholder of the Company, has provided a personal
guarantee for HK$305,000,000 to secure this borrowing
since 10 October 2017.

31.

—ZT—hF/NA=1+H 30 JUNE 2019

STEEMEE @)

i

R_ZE—tFXNA+=-B ARQA- &
Bk ((AERRAD B—2FER
BERATERADT IR EHZ
BEFRAREAARRBERSBAERS
305,000,000 7t (3% & & F # R 13 [E 51
B) - EmBfSsaxsB Bk 121E
B ARARDRR=_ZT—tHFLARA
F—Z—+tF+ANBEREASEA
203,000,000 Jt K 97,000,000/ jt 2 &
e &4 ZX & 200,000,000 7T Jy R E
BR-_Z—tEUVREERIOERE
HeZEEZIHMAA-Z—\FtA
M0 H - 5% 5 7 A 640,689,792 f% & i@ A% 17
(REBE=-Z—\FNA+BRMHAEH
AN 1% 128,137,958 I I 1n (R 0 £ &
BR B LT B ARSE - 1059)) fEE
W YAARANEZRETERERE
SEEFEHEAER BEHEEERZZ
—+tFNATHEFEARARFNESLER
—E—+F)\A++tHH%E1,766,860,957
BRAQRIRGD - B EWHZSIBE - BIEE
RABBRENMEMEMEEZERERSHE
B 1,766,860,957 B A A A1 B9 -
WEBTAARARIZEZCER -BEX
AV EEREMTH TEERZT
—tFNAZ+N\BHEZZE—N\F=A
“HRSBERARBPR O ZE#HE - K
ARREERETERRERLL ([BEE
BRANDB-Z—tFt+A+HRDRE
&l A #Z £ 305,000,000 7 7T LA K 48 2 X (&

Eo
A °

BEMREEERATE
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31. INTEREST BEARING OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

(i)

(ii)

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

On 28 September 2017, the Lender granted the Company
an option to roll over the unpaid balance of the loan with the
principal amount of HK$305,000,000 for another 12 months
from 4 July 2018. Accordingly, the expiry date of the loan
was extended to 4 July 2019.

On 1 March 2018, the Group made partial repayment of
HK$25,000,000.

On 15 June 2018, a facility extension agreement was signed
in which the Lender agreed to extend the termination
date to 4 January 2020. The Lender discharged and
released the Former Guarantor from his obligations and
liabilities under the guarantee. The Company did not have
unconditional right to avoid repayment of HK$50,000,000 to
the Lender on or before 5 September 2018, the borrowings
of HK$50,000,000 was classified as current liabilities as
at 30 June 2018. The remaining balance amounted to
HK$230,000,000 was classified as non-current liabilities as
at 30 June 2018.

On 7 August 2018, the Group made another partial
repayment of HK$50,000,000.

On 10 April 2019, the Company, the Existing Guarantor and
the Lender entered into a supplemental agreement, in which
the Lender agreed to extend the expiry date of the loan to 4
January 2021.

At 30 June 2018, the Group's margin loans of HK$2,728,000
was secured by the Group's listed equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss with an aggregate carrying value
of HK$81,638,000 (note 23). The margin loan bear interest
ranged at 10.25% to 11.00% per annum and repayable on
demand. The margin loans of HK$2,728,000 was settled on
24 August 2018.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

31.

STEEMEE @)

(i)

(ii)

(&)

RZTE—tEFAA=Z+NH BEXA
Eﬁ$@7%ﬁ LR RS
305,000,000 T2 ERANBEH-Z
—AEtﬂma%%LEmﬂﬂ Et

R EHBELEEE_T—-NFAmA -

RZE—NF=ZF—H A£BEEEL
7> H Ath £ 3 25,000,000 8 7T ©

R-ZE—NEXATHBE —HREL
EmERy  HPEFARESH L
BfERE T -_ZTF—ANB - EX
ANBITIEBRATTERARERET 2
EAEREE - AA R I EEEFEF A
BER_T—N\FNLARBNKZAER
B AEE50,000,0008 7T HE

— )\ 73 A =+ H & E50,000,000/% 7T
NHEARBDAEEBE -BHE-ZT—N\FXA
=+ B % T4 230,000,000 T HE A
EREEE -

RZZE—NFENALH AEEEED
7 H Ath & 30 50,000,000 7 7T ©

R-Z—NEMA+E AAF BA
BRAREFIIRARE ERAR
ERERALAREREE —F - —F—
AMMA -

F—“—AiﬁH:+E AEEZIR
B EFK2,728,000/8 TR AEE 2 R
[ & /481,638,000 L iZ A L BE A

B 7 EmBRAIREEEE (HFE23) °

ZRECEFREFMNENTF1025%E

11.00% 8 - iR EREE - RESE

2,728,000 L E R =T —\FNA

—t+BEREE -



32. PROMISSORY NOTE PAYABLES

The movements on the promissory note payables are as

follows:
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32. BARERE

BITRLBRZ EBMT :

2019 2018
—E-hE  —EN\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Promissory note payables FERE R ER
—issued on 19 July 2017, unsecured —-RZZE—tFtA+NHAH
(note (i) and (i) AT IEEAR (WA () K (i) 65,786 56,993
—issued on 21 June 2019, unsecured —-RZE-NFNA=-+—H
(note (iii)) BT 0 JEIEIR (KA (i) 32,976 -
98,762 56,993
2019 2018
—E-nE T \F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Represented by: T3 &IBYR
- Current BNHAZE 5 98,762 1,279
— Non-current FEBNERER - 55,714
98,762 56,993

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR @OD
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32. PROMISSORY NOTE PAYABLES (continuec)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

On 19 July 2017, the Company issued promissory note with
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 in connection with the
acquisition of assets and liabilities through the acquisition
of subsidiaries. The promissory note carries interest at 1%
per annum based on the principal amount then outstanding
on a daily basis which shall be due and payable on the
anniversary date of the issue date of the promissory note.
The maturity date of the promissory note is 19 December
2019 or such other date as the Company and the holder(s)
of the promissory note may agree in writing. Neither the
Company nor the holder(s) of the promissory note may
assign any of its rights and obligations without the prior
written consent of the other party. The Company may repay
all or part of the principal together with interest accrued
thereon at any time prior to the maturity date by giving 7
days’ prior written notice to the holder(s) of the promissory
note.

On 12 December 2017, the Company early settled part
of the promissory note with the principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 by cash of HK$35,950,000 after further
negotiations between the Company and the vendor after
the acquisition. The amortised cost of the said promissory
note was approximately HK$39,394,000 at the date of
settlement. As such, gain on early redemption of promissory
notes of approximately HK$3,444,000 was recognised
during the year ended 30 June 2018.

On 21 June 2019, the Company issued promissory note
with principal amount of US$4,200,000 (equivalent to
HK$32,760,000) in connection with the acquisition of a
vessel. The promissory note carries interest at 0.5% per
month on the principal amount with maturity date on 21 July
2019. The principal together with interest payable were fully
settled by cash on 19 July 2019.

7N
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES ERIREFGE

2019 2018
—E-hE —T—N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Retirement benefit contributions to the MAEE EREREGTEX
Group's defined contribution scheme 2 R AE R R 1,214 1,289

Retirement benefit contributions to the ARz EREENTE X
Group's defined benefit scheme 2 BARRE R R 953 2,374
2,167 3,663

(a)

Defined contribution scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company participate in
a retirement benefit scheme covering a portion of
their employees. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of independent trustees.

Commenced from December 2000, the Group
enrolled all eligible employees in Hong Kong into a
mandatory provident fund (the “MPF") scheme. The
retirement benefit cost of the MPF scheme charged
to the profit or loss represents contributions to the
MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the MPF scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of government-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the respective local
government in the PRC. The Group is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

During the year, the total expense recognised in
the profit or loss amounted to HK$1,214,000 (2018:
HK$1,289,000) and represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group at rates specified in
the rules of the schemes.

(a) EFEMLNKETE

ZIK“ﬂBhT“:FW%“ﬂi%ﬁB’ﬁﬁ
8 28— HRINEFF & - ZAE
éUZéEE@$EIZ§E DRRA
YHERBBLIZEAEGZESA

ETET_AR AEER
RREZFTBRERREERME
wHERES ((EEE ))&
KRB BB F SRR
E%J&$?a$%@ﬁz%§ﬁ‘i\?r§ﬂ%ﬁ
EZLREBRREFTENEL Z 3K

BE-%
=N
RE ¥

\%HFH*H

i
E|
=l

AEERFEZHEBATEES B
Bl At - 10 75 B B 2 BT B R
EW?E&TU ETEIRKE - REE AR
Dbtz TE& KA R ZEREF
u+$|f’ﬁﬁ tR > RRERNEHE
CEHEE MR N AEERZR
W%E%'JE‘#%‘JZWE—%}%‘ o

FR - RIBERERZFAZ 1,214,000
BT (=ZZ— )\ 11,289,000/ 7T)
ABAREBEZRZSHERRE 2L
EYEEIEL 2 R -

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continuea)

(b)

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company in UK operate
a administered and funded pension scheme in the
UK. The scheme provides defined pension benefits
with reference to the final salary of the members at
retirement and their length of service. The scheme
was closed to new members since 1 January 2003.

The contributions which are determined by a
qualified actuary on the basis of triennial valuations
using the projected unit credit method are charged to
the profit or loss. Under the scheme, the employees
are entitled to a pension between 1.67% and 2.50%
of final salary for each year of pensionable service
at an age of 65. No other post-retirement benefits
are provided. The most recent actuarial valuations of
scheme assets and the present value of the defined
benefit obligations as at 30 June 2019 were prepared
by Buck Consultants Limited, Mrs. Rachel Downs,
Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries
("FIA") (2018: Mr. Haroon Khan (FIA)), for accounting
reporting purpose. The assumptions which have
the most significant effect on the results of the
valuation are those relating to the rate of return on
investments and the rates of increase in salaries,
pensions and share dividends.

The funded pension scheme exposes the Group to

actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate
risk, longevity risk and salary risk.
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TIREZF MR - BB ETE - &
B — MR AR FE 65 R BEURIKE
SENTHREHEL1.67%ZE2.50%
RAERKS RS FHEFHE
REEWEIBEHEEMRKERT -
B ZFEIEERTHEENAER
BZREBEDIR-_Z—AENA
=+ H # 77 I A Buck Consultants
Limited 2 Rachel Downs A A (3 B
BEMBEE RS B [ KERE M
BEFREE]) (ZF—/\F : Haroon
Khanfc & (REBEMBSE RS
B))GRE UEETEHMEEE -
HEEERSEEZECBRNE
BIRERMELRT S  BRRKSHER
B2 R -

WMLW#%E$%§@%%§@
’ﬁﬂ&ﬁﬂ CFZREB - E=
e R EHe k-



33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continuea)

(b)

Defined benefit scheme (continuead)

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to high quality corporate bond yields; if the
return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a
plan deficit. Currently the plan has relatively balanced
investment in equity securities, debt instruments and
real estates. Due to the long-term nature of the plan
liabilities, the trustee of the pension fund considers
it appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan
assets should be invested in equity securities and in
real estate to leverage the return generated by the
fund.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase
the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset
by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt
investments.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after
their employment. An increase in the life expectancy
of the plan participants will increase the plan’s
liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of
the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continuea)

(b)

Defined benefit scheme (continuead)

The main actuarial assumptions used were as
follows:

33. BRIKERFTE =)

EREBAETE ()
Bz EBREBRRMT :

At 30 June At 30 June

2019 2018

RZB-h&E HRZIZ—N\HF

~A=+H ~NAZ=+H

Discount rate AR 3R & 2.30% 2.75%
Expected rate of salary increase TEHF S AR 2.40% 3.25%
Future pension increases RGBS FIR 3.25% 3.15%

The actuarial valuation updated to 30 June 2019 by
Mrs. Rachel Downs (FIA) (2018: Mr. Haroon Khan
(FIA)) showed that the market value of the scheme
assets was HK$360,821,000 (2018:HK$357,824,000)
and that the actuarial value of these assets
represented 93% (2018: 93%) of the benefits that
had accrued to members.

Under the recovery plan dated 31 May 2016, the
Group has agreed to contribute GBP340,000 per
annum increasing at 4% on each 1 July from 1
July 2018 into the plan. In addition, the Scottish
Limited Partnership for the plan has been arranged
such that the plan will receive an income stream of
GBP400,000 per annum at 1 July 2018 increasing at
4% on each 1 July thereafter. As at 30 June 2019,
the duration of the plan liability is 16 years (2018: 17
years).

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued) 33. RIKBERFE @)
Defined benefit scheme (continued) (b) EREBFEFTE(#)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement REHERMNERAZNEESER R
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in Hiv 2 E KT RSN
respect of the defined benefit pension plans are as
follows:
2019 2018
—E-h#F ZT-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Scheme administrative costs FHEIFTHUR A (1,551) (2,026)
Net interest income/(expense) FBUA(FIX) F58 598 (348)
Components of defined benefit costs RIEEERER
recognised in profit or loss (included & Fpk AN 48 5 BB
in general and administrative GtA—M RITHZ H)
exeenses) (953) (23874
Remeasurement of the net defined BT EEREENEE
benefit liability: FEE
Return on plan assets (excluding FrEEEZB®(TRE
amounts included in net interest EEFARERLFEZ
expense) %) 25,088 (2,486)
Actuarial gains arising from changes in ~ A D BRREBFTES 2 1
demographic assumptions =RlE 7,311 6,363
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from B RERESTES 25
changes in financial assumptions & (BB e (32,856) 17,299
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from CHRABRMELEZRBE
experience adjustments (B518) Mz (425) 15,274
Components of defined benefit costs ~ REAM 2 E (BIsL) /W
recognised in other comprehensive TR 2 FEREE A AN A8
__lexpense)fincome RED ] (882) 36450
Total ke (1,835) 34,076
TERHEEBEBRART ZE-NEFH
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued) 33. BRIKERFTE =)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (continued) (b) TEEEEHETE (&)

The amount included in the consolidated statement
of financial position arising from the Group's
obligations in respect of its defined benefit pension
plans is as follows:

A5 B A R AR AR KA 8l 2 Ao
MELZEBEEFAREMBRR
& BT

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fair value of scheme assets EEEZAAEE 360,821 357,824

Present value of funded obligations ~ &4 & ¥E 2 HE (386,122) (385,598)
Net liability arising from defined ERRAMEAEREE 2

benefit obligation BEFH (25,301) (27,774)

The Group expects contribution of GBP340,000
(equivalent to HK$3,373,000) will be made (2018:
GBP740,000 (equivalent to HK$7,666,000)) to the
defined benefit plans during the next financial year.

Movements in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation are as follows:

REBEBEHFBERT —HBFER
TE ¥ & ) 5+ 8 £ 50340,000 & £
(F %5 3,373,000) (ZZF— )\ F :
740,000 £ £% (18 % 72 7,666,000 5
JT) e

BN AR 2 REZBNT

2019 2018
—E-hF —Z-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Opening defined benefit obligation FHIERREN A 385,598 422,494
Currency realignment P& H A (16,654) 10,214
Interest cost B 10,120 10,670
Remeasurement losses/(gains): EFETEEE (W)
Actuarial gains arising from changes A O RREBFFEL 2 HEE
in demographic assumption &= (7,311) (6,363)
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from SRR EESFTEAZIEE
changes in financial assumptions Eia, (Ukes) 32,856 (17,299)
Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from  &EBFABRMELEZEE
experience adjustments BB, (W) 425 (15,274)
Benefits paid Fir i<t 48 A (18,912) (18,844)
Closing defined benefit obligation F 45 T FEAR R A 386,122 385,598

@0@‘ CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continuea) 33.

(b)

Defined benefit scheme (continuead)

Movements in the fair value of plan assets are as

RBRIKBERFE (2
(b) EZEEBEFGFEI (&)

AEBEEZAREBEERNT

follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Opening fair value of plan assets FUFEEEZ AREE 357,824 361,767
Currency realignment HE 5, 38 B (15,510) 9,091
Interest income FEWA 10,718 10,322
Scheme administrative costs T EI7T B AN (1,551) (2,026)
Return on plan assets (excluding HEIE E 2 B3R
amounts included in net interest (TBEIEEFTANEREZ
expense) FREC 2 FE) 25,088 (2,486)
Contribution by employer fBEHR 3,164 -
Benefits paid Fir it 4@ A (18,912) (18,844)
Closing fair value of plan assets FHEFEEECANEE 360,821 357,824
The fair value of plan assets at the end of the FEEERBREHEAER 2 AAE

reporting period is analysed as follows:

BEOHMT :

Fair value of plan assets

FTEEEZAAEERE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity instruments (Quoted) HmT A (RE) 236,261 312,865
Debt instruments (Quoted) EHEIA (RE) 112,118 34,880
Other assets Hm&EE 12,442 10,079
360,821 357,824

The actual return on scheme assets was

HK$34,255,000 (2018: HK$5,810,000).

& 81 & E 2 B B # A 34,255,000
BT (—Z— )\ :5,810,000/87T) °

BEMREEERATE
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continuea)

(b)

Defined benefit scheme (continuead)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the
determination of the defined obligation are discount
rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity
analysis below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

If the discount rate is 25 basis points higher/(lower),
the defined benefit obligations would decrease
by HK$15,389,000/(increase by HK$15,389,000)
(2018: decrease by HK$14,907,000/(increase by
HK$14,907,000)).

If the expected salary growth increases/(decreases)
by 0.25%, the defined benefit obligations
would increase by HK$6,935,000/(decrease by
HK$6,935,000) (2018: increase by HK$7,179,000/
(decrease by HK$7,179,000)).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined
benefit obligations as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another
as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity
analysis, the present value of the defined benefit
obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit method at the end of the reporting period,
which is the same as that applied in calculating the
defined benefit obligations liability recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis
from prior years.
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33. RIKEFETE @)

ERREAETE @)
BEEATEEZERBERRAY
RERBHFSER - U T8HEE
DMRERBERTEEZRR
REEMEEsmAmREERST

HBEIRE EF (N RK) 26 @ E 2
7 F848 M) & £ %R 4 15,389,000 %
7T,/ (#h015,389,0005% 7T) (= &
— \4F : 354> 14,907,0007% T, (1%
$N14,907,000% 7)) -

mBHFSEER LA (FK)
0.25% ' & 88 & 7 & 1 & 15 in
6,935,0007% 7t (R 46,935,000 7%
7o) (ZF—)\&F : 35 417,179,000 %5
7T,/ O 7,179,000 7)) °
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continuea)

(c)

Forfeited contributions

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has
also joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF Scheme") for its employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of
an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions. Except for voluntary
contribution, no forfeited contribution under the
MPF Scheme is available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years.

For the retirement benefits of the Group's qualifying
employees in the PRC, the Group has participated in
the retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
municipal government of Shenzhen. The Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of their
payroll costs to the scheme to fund the benefits.
The employees are entitled to retirement pension
calculated with reference to their basic salaries on
retirement and their length of services in accordance
with the relevant government regulations. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme is
to pay the ongoing required contributions under the
scheme. Contributions to the scheme are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the scheme. No
forfeited contribution under PRC retirement benefit
scheme is available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years.
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33. RIKEFETE @)

(c)
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continuea)

(c)

Forfeited contributions (continuead)

For the retirement benefits of the Group’s qualifying
employees in the UK, the Group has participated
in the retirement benefits scheme operated by the
global HR benefits and human resource consulting
firm authorised and regulated by the Financial
Conduct Authority. The employees are entitled to post
retirement cash commutation. Details of the scheme
are set out in note 3 and note 33(b) to the consolidated
financial statements. No forfeited contribution under
UK retirement benefit Scheme is available to reduce
the contribution payable in future years.

At 30 June 2019 and 2018, there were no significant
forfeited contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the schemes before they are fully vested in
the contributions and which are available to reduce
the contributions payable by the Group in the future.

(c)

34. DEFERRED TAXATION

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately HK$803,182,000 (2018:
HK$727,439,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. These tax losses

33. BRIKERFTE =)

R YA FR (42)

ERAEEHERBAZAERERZ
BRABANAE AEEE2MBHE
BERTAEEREEREEZSE
BRANEBRENRANEREAR
REMZRKRBENGE - BEEHRE
FERRRBASRL - B EN
FH BN S MW R E3 KM
AE33(b) © M £ fa] B 2 AR IR 4R A
&I 208 Y BT A AR R SR AR
EAEH Z 5K

RZBE-AEFR-ZZ-N\FXA
=tR HMEARERNERZEE
AR B Z SR & MmoR Y AT A
MR ARE 2 RREHBERRZE
KOG

34, EERIE

REEBTER  AEEEARABHAZHE
E51849803,182,0008 7L (Z T — £\ 4 :
727,439,000/ 7T) + Al A{EHKIE A& 2%
F o AR REETERT B 18 20 I AR -
ERRECEHEEE - WERBESIBUE

may be carried forward indefinitely. PR AR B 45 5 o
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEE
Fair value
change of
investment
properties
REMEZ
AREEEE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 July 2017 R-ZZE—+tF+tHA—H 9,573
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss EEBIBRT AER (77)
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZZE-—N\FXA=ZF+HK
—E-N\F+tH—H 9,496
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss EEF BB ER 49
At 30 June 2019 R-ZZE—NFXA=+H 9,645
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 35. MAKHE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) R 2®
The reconciliation between the opening and REBGERAERS D 2FH)
closing balances of each component of the Group's RERGEHEZHERFENGZE R
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated BmBERA - AR AKRAEZE 5
statement of changes in equity. Details of the HORFENRFERBEESHFBIHRN
changes in the Company’s individual components FI5E43 -
of equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out in note 43.
(b) Share capital (b) B
Number of Amount
shares k]
‘000 HK$'000
FHE FET
Authorised share capital with par FREEC. 1B 2 EERA
value of HK$0.1 each:
Balance at 1 July 2017 R-ZZE—+tFt/F—H 30,000,000 3,000,000
Share reorganisation (note (ii)) REANE B (4772 (i) (28,500,000) 2,850,000
Balance at 30 June 2018, 1 July 2018 H-_Z—NFA=+H -
and 30 June 2019 —FE-N\FEtA—HK
—E-RERA=TH
2 KEER 1,500,000 150,000
Number of Share Share Capital
shares capital premium reserve Total
RAEE BE  ROEE  REEE k]
000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FiE FET FET FET FET
Issued and fully paid share capital FREGEIETZIEENTR
with par value of HK$0.1 each: MERA
Balance at 1 July 2017 WoE—rELA-A7ER 6331789 633179 2096276 125036 2854491
Issue of shares (note (i) BITROG (HE ) 1,266,356 126,636 6,331 - 132,967
Share issue expense RIABITEY - - 2,659) - (2,659)
Capital reorganisation (note (i) RARER (W) (7,218,237) (721,824) - 721,824 -
Issue of shares through placing fnote (i) &R EE1TIRA (M (i) 75,980 7,598 57,745 - 65,343
Share issue expense RIVETHS - - (1,307) - (1,307)
Balance at 30 June 2018 RZE-N\F~A=1H
and 1 July 2018 EZF-\FE+A—-H#H 455,888 45,589 2,156,386 846,860 3,048,835
Right issue (note (i) BERBIT (M) 227,943 22,794 68,383 - 91,177
Right issue expense BEREIEE - - 2,900) - 2,900)
Balance at 30 June 2019 RZZ-NERXAZTHZES 683831 68383 2221869 846,860 3,137,112
TERHEEBEBRART ZE-NEFH
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b)

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

Share capital (continued)

Notes:

(@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Issue of shares

On 10 August 2017, the Company issued and placed
1,266,356,000 ordinary shares to independent third
parties at a placing price of HK$0.105 per placing
share and raised gross proceeds of approximately
HK$132,967,000 to be used as general working
capital of the Group and for development of the
existing and future projects of the Group.

Capital reorganisation

On 26 October 2017, the Company implemented the
capital reorganisation, pursuant to a special resolution
passed by the shareholders of the Company at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 18
October 2017, details are set out as below:

I share consolidation of every twenty issued and
unissued share of the Company with par value
of HK$0.1 each was consolidated into one
consolidated share with par value of HK$2 each;

1. (i) the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced through a cancellation of the
paid-up capital of the Company to the extent
of HK$1.9 on each of the consolidated share
of the Company such that the par value of
each consolidated share of the Company
was reduced from HK$2 to HK$0.10 (“New
Share”); and (ii)any fractional consolidated
share in the issued share capital of the
Company arising from the share consolidation
was cancelled; and

1. the authorised share capital of the Company
was decreased to HK$150,000,000 divided
into 1,500,000,000 New Shares.

Issue of shares through placing

On 3 January 2018, the Company issued and
placed 75,980,000 ordinary shares of the Company
at a placing price of HK$0.860 per placing share
to independent third parties, and raised gross
proceeds of approximately HK$65,343,000 to be
used as general working capital of the Group and for
development of the existing and future projects of
the Group and reduction of short-term debts.

Rights issue

On 30 May 2018, the Directors announced that the
Company proposed to raise approximately HK$91.2
million before expenses by issuing 227,943,616
rights shares at the subscription price of HK$0.40 per
rights share by way of rights issue, on the basis of
one rights share for every two existing shares held
on the record date. The rights issue was completed
on 18 July 2018 and net proceeds of approximately
HK$88,277,000 were raised by the Company. The
number of issued ordinary shares of the Company
was increased to 683,831,000 shares and the
share capital and share premium of the Company
was increased from approximately HK$45,589,000
to approximately HK$68,383,000 and from
approximately HK$2,156,386,000 to approximately
HK$2,221,869,000 respectively.
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the
amount by which the Company’s issued share
capital was diminished on cancellation of
ordinary share repurchased.

General reserve

The general reserve represents the reserve
arising from the reduction of the nominal
amount of the shares of the Company (after
the consolidation of shares of 25 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each into 1 share in 2002) of
HK$2.5 each by cancelling the paid up capital
to the extent of HK$2.4 on each share of the
Company in 2002.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount
arising from (a) a bonus issue of shares
of a subsidiary of the Company by way of
capitalising the subsidiary’s retained profits and
deemed capital contribution from a substantial
shareholder and (b) the reduction of the
nominal amount of the shares of the Company
(after the consolidation of shares of 20 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each into 1 share in 2017)
of HK$2 each by cancelling the paid up capital
to the extent of HK$1.9 on each share of the
Company in 2017.
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35. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Reserves (continued)
(v)  Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the reserve
arising from the group reorganisation in 1992.

(vi)  Property revaluation reserve

Property revaluation reserve represents the
reserve arising from valuation of properties
under property, plant and equipment upon
transfer to investment properties.

(vii) Translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 3.

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Each of the Company and Kantone, a 64.9% (2018: 64.9%)
owned subsidiary of the Company, has a share option
scheme under which eligible persons, including directors
of the Company, Kantone or any of their respective
subsidiaries, may be granted options to subscribe for
shares in the Company and Kantone respectively.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Company

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Champion Option Scheme").
The purpose of the Champion Option Scheme is
to attract and to retain quality personnel and other
persons and to provide them with incentive to
contribute to the business and operation of the Group.
Under the Champion Option Scheme, the Directors
may grant options to any directors, employees or
consultants of the Company, its subsidiaries or
affiliates or any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well
as customers, suppliers or advisors of the Group,
to subscribe for shares of the Company. An option
granted by the Company is exercisable at any time for
a period determined by its directors which should not
be more than ten years from the date of grant, where
the acceptance date should not be later than 21 days
after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment
as provided therein) of the option granted under the
Champion Option Scheme is equal to the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (i) the closing
price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Exchange on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; and (iii) the average closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which the options may be
granted under the Champion Option Scheme shall
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
Champion at the date of approval of the Champion
Option Scheme. The total maximum number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options must not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of Champion from time
to time. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any one grantee in any
12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the shares of Champion in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period, without prior approval from
Champion’s shareholders. The Champion Option
Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing from 30 November 2012. No share
option has been granted since the adoption of such
scheme.
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

Kantone

On 30 November 2012, Kantone adopted a share
option scheme (the “Kantone Option Scheme"). The
purpose of the Kantone Option Scheme is to attract
and to retain quality personnel and other persons
and to provide them with incentive to contribute to
the business and operation of the Kantone Group.
Under the Kantone Option Scheme, the directors of
Kantone may grant options to any eligible persons of
the Kantone Group, including directors, employees
or consultants of Kantone, its subsidiaries or affiliates
or any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include the aforesaid persons or a company
beneficially owned by the aforesaid persons as well
as customers, suppliers or advisors of the Kantone
Group, to subscribe for shares in Kantone. An option
granted by Kantone is exercisable at any time for a
period determined by its directors which should not
be more than ten years from the date of grant, where
the acceptance date should not be later than 21 days
after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to adjustment
as provided therein) of the option granted under the
Kantone Option Scheme is equal to the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the shares; (i) the closing price
per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; and (iii) the average closing price per
share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which the options may be
granted under the Kantone Option Scheme shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of Kantone at
the date of approval of the Kantone Option Scheme.
The total maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
Kantone from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any
one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of Kantone in issue on
the last date of such 12-month period, without prior
approval from Kantone's shareholders. The Kantone
Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing from 30 November 2012. No
share option has been granted since the adoption of
such scheme.
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37.

38.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of other
borrowings, equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
losses.

The Directors review the capital structure on a bi-annual
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the Directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

37.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 38. BEAKIE
2019 2018
—E-AF —T—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Capital expenditure in respect of EREERTOZEBME
property, plant and equipment and T K 5% B R AR R A A%
development costs for systems FBERAREARRAS
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contracted for 1,028 -
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39.

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had future
minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises and motor
vehicles which fall due as follows:

KEHELH
REBE[EBEA

RBERTHER  AEESEARBRANE
HAEZA A FEEEHERRA KKK
ENHEEREIHBEROT

2019 2018
—2-n%E —2-NF
Land and Motor Land and Motor
buildings vehicles buildings vehicles
T REF RE T REF AE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Operating leases which RN FEERZ
expire: KRS
Within one year —F R 7,370 674 7,883 2,733
In the second to fifth year H _FEFRHF
inclusive (BEEEMSE) 446 659 4,673 1,711
7,816 1,333 12,556 4,444

Leases are negotiated for terms of one to five years (2018:
one to five years).
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39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39. KEMHELTH W
(continued)
The Group as lessor REBERALBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group contracted PRMERTET  ARERERAMERE
with lessees in respect of leasing of premises and certain FEFAKRE - #eR RiBERG R EH
equipment which is included in plant and machinery and MPEIM AR - ERHBERNAT :

communications networks, which fall due as follows:

2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F

Plant and Plant and

machinery and machinery and

Land and communications Landand communications

buildings networks buildings networks

BE - #e BB - a8

T RETF RBERE THRETF KiBERE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

Within one year —FR 998 11,355 1,334 14,097
In the second to fifth year E-ETERE

inclusive (BREERME) 260 9,890 1,264 12,026

1,258 21,245 2,598 26,123

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has service and RZE—NFANAZ+H A£EEHE

equipment rental contract with customers amounting to FPET RS KRR EHE S 444,704,000 75

HK$44,704,000 (30 June 2018: HK$49,656,000). As at 30 T (ZE—NE,XA=1+H : 49,656,000

June 2019, the future income to be generated from these BIL) MZE—HAENA=1+H" %=

contracts with an aggregate amount of HK$33,486,000 B4 T E A B R IR A 4258 33,486,000

(30 June 2018: HK$34,963,000) have been pledged as y:
securities for the defined benefit retirement scheme of ;
certain subsidiaries operated in UK.

—_ZT— Aiﬂﬂ—+5~mgmpw
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i

(ii)

The key management personnel of the Group are the
Directors and the five highest paid individuals. The
aggregate amount paid to them was HK$13,256,000
(2018: HK$12,054,000), details of which are set out in
note 10.

On 5 December 2016, the Group (as the borrower)
and Mr. Cheng Yang (“Mr. Cheng"”) (as the lender),
a previous substantial shareholder and director of the
Company who subsequently resigned as a director on
15 August 2017, had entered into facility agreements,
pursuant to which Mr. Cheng agreed to lend the Group
up to HK$10,000,000 in aggregate principal amount
which was unsecured, non-interest bearing and
had no fixed term of repayment and was repayable
on demand. As at 30 June 2018, the amount due
to Mr. Cheng included in other payable amounting
to HK$3,820,000 was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The transaction contemplated
under the facility agreements constituted continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Main Board Listing Rules. However, this
transaction is fully exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Main Board Listing
Rules as the transaction was on normal commercial
terms or better and no security over the assets of the
Company was granted in respect of such financial
assistance.

7N
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(ii)

On 7 March 2017, the Company (as the borrower),
Mr. Cheng (as the guarantor), and Southwest
Securities (HK) Finance Limited (as the lender) had
entered into a facility agreement in which the lender
agreed to lend the Company up to HK$200,000,000
in aggregate principal amount and the expiry date
was 4 months from the date of the first utilisation.
This guarantee was expired upon the settlement of
this borrowing on 5 July 2017. On 12 June 2017,
regarding the loan borrowed by the Company
amounting to HK$305,000,000 (note 31(i)), Mr.
Cheng Yang who was the former director and
substantial shareholder of the Company agreed to
provide a personal guarantee. Mr. Cheng Yang had
resigned as director of the Company on 15 August
2017 and disposed shares of 1,766,860,957 of the
Company on 17 August 2018. On 10 October 2017,
Ms. Wong Man Winny (“Ms. Wong"), a substantial
shareholder and director of the Company, provided
a the personal guarantee for the loan. On 5 July
2018, the lender discharged and released Mr.
Cheng Yang from his obligations and liabilities under
the guarantee. The provision of guarantee by Mr.
Cheng and Ms. Wong under the facility agreement
constituted continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Main Board Listing
Rules. However, this transaction is fully exempt from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Main Board Listing Rules as the transaction was on
normal commercial terms or better and no security
over the assets of the Company was granted in
respect of such financial assistance.
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(iv)

On 7 December 2017, the Group (as the borrower)
and Ms. Wong (as the lender), a substantial
shareholder and director of the Company had
entered into a facility agreement pursuant to which
Ms. Wong agreed to lend to the Group up to
HK$4,180,000 in aggregate principle amount which
was unsecured, non-interest bearing and had no fixed
term of repayment and was repayable on demand
(note 29). The transaction contemplated under the
facility agreement constituted continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Main
Board Listing Rules. However, this transaction is
fully exempt from the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Main Board Listings Rules as
the transaction was on normal commercial terms
or better and no security over the assets of the
Company was granted in respect of such financial
assistance.

On 19 July 2017, the Group (as the borrower) and
Mr. Law Shing Hung (“Mr. Law") (as the lender),
a director of a subsidiary, had entered into a facility
agreement pursuant to which Mr. Law agreed to
lend to the Group up to HK$1,441,000 in aggregate
principle amount which was unsecured, non-interest
bearing and had no fixed term of repayment and was
repayable on demand. The transaction contemplated
under the facility agreement constituted continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Main Board Listing Rules. However, this
transaction is fully exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Main Board
Listings Rules as the transaction was on normal
commercial terms or better and no security over the
assets of the Company was granted in respect of
such financial assistance.

—
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41.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 19 July 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Wealth Track Asia Limited
(the “Vendor"”), Mr. Yeung Chi Hang (the “Vendor’s
Guarantor”) and Golden Field Property Limited (“Golden
Field” or the “Target Company”) to acquire 51% equity
interest of Golden Field from the Vendor at a consideration
of HK$150,000,000, which was satisfied by a cash payment
of HK$30,000,000 and the issue of promissory note with
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 by the Company
to the Vendor. The fair value of the consideration was
amounted to HK$116,209,000 as at the date of acquisition.

Golden Field is an investment holding company
incorporated in Hong Kong on 12 March 1992 with limited
liability which was 51% owned by the Vendor and 49%
owned by three independent third parties to the Group
immediately prior to completion of the abovementioned
acquisition. Golden Field has 95% equity interest in
Dongguan Golden Field Yijing Hotel Limited, a company
incorporated in People's Republic of China (the “PRC
subsidiary”). The acquisition was completed on 19 July
2017 and Golden Field and the PRC subsidiary became
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The PRC subsidiary is a sino-foreign joint venture
established in the PRC on 1 July 2000 and owns a hotel
property erected on leasehold land in the PRC of which the
two land use rights will legally expire in 2032 and 2043.
A hotel property was built on these 2 pieces of leasehold
land.

41.
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41.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Before the acquisition, the abovementioned hotel property
was rented to an independent third party tenant under a
subcontracting agreement (cancellable under any one or
more of the following conditions, namely i) mutual consent
by Golden Field and the tenant; ii) in the events of force
majeure, such as natural disasters, significant changes in
political and economic environment and severe fluctuation
in the value of RMB; or iii) other legal requirements) for a
period from 11 March 2003 to 10 March 2033. The tenant
could use the name of the PRC subsidiary as trade name
for their business operation. Pursuant to the relevant
agreements between Golden Field and the tenant, the
tenant has the right to pledge the properties to secure its
borrowings by entering into supplementary agreement
with the Group and no liability should be incurred under
the name of the PRC subsidiary upon the expiry of the
sub-contracting arrangement. As at 30 June 2019 and
2018, no such liability was noted. Under the contractual
arrangement, the PRC subsidiary is only entitled to receive
a fixed amount of RMB3,900,000 per year.

As the lease period with the tenant is almost equal to the
contractual life of one of the abovementioned land use
rights and the hotel property is erected on the 2 leasehold
lands, the key assets acquired represented a) finance lease
receivable arising from the abovementioned contractual
arrangements with the tenant and b) an investment
property representing interest in a leasehold land with the
remaining contractual life from the end of expiry of the
lease term with the tenant to 2043.

The above acquisition was determined by the Directors
to be the acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of subsidiaries rather than a business
combination as the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
did not constitute a business as defined under HKFRS 3
(revised) “Business Combination”

—
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41.

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 41.
THROUGH ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

ERKBHBEARKBEERE

&)

Allocation of
fair value of
consideration

REAAR
EESE
HK$'000
FET
Trade receivable FEUE SR 216
Cash and cash equivalents BehHeEE 254
Property, plant and equipment W - BB R 752
Investment properties "REYME 174,596
Finance lease receivable FEU R & EFIR 54,025
Accruals and other payables A ERRENEMERR (776)
Amount due to a director of Golden Field R —2FeEEHE (1,208)
Total identifiable net assets Al R B A EFE 227,861
Non-controlling interests FEVERR AR R M A (111,652)
Net identifiable assets AR EEFE 116,209
Fair value of the consideration REAAEE
At 19 July 2017 RZZ—tF+A+IH
Total cash consideration transferred BEZEEASNAE 30,000
Promissory note issued BETERLER 86,209
116,209
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition WBEEELEZFREMAE
Total cash consideration transferred BHEE BReRE 30,000
Acquisition of cash and cash equivalents WERe MRS EE (254)
29,746
TERHEEBEBRART ZE-NEFH
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42.

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments and investment properties
measured as at 30 June 2019 and 2018 on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement” The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date
such as listed stocks, bonds, funds or any assets that have
“mark to market” mechanism for setting a fair
market value.

a regular

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs. Level 2
assets are financial assets that do not have regular market
pricing, but whose fair value can be determined based on
other data values or market prices. For example, valuers
adopt valuation model for assessing the market value
of the properties, such as comparing with similar assets
surrounding the properties, hence, the fair values are
quoted prices for similar assets and not for identical assets.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Assets measured at fair value

42. AREEFTE®)

BARBENEZEE

Fair value Level 1 Level 3
AAEE E-E& $=EBR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHETT FET FET
As at 30 June 2019 R=-F-—NAEXB=1H
Assets BE
Investment properties "EYE 64,018 - 64,018
Investment properties included in ~ SR#NENEAZIELE 2
assets classified as held for sale BEEMIREYE 154,400 - 154,400
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFAERZ
— listed equity securities — E R AN 49,646 49,646 -
— unlisted equity securities — I EMRAES 1,965 - 1,965
Fair value Level 1 Level 3
NAEE FE—ER E-BR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 30 June 2018 RZZE—N\FA=+H
Assets BE
Investment properties mEME 167,834 - 167,834
Financial assets at FVTPL BANBEFAERZ
- listed equity securities — R AEFH 110,786 110,786 -
TERHEEBEBRART ZE-NEFH @2@\
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) 42. AREEFTE @)
Assets measured at fair value (continued) BERAREBEFAEZEE @)
The movements during the year in the balance of these FRNLERZEBRANBEFECEHRZ
Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: %@ﬁiﬁll NN
2019 2018
—E-h#E —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
WEMERBNEDER
Investment properties including those HIEREZEERN
classified as held for sales wEME
At 1 July wtA—H 167,834 54,094
Currency realignment N AR (171) 7,930
Addition = - 3,607
Addition through acquisition of BRWHEBRARIRE (MiF41)
subsidiaries (note 41) - 174,596
Fair value adjustment on investment RBEFEEMBREREDE .
properties acquired in prior year ANAEERAE 35,355 27,366
Fair value adjustment on investment RAFERKREREMEZ
properties acquired in current year NAEERAE - (178,259)
Transfer from property, plant and EEME  BERZE
equipment 15,400 78,500
At 30 June BNXA=1+H 218,418 167,834
2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FETT
Unlisted equity securities IE E MR AEE
At 1 July ntHA—H -
Addition NE 1,965
At 30 June RANA=+H 1,965

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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42.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)
Assets measured at fair value (continued)

Currency realignment is recognised in other comprehensive
income in “exchange reserve”.

All the gains or loss recognised in profit or loss for the year
arise from the properties and listed equity securities held
during the reporting period.

There were no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during
both years.

The fair value of all properties located in Hong Kong and
PRC (excluded the leasehold land where the hotel property
erected (see note 16 and 25)) were derived using the
market comparable approach based on price per square
feet or square metre observed in recent market prices
and adjusted for certain unobservable inputs including
the adjustment of the building age, location, fair value
market rent and floor level to reflect different locations
and conditions. The fair value of the leasehold land where
the hotel property erected was derived using adjusted
market comparable approach by (a) making reference
to comparable sales of bare-land with lease term of 40
years; (b) adjusted for the term factor using the valuation
technique to estimate value of bare-land with lease term of
10 years (2018: 10 years) at 2033; and (c) take into account
the time value of money.

As at 30 June 2019, the fair value of unlisted equity
securities at FVTPL amounting to HK$1,965,000 is
assessed by management of the Group with reference to
its recent transaction prices.

42.
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42.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Assets measured at fair value (continued)

Investment properties held
by the Group

FEERANRENE

Valuation techniques &
key inputs

HERMREZGABE

N,

42.

AN

NREEFTE®

BRARBEAEZEE @)

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXATIREGAYE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TABRBARER
MEEZBR

Investment properties located
in Hong Kong
RBERRRENE

Investment properties located in
the PRC (excluded the
leasehold land where hotel
property erected)

URFENEENE (TRE
BENEMBL2HELTH)

Direct comparison method

BRLBE

The key input is price per
square feet

IRBARBABTHRER

Direct comparison method

BRLBE

The key input is price per
square metre

IRBABBABTHAER

Price per square feet, using market
direct comparable and taking into
account the location and other
individual factors such as age of
the property, which is ranged
from HK$2,716 to HK$5,100
(2018: HK$2,170 to HK$3,729).

FBSR AR EME L Rt
B RmEERSEMERNEE
BRECBYAREENTF2716
BILES 108 (22— /\F:
2,170 L 23,7295 7L) °

Price per square metre, using
market direct comparable and
taking into account the location
and other individual factors such
as age of the property, which
is ranged from HK$18,208
(equivalent to RMB16,000)
to HK$33,001 (equivalent to
RMB29,000) (2018: HK$20,150
(equivalent to RMB17,000)
to HK$30,815 (equivalent to
RMB26,000)).

BB ERLEMELH R
WEARMEBRESEMER
AZEBH2BTHRERN
F18208 8L (IHERARY
16,0007) £33,001 A7 (1%
MARH29,0007T) (ZF—/\
20150 BT (HERARK
17,00070) £30,815 7 (1%
AR 26,0007T)) °

7N
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Aslight increase in the price
per square feet will increase
significantly with fair value
BEFREBEMEFELIDA
EBEAEEM

Aslight increase in the price per
square metre will increase
significantly with fair value

BEFREREMLFAERIDA
BEAEEM



42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Assets measured at fair value (continued)

Investment properties held
by the Group

FEERANRENE

Valuation techniques &
key inputs

HERMREZGABE
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N,

42.

NREEFTE®

BARBENEZEE @

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXATIREGAYE

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TABRBARER
MEEZBR

Investment property included
the leasehold land where
the hotel property erected
and located in the PRC

RENEREREMEMEY
BRFEMEE L

Adjusted market comparable
method
TRETSLEE

The key input in price per
square metre

IRBABBABTHAER

Price per square metre, using

adjusted market comparable
approach by a) making reference
to comparable sales of bare-
land with lease term of 40 years;
b) adjusted for the term factor
using the valuation technique to
estimate value of bare- land with
lease term of 10 years (2018:

10 years) as at 2033; and c) take
into account the time value of
money at discount rate of 6%
(2018: 6%) from 2033 to 30 June
2019, which is approximately
HK$350 (equivalent to RMB300)
(2018: approximately HK$350
(equivalent to RMB300)).

MASHETSHLREE B LB

M AWFHTHNEE bR
BREERTHFEAREL AR
st - E==FRE 510
FMEEE(CT—/\F 10
F): ROBHEEENERHE
EE-T==FE2-_Z-NEAX
A= +HEEREE% (ZE—N
F 6% TEBLZBTHKE
1436078 T (HHER ARE 300
T(ZE—NEF : #1350/ 7T (1f
ERARE3007T)) °

BEMREEERATE

Aslight increase in the price square
metre will increase significantly
with fair value
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43. D R B AR R 3R

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED

THE COMPANY

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)N\E
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB R - 1
Interests in subsidiaries LN ENGIPA - X 131,790 160,266
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 117% 160267
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables EUWE S R EMEER 828 1,452
Financial assets at fair value through BARBETABRZZ
profit or loss CREE 30,314 51,279
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U BT /B8 A R FB 61,444 1,182
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBR MRS 970 2,556
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 9355 56409
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEETER REMEMERR 7,646 7,524
Amount due to shareholders JEH AR R B 20 20
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHHT B A R FUR 65,269 5,148
Promissory note payables FEA 7L SRR 65,786 1,279
Other borrowing Hihfg & - 51,493
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 138,721 65464
Net current liabilites  #&&&%&E | (45,165) (8,995)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Promissory note payable FER R IR - 55,714
Other borrowing HMEE 230,000 230,000
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 230,000 285714
Net liabilities B8EFE (143,375) (134,442)
Capital and reserves BARG#HE
Share capital A& 7 68,383 45,589
Reserves (note) & (M at) (211,758) (180,031)
Total deficit BB (143,375) (134,442)
The Company's statement of financial position was ARBZHBERARERZE—NFNA

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors

“TEERESESHERRETIE  Ih

on 27 September 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: THEEREZE:
WONG MAN WINNY LIU KA LIM
B8 BER
Chairperson Director
21 EF

ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 43. NPT AR R R (2)
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current Wit : RRBAIRAFERBAEFEZRHEEZD
and the prior years are as follows: R
Capital
Share  redemption General Capital ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
RAGEE EXEERE —REE EARG ZitER EEl

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET TET TET TET

At1July 2017 WZE-+t&+F-H 2,096,276 50 1,366,003 107,947 (858,725) 2,711,551
Loss and total comprehensive TEFERZEL AR

expense for the year - - - - (3,673,516) (3,673,5] E})
Issuance of new ordinary shares less EONEBRARHNA

transaction costs (note 35(b/fi) (Wi 351) 3,672 - - - - 3672
Issuance of new shares upon placing RERBRETHRDH

of shares less transaction costs RBHE (L 351Mi)

(note 35bJfi)) 56,438 - - - - 56,438
Capital recognisation (note 356/ RAEE (st 35000 - - - 721,824 - 721,824
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 60100 - oo T84 3673516 (2891682
At30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZE-NERAZTRR

—Z-\fth-H 2,156,386 50 1,366,003 829,771 (4,532,241) (180,031)

Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEFEREELHAR

for the year - - - - (97.210) (97,210)
Rights share less transaction costs BREDAR KA
oSy (Wassoy) . 06483 . S S S S 66,483
At30 June 2019 RZZ-NERA=TH 2,221,869 50 1,366,003 829,771 (4,629,451) 211,758)

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR 639
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44. B LB RE
R-E—AER-—ZE—N\E~A=1+8"
ARFEHBARTZ HBWT -

44. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 30 June 2019 and
2018 are as follows:

Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KEARER AmAL/EEnY BRARAEE/ERER ANRREBRARATELS 31
2019 2018 2019 2018
E-NE 5)\E Z2-1f 2E3-)\F
100BESTSHOPS.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of e-Shopping and
3] EER2%T LERET internetbased acfivities
FHEERETENREBEORE
Allied Joy (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Ef(ZR)ERLA (3 EER1ER gERIET RAZR
Ample Splendid Holdings Limited BYI Ordinary US$100 - 100% - Investment holding
EEIRERLE EEHARES ZER10E7 RERR
Aspire Management Limited British Virgin lslands Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
£Rumnae US$2,636,320 582,636,320 RERR
BiER Efl
2,636,320 %70 2636305
Big Charm Holdings Limited* BV Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
dERRERAR AEREREE US$10,000 USs10,000 RESR
EBR000ZL  ERRI000ET
Bingo Profits Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1 64.9% 649%  Investment holding
EEHARES EER1ET EiaEa BEZR
Bliss Ease Limitec* BYI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US$50,000 100% 649%  Investment holding
RhERAT EERARES EERS000ET  ZRR000ET RERR
Bright Creation Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary  Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Trading of cultural and other
BEERRRAR Bk HK$10,000  ZE5%10000%7 products
EBR1000057 X REHERES
Champion (Cook Islands) Limitec* Cook Islands Ordinary HKS1 Ordinary HKS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERER LER1ER LRRIET RERR
Champion Culture Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000  Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
REXEEARLE i EBR000EL  ZRRI0000ET RELR
Champion Energy Logistics Co Ltd BVI Ordinary US$100  Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
BELRMTARAT EERARES gER00Er  EERI0NER RERR
Champion Energy Resources Co Ltd BYI Ordinary US$100  Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEHRERARAA £BumnaE EER00ER  LER00ET &Rk
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44. B LB RE (&)

Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KEARER AL/ BEny BRARAEE/HRER AARREERTRARELS 354
2019 218 2019 2018
E-hE I5-)N\E k2 -3 Z3-N\E
Champion Energy Trading Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 Ordinary HKS1 100% 100%  Trading
BERREAERAA 3] EER1ER LR 25
Champion Luck International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Property investment
FEERERAT 3] EER2ER gERET hERE
Champion Million Industries Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Property investment
HEEZERAT 3] EER2ER gERET VESE
Champion Pacific Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Property investment
$hREERAT 3 EER2ER gERET hERE
Champion Solana Energy Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% - Provision of solar energy and
REAGHEEARAR B4 HK$10,000 related products
EER10000%7 UG REBERORE
Champion Sports Development Limited BV Ordinary US$1,000  Ordinary US$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RERRLRARLE EEHARES EER00ET  SAR00ET REHR
Champion Renewable Energy Engineering Hong Kong Ordinary - 60% - Provision of solar energy and
Company Limited B HK$10,000 related products
[Formerly known as Lucky Harvest LB 10000%7 REABEEBERORE
Engineering Limited)
ﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁﬁ
(ARERIEERLR)
Champion Renewable Energy Company Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% - Provision of solar energy and
BEELARERAR 3 HK$10,000 releted products
EEMR10000E7 UG REBELORE
Champnet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Securities trading
RERAARAT & EER2ER BERET GG
Chief Champion Limited™ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000  Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 100%  Property investment
TRERRAN Et EERL00ET  ZERI00ET nERE
Deferred Deferred
HK$10,000 HK$10,000
EER00008T  EER1000ET
Chosen Vantage Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1 100% 100%  Provision of treasury services
EETES EER1ER EclaEa REEHERR
Cosmic Ocean Global Limited* BVI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
EERERAT AEREREE EBRS000ZL  ERRS000ET RERR
BERREEERAR ZT—NAFFR
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44. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44. MEB AR BE @)
Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KRARER HRAL/ BEnY BEORAEE/SRER ADREEERARATERL S E3:3 4]
2019 2018 2019 2018

ZE-0E “E-)\E ZE-AE 3\

Crown Zong Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% = Investment holding
RHERARLA B HK$1,280,100 hEfR
BER
1,280,108 72
Culture Landmark Authentication And Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Dormnt
 Valuation Centre (HK) Limited 3] HK$10,000 HK$10,000 TEEE
Tl en L (ER) FRAT EBR000EL  ZRRI0000ET
Culture Lanomark Investment Limited B Ordinary Ordinary 69.4% 69.4%  Dormant
U ERERRAR EEBARES US$1,000 USst,000 EEXH
EERI00ZL  FARI00ET
Cyber Solutions Inc. Samog Ordinary USS1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Internet business and strategic
BEZHS LER1ER LaREn investment ‘
ERREBRERIRE
Diamond Edge Enterprises Limited" %V\ o Ordinary US850000  Ordinary US§50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERFERAR" LRUARES EBRS000%T  ZRRO0000ET REZR
dKey Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Development of telematics
3] EER1AT LERIET _business
RERERE
d-Key Inc. Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US§1 100% 100%  Development of telematics
EETHE LER1ET LRRIET _business
RERERE
Dongguan Golden Field Yijing PRC Registered Registered 485% 485%  Leasing of property
HotelLimited frote 1) ) hE capital capital REnz
REMSHRREEERAA WA 1) RVB21,500000  RMB21,500,000

SMEEARE  RATiRE
21,500,000 70 21,500,0007

ESP Intemational Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Advertising and recruitment agency
ESPERERSERRAA [ EER2ER FER2ET EERRERELT
Etgrna\ Huge Devolopment Limited Hong Kong Ordipary HK$100 - 100% = Investment holding
KEREARAT (3 EER100ET REZR
Ever Vast Devolopment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% - Investment holding
BRERARLA e HK$1,280,100 hEfR
LER

1,280,100 7

Financial Vantage Limited Samog Ordinary US§1 Ordinry US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of treasury services
EEGES EER1ZT xR REFHRS

Gleaming Developments Limited B Ordinary US850,000  Ordinary USS50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
rRERARAT ABEARRS BERS000%T ZERS0000XT RERR
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Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
il PEE AL/ EEnY BRARAEE/HRER ANRREBRARATERS 1TEH
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-nf “E)f B0 E-0E
Happy Commercial Company Limited Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% Provision of documentation
é%%ﬁﬁﬂﬂ 2 MOP25,000 MOP25,000 sevices and arrangement and
EER il business consultant
BREB00T 250007 REXNEERBERAR
BEER
Happy Union Development Limited? Hong Kong Ordipary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Property investment
ERERERAAN 3] EER2ER EEkET nERs
Harilela Kantone Telecommunications Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 55.0% 55.0%  Investment in communications
Limited 3] HK$10,000 HK$10,000 networks
EBR10000ET  SRR10000%T RERERE
High Win Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1 100% 100%  Investment holding and
EEEEREE LER1ET LRRET strategic investment
REBRRERIERE
Hero King Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$100 - 100% - Property investment
BOBRERAT EEBARES ZER10E7 VES ¢
Honest City Enterprises Limited* British Virgin Islands Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
FUGCFERAA EEBARES USS50,000 US$50,000 RERR
ZERO000ET  LAks0000%T
Hong Kong IT Aliance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Information technology
BRRAMBREERAR 3] EER2ER LRRIET development
LREAMR
Golden Field Property Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 51% 51%  Investment holding
HeUBERRAT B HK$10,000000  HK$10,000,000 REZR
EER Efil
10,000000%  10000000% 7
ey (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Development of telematics
3] EER1ER LERET husiness
RERERE
ey Inc. Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Development of telematics
EEDES EER1ZT LERET husiness
RERERE
Infopage Limited UK Ordinary £1,000  Ordinary £1,000 64.9% 64.9%  Dormant
461 EERL000%E  TAR10ESE EEXH
BERREEERAR ZT—NAFFR
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44. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44. B AT BE &)

Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KRARER HRAL/ BEnY BRARAEE/HRER ANRREBRARATERS 1TEH
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NE ZE)E Z8-0E 2\
Kannet Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Internet operations
ERRAERAT (3 EER2ER BERET SR
Kantone* Cayman Islands/ Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
B Hong Kong HK$19,730,7506  HK$19,730,7506 RERR
REks/ /A% EER EER
197307506 % 19,730, 750670
Kantone Energy Trading Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000  Ordinary HK$10,000 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
[Formerly known as China Sik Road 3 EBR10000ET  LBR100007%T RERR
Investment Development Limited)
BBy REAERAA
(AR EARREERERLR)
Kantone Logistics Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 Ordinary HK$1 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
[Formerly known as Champ Honest 3] EER1ER LRI RERR
International (HK] Limited)
ERNnERARLA
(AIReER (B8 BRAA)
Kantone Paging Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Trading of pagers and provision of
RN NERARAA B4 HK$1,000 HKS1,000 messaging services
EBR1I00ET  TER100ET EERWRRREBERE
Deferred Deferred
HK$2,000,000 HK$2,000,000
BER ERR
2,000,000 %7 20000007
Kantone (UK) Limited UK Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 649%  Investment holding
e £5,500,000 £6,500,000 RELR
EER EER
5,500,000 5% 5,500,000 %5
Keen Pacific Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of treasury services
EETES LER1ER BaRiEn REEHERS
Kontone Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of treasury services
ARERARAT 3] EER2ET LRRoET REHHRE
Kontone International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
ARARARAT 3 EER2ER gERET REZR
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44. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44. MEB AR BE @)
Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KRARER HRAL/ BEnY BEORAEE/SRER ADREEERARATERL S E3:3 4]
2019 2018 2019 2018

ZE-0E “E-)\E ZE-AE 3\

KTT (Cook Islands| Limited* Cook Islands Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
BrEE HK$10,000 HK$10,000 REZR
ZER100008T  ZERI0000ET
Lucky (Macao Commercial Offshore] Limited* ~ Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of consulting services,
B (RMBRAERE) BRAA" & MOP100,000 MOP100,000 research and development, and
EERARE LRkans frading of cultural products
10,0007 100,0007C RUBRRE AERFRIRE
EuER
Luchy Edge Holdings Limited BV Ordinary US$100 - 100% - Property investment
FHBRERAT fS EEprE ERR100%7 VESE
Lucky Global Group Limited* BvI Ordinary US$100  Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
VERREEERAR EEBARES ZER00ER  EARI00ET RERR
Lucky Success Development Limited? Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Property investment
ERERARATN 3] EER2#T LRkoET VESE
Lucky Tone Investments Limited" Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Property investment
FRRERRAFN 3 EER2ER LRRIET VES ¢
Magic Elite Investments Limited* BVI Ordinary US$50,000  Ordinary US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
PERERRAR" EEBARES ERR5000ET  LERB0000%T REZR
M.C. Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
FERE £5,500,002 £5,500,002 REZR
LER LRk
5,500,002 %8 5,500,002 5.8
Multitone Communications Limited UK Ordinary £100 Ordinary £100 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
#E BER00RE  ZERI0EE REZR
Multitone Communication Systems Limited UK Ordinary £25,000  Ordinary £25,000 64.9% 64.9%  Dormant
EE ERRBO0KE LERBN0ES EEZB
Multitone General Partner Limited UK Ordinary £100 Ordinary £100 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
L] EER00%E  TERI0EE RE&R

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR
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44. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44. B AT BE &)

Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KEARER AL/ BEny BRARAEE/HRER AARREERTRARELS 354
2019 2018 2019 2018
E-hE I5-)N\E k2 -3 Z3-N\E
Multitone Rentals Limited UK Ordinary £100 Ordinary £100 64.9% 649%  Dormant
£ EERI0ORE  ZRRI0RE EEXB
Mulitone Retirement Benefits Plan UK Ordinary £1 Ordinary £1 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
Trustee Limited iR EER1KE Lk ag RERR
Marcotte Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EETHE B LAE BRIz RERR
Multitone Electronics PLC UK Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 649%  Investment holding, design and
EE1 £3,830,107 £3830,107 manufacture of communication
LER L3R systems and equipment
IBVITRE 38010755 REER R REEBERNR
Mulitone Electronics Scn. Bhd. Malaysia Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Manufacture of communication
Y il MR285,000 MR285,000 systems and equipment
EER EER FEREZNRRE
285,000 285,000
ERELLE ERERLE
Mutiton Elektronik GmbH Germany Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Distribution of communication
(e £1,022,584 £1,022,584 systems and equipment
EER EER ARBEZSRRE
WR5UET 10025846 T
New Envirotech Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS20  Orainary HK$20 100% 100%  Dormant
HRERERAT 3 EERET  EERNER EEXH
New Telecomm Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Dormant
HEEARRLT Ak HK$6,000,000  HKS,000,000 EEXB
EiER Efil
6,000,000 %7 6,000,000 0
Paging Systems Limited UK Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Dormant
ot £1,100,100 £1,100,100 EELH
EiER EF il
11001008 170010085
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44. B LB RE (&)

Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KRARER HRAL/ BEnY BRARAEE/HRER ANRREBRARATERS 1TEH
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NE ZE)E Z8-0E 2\
Pearl Delta Inc. Samoa/Macau Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of treasury services
BETHE /A B LAE Rz REFHER
Power Favour Holdings Limited* BVl Ordinary US$100 - 100% - Investment holding
AaARERAA EERARES ZER100%7 REZR
QQKK.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce,
3] EER2ER LRRIET m-commerce and interet based
activities
RUANSTHE IR
BRNRR
Roc Castle Holdings Limited BV Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BERRERAT £RumnEs EBRS0000%  ZERO0000%T RAZR
Shenzhen Hengyu Science and Technology ~ PRC Registered Registered 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
Company Limited Vot 3/ o capital capital RERR
EERK (RN BRAAHZY) RVB24,000,000  RMB24,000,000
AMEsARY  EfERARY
24,000,000 24,000,007
Skill King Holdings Limited BV Ordinary US$50,000  Ordinary US$50,000 100% 64.9%  Investment holding
NEERERAT ERMERHE EERS0000%L  Z@Ro000%T REZR
Silver Edge Holdings Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000  Ordinary US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BHERARAR AB4EREE EBRS000ET  TRRS000%T RERR
Sky Sign Holdings Limited BvI Ordinary US$50,000 Ordinary US$50,000 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
KEBRERAT ER4ERHE EERS0000EL  Z@Ro000%ET REZR
Silverstrand Investments Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Investment holding
EETES EER1Zn EclaE REZR
Solar Rise Enterprises Limited* BvI Ordinary US$100  Ordinary US$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
RECFERAA ER4ERHE 2ER0Er  ERERI0ER REZR
Success (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited”  Macau Ordinary Ordinary 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of consulting services,
B (BB REERE) ERAAY & MOP100,000 MOP100,000 research and development and
LER L3R trading of cultural products
AFB1000007  RF%1000007 REERER FRRFE
WREENER
BERREEERAR ZT—NAFFR
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44. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44, B AT BE @)
Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KEARER AL/ BEny BRARAEE/HRER AARREERTRARELS 354
2019 218 2019 2018

Z3-hE “E-)\F ZE-1F “E-)\F

Sure Beauty Investments Limited BVI Ordinary US$50,000  Ordinary US$50,000 64.9% 649%  Investment holding
EERERRAR B4ERHE EBRS000ET  TRRE0000%T REBR
Vast Success Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Money lending
B (BR) EER B ARLA (3 HK$100,000 EER1ET nEEH
EER100000%7
Vast Acute Holdings Limited BVl Ordinary US$100 - 100% - Property investment
ERIRERAT EERARES ZER100E7 VESE
Very Happy Interational Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
REBRERAT 3] EER2ER BERET NERE
Wise Great Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 100% - Investment holding
EERRARAT Eh HK$1,300,100 REBR
£ER
1,300,100 %
Wollaston Limited Samoa/Macau Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1 64.9% 649%  Investment holding
BETHE /AN EER1ER EaEa RERR
Y28.COM Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Provision of e-commerce,
RARERAT 3 EER2%T LERET m-commerce and intemet based
activities
REENETEE:
AL RERANRR
Zonal Care Incorporated British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$2 Ordinary US$2 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of treasury services
Macau EER2ER LRkEn REHHRE
AR#ERER/
2
Champion Telecommunication (Shenzhen) PRC Registered Registered 100% 100%  Sales of general systems products
Co. Ltd Note 4) hE capital capital and provision of services and
SmRREN () BRAF (Hie) HKS2450,000  HKS2450,000 software licensing
ifas fias HE-REZGERRRARERA
245000087 245000077 [hte
DigitalHongKong.com Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Telecommunication service and
YEEEERAT 3 LERET LRI strategic investment
SHRBRERRE
Eamest Century Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary USS1 100% 100%  Provision of treasury services
EETER LER1ER EaR1ER RIMETRE
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44. B LB RE (&)

Place of Nominal value of Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share capital/ issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
KRARER HRAL/ BEnY BRARAEE/HRER ANRREBRARATERS 1TEH
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NE ZE)E Z8-0E 2\
Eight Converge Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Provision of treasury services
NEBRAR EETES EER1ER Bl b REEHER
Golden Opportunity Limited Samoa Ordinary US$1 Ordinary US$1 64.9% 64.9%  Provision for treasury services
SRARLT EETES EER1ER Bl b REEHER
Manning International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Management service
THARERAT 3 HK$10,000 HK$10,000 B
EBR1000%T  ZERI0000ET
Multitong (Asia) Smart Communication Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 Ordinary HK$1 100% 64.9%  Trading in telecommunication
Technology Company Limited B LER1ET LER1EL system and products
[Formerly known as Mulitone (ASIA} Limited) BRZSRERES
R (DN EZEANEARL
(FIBREmAEN ERAR)
United Software Aliance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS2 Ordinary HKS2 100% 100%  Information technology, inter-
HHEERAT 3] LER2AT LRk net software development and
E-com
O ERARNRERET
Ef
Y28 Innovations* Cayman Islands Ordinary HK$0.1 ~ Ordinary HKS0.1 100% 100%  Investment holding
FEHB EEkoET  BER0IER RERR
Notes: Kiaz -

Partially foreign owned enterprise for a term from 1 July
2000 to 19 June 2020.

Partially foreign owned enterprise for a term from 13 March
2019 to 12 March 2069.

Wholly foreign owned enterprise for a term of 20 years
commencing from 17 October 2003.

Wholly foreign owned enterprise for a term of 30 years
commencing from 27 June 1995.

Directly held by the Company

For identification purposes only

Ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company on 8 July 2019.
The company has been changed the name to Abundant
Success Trading (Macao Commercial) Limited with effective
on 15 July 2019.

The company has been changed the name to Luckiest
Trading (Macao Commercial) Limited with effective on 15
July 2019.

NEEELE FHHR-TZTTFLA
—HE-Z-_ZTFXA+IH-
IEEELE FHHE-_ZT—NF=A
+T=ZHAEZEANF=ZA+=H-
INEBECE FTHHA-_TT=F1+A
Rl = E ) gy o S

INEBELE FHE-ANAFAA
by o e =i ey RS
HAARHEES

EHER
A-Z-NAFLtANBTERARAH
FAA
ZARBEET—NAFLtA+RABEEXR
EIERKIE S CRFIE) —ABRAT -
FZRARE_E—NFLtA+HBEE®R
ERARTE S CRPIRE) —ABRAR -

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR
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44. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, of each
of the subsidiaries Chief Champion Limited and Kantone
Paging Company Limited entitled the holders thereof to:

(@) a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5%
per annum for any financial year of the company in
question in respect of which the net profits of such
company exceed HK$100,000,000,000; and

(b)  on a winding-up, a return of the capital paid up on
such shares out of the surplus assets of the company
in question after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000
has been distributed in such winding up in respect of
each of the ordinary shares of such company.

To disposal of Chief Champion Limited was effectively
completed on 8 July 2019 simultaneously when upon
completion of the disposal of the units in Kantone Centre.

Kantone Paging Company Limited is the only company
which has issuance such deferred shares.

Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any debt
securities subsisting at 30 June 2019 and 2018 or at any
time during the year.
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44.

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

have material non-controlling interests

44.

The table below provides details of a non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling

e M BHRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—hF/NA=1+H 30 JUNE 2019

MEB AR BE®)

BREEARFERRREZZFE2E

MEBARZFHE

TRERBEEIOHEBRREZZ AR
EE2EMB AR ZFHE

interests:
Proportion of
ownership interests and
voting rights held by Profit/(loss) allocated to Accumulated
Place of incorporationand  non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
Name of subsidiaries principal place of business as at 30 June for the year ended 30 June as at 30 June
WAA=Z1A BEAA=THLEE
TR LR FERRREREML T FRFEERRR RAAZTHE:
WEARER TEEENE BRERRERREELA BEZER FERBRRES
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZB-NE ZE-\E ZB-nF —E-\F ZEB-hE ZZ-)\£
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET TET TET
Kantone and its subsidiaries Cayman Islands/Hong Kong
ERRANBAR REHE/BE 35.1% 365.1% 84  (576345) 23,650 24,863
Golden Field and its subsidiaries Hong Kong/PRC
MEHRANBLFE il 49% 49% 610 (87,470) 27,642 28,095
Champion Solana Energy Group Hong Kong 40% - (32) - (32) -
Limited A
BEAGEEERAT
Champion Renewable Energy Hong Kong 10% - (31) - (31) -
Engineering Company Limited &%
BEEERRIRERAA
1,402 (663,815) 51,235 52,958

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is

set out below. The summarised financial information below

represents amounts before elimination of intra-group

transactions.

BREERFERBRES 2 ASEH B A
AZMBERBEBRIWT - TIHMBE
M EEMGEEEANBZX SR 2S5 -

BEMREEERATE

—T-NEER

P
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

44, LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44, B B RE (#2)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEEAFERBRRERZZIEEE
have material non-controlling interests (continued) (N ENE A= 1€ )
Kantone and its subsidiaries EBRAEWELF
2019 2018
—E-hF —T— N\
HK$000 HK$000
FET FiET
Non-current assets ERBEE 28,666 29,931
Current assets MBEE 133,772 128,598
Current liabilities mMENEE (69,679) (59,841)
Non-current liabilities B EIN=Ei (25,301) (27,774)
Equity s
— Equity attributable to owners of —RATRHEE NELER
the Company 43,808 46,051
- Non-controlling interests —SEEARAR W i 23,650 24,863
67,458 70,914
Revenue Wz 143,966 136,743
Profit/(loss) for the year NEERF,(EE)
— Attributable to owners of A VNEIE PN
the Company 1,583 (1,067,543)
— Attributable to the non-controlling — IR R R S RS
interests 854 (576,345)
2,437 (1,643,888)

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

44, LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44, BB BRE @)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that BEEAFERBRRERZZIEEE
have material non-controlling interests (continued) (N ENE A= 1€ )
Kantone and its subsidiaries (continued) EBREMB LA ()
2019 2018
—E-hE —E—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Other comprehensive (expenselfincome AFEEEMmEm (X H) Mz
for the year
— Attributable to owners of —AKREEE AN
the Company (3,827) 24,419
— Attributable to non-controlling — PR IR R A S AL
interests (2,066) 13,186
(5,893) 37,605
Total comprehensive expense AFEEEL HER
for the year (3,456) (1,606,283)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from EEERA (R 2
operating activities e FE 21,859 (1,167)
Net cash outflow from REERL ZHEFE
investing activities (5,549) (6,054)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BEFERA (RE) 2
financing activities Re 3 2,767 (1,037)
Net increase/(decrease) in deposits, B RITEHRERSZ
bank balances and cash i, Crd) FE 19,077 (8,258)
W ERHEEAR AR

—T-NEER



A TR M

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

44. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

44,

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (continued)

Y EPNCIES-4¢ )
BEEAFERRREZZIIEEE
I ENGIPA=I1E )

Golden Field and its subsidiary T RAMNE L A
2019 2018
—E-hE —FE-)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 45,838 50,776
Current assets MBEE 12,929 8,755
Current liabilities mEaE (2,353) (2,195)
Non-current liabilities B EIN=Ei - -
Equity s
— Equity attributable to owners of —RATRHEE NELER
the Company 28,772 29,241
- Non controlling interests —SEEARAR W i 27,642 28,095
56,414 57,336
Profit/(loss) for the year REFRF, (EiE)
- Attributable to owners of —ARREEB AL
the Company 637 (91,040)
— Attributable to the non-controlling — IR A R S RS
interests 610 (87,470)
1,247 (178,510)
Other comprehensive (expense)fincome ANEZHM2E () Uzs
for the year
— Attributable to owners of N UNGIE ¥ =N S
the Company (1,106) 4,073
— Attributable to the non-controlling — IR IR R S RS
interests (1,063) 3,913
(2,169) 7,986

CHAMPIONTECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (continued)

Golden Field and its subsidiary (continued)

44,

—ZF—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

Y EPNCIES-4¢ )
BEEAFERRREZZIIEEE
I ENGIPA=I1E )

e RENE LT ()

2019 2018
—E-h#F T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Total comprehensive expense AFEEEEL BT
for the year (922) (170,524)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from KEEBORL) /RAZ
operating activities IRe 55 (2,170) 1,824
Net cash inflow from investing activities & &EE A Z IR & F4E - -
Net cash inflow from financing activities Bl & /EBRAZIRE FHE - -
Net (decrease)/increase in deposits, G RITEBEERESZ
bank balances and cash CRd) /1 hnF e (2,170) 1,824

BEMREEBRAFT —T-FFR @



e BB RNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZE—N%F/XA=-+H 30 JUNE 2019

45.

46.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Disposal of Disposal Group A

On 22 March 2019, the Vendors A, both direct wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company, the Purchaser A,
an independent third party and the Vendors' Guarantor,
entered into a Provisional S&P Agreement A, in which
the Purchaser A would acquire the entire share capital
of and all debt owing by the Disposal Group A to each of
the Vendors A as at completion at a cash consideration
of HK$125,000,000 (subject to adjustments under certain
conditions).

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 22 March 2019 and circular dated 24 April 2019. The
transaction was completed on 8 July 2019.

Disposal of Disposal Group B

On 8 August 2019, the Vendors B, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, Purchaser B, an independent
third party and the Vendors' Guarantor, entered into a
S&P Agreement B, in which the Vendors B agreed to sell
and the Purchaser B agreed to purchase the entire issued
share capital of the Disposal Group B and all debt owing
by the Disposal Group B to each of the Vendors B as at
completion at a consideration of HK$36,600,000.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 8 August 2019 and 23 August 2019 and circular
dated 25 September 2019. The transaction is expected to
be completed on or before 29 November 2019.

COMPARATIVE FIGURE

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
to current year's presentation and to provide comparative
amounts in respect of items disclosed in 2018.
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MBERE
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS E 5
Year ended 30 June
HEAA=THLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-RE ZET-)\F ZE—+F ZT—RF ZT—A8F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue g 385,664 142,754 194,644 4,979,715 5,610,013
(Loss)/profit from ordinary BREIATEEES
activities before taxation (B518),/&F
(Loss)/profit from operating RETEMGEEE 2
activities excluding other R (BIE),/
operating items ikl (71,123)  (4,476,510)  (4,754,184) 1,507,108 271,472
Other operating items Hihgs1aE - - (49,199)  (1,548,411) (249,057)
(Loss)/profit before taxation ~ BRBiAI (B1E) %7 (71,123)  (4,476,510) (4,803,383 (41,303) 22,415
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfige,/ () 348 790 (613) 759 (2,377)
(Loss)/profit for the year EEE (BB) &H (70,775)  (4,475,720)  (4,803,996) (40,544) 20,038
Attributable to: JE{E -
Owners of the Company RAREE A (72,177) (3,811,905)  (4,188,139) (30,434) 14,117
Non-controlling interests ESE SR 1,402 (663,815) (615,857) (10,110) 5,921
Dividends ’E - - - - -
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MBERE
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

At 30 June
RAB=1+H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-RE ZET-)\F ZE—+F ZT—RF ZT—AHF
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET & FET

Total assets BEHBE 644,070 552,770 4,516,973 9,304,180 9,466,273
Total liabilities BEBE 520,626 451,578 363,883 347,074 457,654
Shareholders’ funds BRES 123,444 101,192 4,153,090 8,957,106 9,008,619

Equity attributable to owners of AR BIHEHE AEIGHER
the Company 72,208 48,234 3,565,065 7,753,217 7,777,687

Non-controlling interests IR R A 51,236 52,958 588,025 1,203,889 1,230,932

123,444 101,192 4,153,090 8,957,106 9,008,619
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FEREYR—BEXR
SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Attributable
Interest of
Location Existing use Tenure the Group

LB REAR HH 6K W e 45 R 2R

1. 6 East Huanshi Road, Hotel Medium term lease 51%
TangXia Town, Dongguan City, B S FERFRAY
Guangdong Province, the PRC
FEAREKMBEERAR >
BEEERM R 6

2. Unit 8A on 8th Floor, Office Medium term lease 100%
Block 4, MRE FEATEAY
Tianji Building,

Tian'an Chegongmiao Industrial Zone,
Futian District, Shenzhen City,
Guangdong Province,

The PRC

&

BRE

RN

=

REBAHLER

REBERNE

47

8IEBARE

3. Factory B on 24/F Vacant Long term lease 100%
(including balcony and store room), =F REIMEA
Factory B on 25/F
(including balcony and store room)
and Factory C on 25/F (including
balcony), Kingsford Industrial Building,

Phase |,

Nos. 26-32 Kwai Hei Street,

Kwai Chung,

New Territories

Hong Kong

56

R

23]

HEH26-2F B TERNEE—H
24BIHB(BEEE MEFERZE) -
2B IHB(BiEEE RFEEE) &
2BBIMmC(BHERSE)
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TEREWEZ—ER

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Attributable

Interest of
Location Existing use Tenure the Group
NE RER® A AEEELER
4. Factory A on 25/F (including balcony), Vacant Long term lease 100%
Kingsford Industrial Building, z= RHIMEAD
Phase |,
Nos. 26-32 Kwai Hei Street,
Kwai Chung,
New Territories
Hong Kong
aBE
R
2R
HEWHBRNHFLHETERNEF —H
WBEIBA(BRESSR)
5. 3/F, No.1 Ning Foo Street, Hong Kong Office Long term lease 100%
ABEFTHRIE WRE REAME A
6.  5/F, No.1 Ning Foo Street, Hong Kong Office Long term lease 100%
EAEEHROE L /NES RHAIMEAD
7. 7/F, No.1 Ning Foo Street, Hong Kong Office Long term lease 100%
BEBEFTHRT7E WRE REATE A
8.  9/F, 10/F and Roof, Office Long term lease 100%
No.1 Ning Foo Street, Hong Kong I /NES REIEA

EABEH OB 10BRKXE
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